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(€D)
( )
( )
20 0.10%( )
10 0.10 x 20 x 1.10( )
2.20 ( 2.00 )
0.10 x 15 x 1.10( )
10 50 1.65 (  1.50 )
0.10 x 10 x 1.10( )
50 100 110 (1.0 )
0.10 x x 1.10( )
100 500 055 ( 0.50 )
0.10 x x 1.10( )
500 022 ( 0.20 )
C )
( )
C ) ( )
C )
@)
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®
0.45 10
0.40 10 0.35
5,000 0.25 5,000
0.20 0.15
0.02
0.23 10
0.28 10 0.33
(
)
( )
2021 116,931.12
64,961.59 59,764.74 5,197.08
Q)
) () )
)

2021 1,346.48
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@
(2021 )
( ) (D)
2,233 8.98
1,593 6.41
1,449 5.83
970 3.90
908 3.65
853 3.43
613 2.46
598 2.40
521 2.09
458 1.84
438 1.76
408 1.64
407 1.64
308 1.24
257 1.03
200 0.80
109 0.44
109 0.44
105 0.42
101 0.41
101 0.41
100 0.40
12,839 51.63
2,961 11.91
1,464 5.89
1,074 4.32
923 3.71
855 3.44
713 2.87
412 1.66
232 0.93
166 0.67
162 0.65
142 0.57
102 0.41
101 0.41
100 0.40
88 0.35
80 0.32
55 0.22
9,630 38.72
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( ) )

3,484 14.01
746 3.00
315 1.27
260 1.05

27 0.11

4,832 19.43
166 0.67
146 0.59
117 0.47
101 0.41

79 0.32

72 0.29

681 2.74

379 1.52

233 0.94

174 0.70

26 0.10

4 0.02

4 0.02

2 0.01

2 0.01

1 0.00

825 3.32

711 2.86

543 2.18

103 0.41

-135 -0.54

30,029 120.75

-5,160 -20.75

24,869 100.00
( 3,225 )

(

)
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)
(2021 )
() C > C |,
Spain Government Bond 0.000 | 2025 31 |1,762,518 1,750,000 1,772,339 | 7.13
Nykredit Realkredit A/S 1.000 2050 10 1,388,739 | 10,479,419 1,345,789 | 5.41
Stadshypotek AB 2.000 | 2028 931,286 | 9,000,000 969,912 | 3.90
Spain Government Bond 1.250 [2030 10 31 784,387 725,000 781,762 | 3.14
Italy Buoni Poliennali 1.850 | 2025 706,233 680,000 730,621 | 2.94
del Tesoro
United Kingdom Gilt 3.250 | 2044 22 638,479 450,000 726,235 | 2.92
France Government Bond 0.750 | 2052 25 689,555 650,000 611,679 2.46
Treasury Inflation 0.125 | 2030 15 552,186 599,198 543,450 | 2.19
Protected Securities
European Union 0.000 | 2029 499,232 500,000 504,390 | 2.03
10 |Province of Ontario 2.400 | 2026 409,273 600,000 430,358 | 1.73
11 |united Kingdom Gilt 0.625 | 2025 419,634 350,000 413,927 | 1.66
1p |Slovenia Governnent 0.000 | 2031 12 424,735 420,000 412,050 | 1.66
International Bond
13 gKg Bank Hipoteczny 0.750 | 2024 24 302,310 300,000 308,243 | 1.24
14 (S:g”r]:)tomo Witsui Banking 0.409 [2029 11 310,886 300,000 305,312 | 1.23
15 |Jyske Realkredit A/S 1.000 2050 10 378,842 | 2,854,070 366,892 | 1.48
16 énzeuser'B”SCh Ingev 2.000 | 2028 17 267,487 250,000 278,013 | 1.12
17 |united Kingdom Gilt 1.625 |2054 10 22 281,948 208,072 264,606 | 1.06
18 Ef_‘gk of Ireland Group 1.000 (2025 11 25 | 251,438 | 250,000 256,827 | 1.03
19 |Autonomous Community of 4.900 [ 2021 15 252,127 250,000 253,676 | 1.02
Catalonia
20 |Hawksmoor Mortgages 1.099 | 2053 25 229,765 196,518 229,656 0.92
Towd Point Mortgage
21 | conding Granited PLC 1.111 2051 10 20 217,185 193,881 227,201 | 0.91
9o |Nationwide Building 1.375 | 2032 20 | 232,113 200,000 224,521 | 0.90
Society
Zimmer Biomet Holdings,
2 | 2.425 |2026 12 13 211,249 200,000 221,600 | 0.89
Towd Point Mortgage
24 | conding Auburn 14 PLC 0.949 | 2045 20 206,564 185,980 217,421 | 0.87
Residential Mortgage
25 | sooiritios 2 pLo 1.299 | 2070 20 203,579 183,026 215,763 | 0.87
26 |Eurogrid GmbH 1.875 | 2025 10 212,679 200,000 214,497 | 0.86
27 |Mortimer BTL PLC 1.349 | 2051 20 213,470 182,211 213,795 | 0.86
28 |Ripon Mortgages PLC 0.881 | 2056 20 210,373 182,986 213,551 | 0.86
29 | 3B Holdings BV 1.750 | 2026 25 209,183 200,000 213,392 | 0.86
30 |Aroundtown S.A. 1.500 | 2026 28 198,347 200,000 210,662 | 0.85

(2021
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(2021 )
(€))

2021
10 37,698,761 4,889,152,314 9.38 1,216
11 35,089,794 4,550,795,384 9.80 1,271
12 35,246,796 4,571,156,973 10.25 1,329
13 32,440,928 4,207,263,952 10.42 1,351
14 26,939,009 3,493,720,077 10.38 1,346
15 27,093,279 3,513,727,354 10.50 1,362
16 25,757,362 3,340,472,278 10.40 1,349
17 25,111,840 3,256,754,530 10.71 1,389
18 25,733,017 3,337,314,975 10.93 1,418
19 24,868,903 3,225,248,030 11.20 1,453
2020 26,226,311 3,401,290,274 11.22 1,455
10 26,443,966 3,429,517,951 11.31 1,467
11 26,382,810 3,421,586,629 11.38 1,476
12 26,508,637 3,437,905,133 11.46 1,486
2021 26,286,501 3,409,096, 315 11.42 1,481
25,680,496 3,330,503,526 11.19 1,451
25,651,900 3,326,794,911 11.24 1,458
25,304,163 3,281,696,899 11.18 1,450
24,918,641 3,231,698,551 11.20 1,453
24,921,390 3,232,055,069 11.22 1,455
25,013,376 3,243,984,733 11.39 1,477
24,742,835 3,208,898, 271 11.32 1,468

)
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10 0.272048734 35.282
11 0.198548392 25.750
12 0.123166264 15.973
13 0.765302711 99.252
14 0.091291480 11.840
15 0.070361437 9.125
16 0.087322777 11.325
17 0.126751009 16.438
18 0.046122730 5.982
19 0.004475116 0.580
2021 0.000360864 0.047
0.000461099 0.060
0.000354264 0.046
()

10 9.19

11 6.59

12 5.85

13 9.12

14 0.49

15 1.83

16 -0.12

17 4.20

18 2.48

19 2.51

) ( ) 100x (a b) b
a

b (
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)
10 52,040 721,575 4,017,171
(52,040) (721,575) (4,017,171)
1 281,650 717,806 3,581,015
(281,650) (717,806) (3,581,015)
1 108,160 251,874 3,437,301
(108, 160) (251,874) (3,437,301)
13 192,190 515,414 3,114,077
(192,190) (515,414) (3,114,077)
1 127,440 645,585 2,595,932
(127,440) (645,585) (2,595,932)
15 238,850 255,307 2,579,475
238,850) 255,307) (2,579,475)
16 21,310 124,931 2,475,854
(21,310) (124,931) (2,475,854)
17 27,250 158,075 2,345,029
(27,250) (158,075) (2,345,029)
18 100,020 91,380 2,353,669
(100,020) (91,380) (2,353,669)
19 37,910 171,149 2,220,430
(37,910) (171,149) (2,220,430)
)y ¢
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(d) (
10

)

e
S 4.7
@
(b)
USA (USA PATRIOT ACT) (The U.S. Bank Secrecy Act)
( )
CSSF 08/387(CSSF 10/476

) CSSF CSSF
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)
2021 10 30 2022 10 31
10
)
) (
20 0.10%(
’ 0.10 x 20 x 1.10( )
2.20 2.00
0.10 x 15 x 1.10( )
10 50 1.65 1.50
0.10 x 10 x 1.10( )
50 100 1.10 1.00
0.10 x  x 1.10( )
100 500 o 0.50
0.10 x  x 1.10( )
500 0.22 0.20
C )
( )
C ) (
«C )
)
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2021 31
( ) ( )
120.8%
1.8%
1.8%
Anheuser-Busch InBev S.A.
2.000% due 03/17/2028 EUR 250 EUR 279
Barry Callebaut Services NV
5.500% due 06/15/2023 $ 200 179
458
( EUR 465)
0.4%
0.4%
Bacardi Ltd.
2.750% due 07/03/2023 EUR 100 105
105
( EUR 104)
4.1%
0.4%
Fairfax Financial Holdings Ltd.
2.750% due 03/29/2028 100 109
3.7%
Province of Alberta
2.050% due 06/01/2030 CAD 250 170
2.350% due 06/01/2025 200 143
Province of Ontario
2.400% due 06/02/2026 600 430
2.700% due 06/02/2029 250 180
923
1,032
( EUR 989)
0.4%
0.4%
Hutchison Whampoa Finance 14 Ltd.
1.375% due 10/31/2021 EUR 100 101
101
( EUR 101)
0.4%
0.4%
Czech Republic Government Bond
1.000% due 06/26/2026 CzK 2,300 88
88
( EUR 89)
9.0%
9.0%
Jyske Realkredit A/S
1.000% due 10/01/2050 DKK 2,854 367
2.000% due 10/01/2050 329 45
3.000% due 10/01/2047 6 1
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« )
2021 31
( ) ( )
Nordea Kredit Realkreditaktieselskab
1.000% due 10/01/2050 DKK 854 EUR 110
1.500% due 10/01/2053 500 66
2.000% due 10/01/2050 646 89
2.500% due 10/01/2047 8 1
Nykredit Realkredit A/S
1.000% due 10/01/2050 10,479 1,346
1.000% due 10/01/2053 198 25
1.500% due 10/01/2053 600 79
1.500% due 10/01/2053 400 54
2.000% due 10/01/2050 210 29
2.500% due 10/01/2047 20 3
Realkredit Danmark A/S
1.500% due 10/01/2053 100 13
2.500% due 04/01/2036 18 3
2.500% due 04/01/2047 6 1
3.000% due 07/01/2046 8 1
2,233
( EUR 2,287)
0.4%
0.4%
Estonia Government International Bond
0.125% due 06/10/2030 (F) EUR 100 100
100
( EUR 99)
0.4%
0.4%
SBB Treasury 0YJ
0.114% due 02/01/2023 100 100
100
( EUR 100)
5.3%
0.7%
Purple Master Credit Cards
0.138% due 05/25/2034 100 101
Silver Arrow S_A.
0.141% due 11/20/2030 65 65
166
1.6%
Bureau Veritas S.A.
1.250% due 09/07/2023 200 205
Dexia Credit Local S.A.
0.500% due 01/17/2025 100 103
RCI Banque S.A.
0.250% due 07/12/2021 100 100
408
0.1%
SapphireOne Mortgages FCT
0.000% due 06/27/2061 27 27
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2.9%
Caisse Francaise de Financement Local
0.000% due 02/25/2025 EUR 100 EUR 101
0.750% due 05/25/2052 (F) 650 612
713
1,314
( EUR 1,384)
3.7%
3. 7%
Deutsche Bank AG
1.375% due 09/03/2026 100 103
4.250% due 10/14/2021 $ 100 83
Eurogrid GmbH
1.875% due 06/10/2025 EUR 200 215
Fraport AG Frankfurt Airport Services Worldwide
1.625% due 07/09/2024 100 103
Kreditanstalt fuer Wiederaufbau
0.000% due 09/15/2028 100 101
0.010% due 05/05/2027 100 102
0.375% due 05/20/2036 100 101
Volkswagen Leasing GmbH
0.000% due 07/06/2021 100 100
908
( EUR 912)
0.2%
0.2%
Hungary Government International Bond
1.500% due 11/17/2050 60 55
55
( EUR 61)
0.4%
0.4%
Indonesiia Government International Bond
1.400% due 10/30/2031 100 102
102
( EUR 102)
3.1%
0.4%
Citizen Irish Auto Receivables Trust DAC
0.268% due 12/15/2029 100 101
1.0%
Bank of Ireland Group PLC
1.000% due 11/25/2025 250 257
1.3%
Bluestep Mortgage Securities No.4 DAC
0.188% due 08/10/2066 15 15
Dilosk RMBS No.4 DAC
0.197% due 02/20/2060 99 100
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« )
2021 31
( ) ( )
European Loan Conduit No.36 DAC
1.000% due 02/17/2030 EUR 100 EUR 100
Primrose Residential DAC
0.189% due 03/24/2061 100 100
315
0.4%
Ireland Government Bond
0.550% due 04/22/2041 80 78
1.700% due 05/15/2037 20 23
101
774
( EUR 769)
0.9%
0.9%
Israel Government Bond
0.050% due 11/30/2021 ILS 100 25
5.500% due 01/31/2022 400 107
Israel Government International Bond
0.000% due 07/22/2022 (F) EUR 100 100
232
( EUR 230)
6.0%
1.7%
AMCO-Asset Management Co. SpA
1.500% due 07/17/2023 100 103
Atlantia SpA
1.875% due 02/12/2028 200 204
Nexi SpA
1.625% due 04/30/2026 100 100
407
4.3%
Italy Buoni Poliennali del Tesoro
1.350% due 04/15/2022 (f) 100 101
1.850% due 07/01/2025 (f) 680 731
2.150% due 03/01/2072 (f) 200 195
2.800% due 03/01/2067 40 47
1,074
1,481
( EUR 1,459)
2._5%
2.5%
Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, Inc.
0.872% due 09/07/2024 200 206
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corp.
0.409% due 11/07/2029 300 305
Sumitomo Mitsui Financial Group, Inc.
0.465% due 05/30/2024 100 102
613
( EUR 616)
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( ) ( )
0.4%
0.4%
Atrium European Real Estate Ltd.
3.000% due 09/11/2025 EUR 100 EUR 109
109
( EUR 99)
3.7%
0.3%
Compartment VCL 27
0.000% due 08/21/2024 10 10
Silver Arrow S_A. Compartment 11
0.148% due 02/15/2027 62 62
72
3.4%
Aroundtown S.A.
1.500% due 07/15/2024 200 210
1.500% due 05/28/2026 200 211
2.000% due 11/02/2026 100 108
CPI Property Group S.A.
1.625% due 04/23/2027 100 103
John Deere Bank S.A.
0.000% due 10/03/2022 100 100
Logicor Financing Sarl
2.750% due 01/15/2030 GBP 100 121
853
925
( EUR 898)
3.4%
2.4%
Cooperatieve Rabobank UA
5.250% due 09/14/2027 100 140
JAB Holdings BV
1.750% due 06/25/2026 EUR 200 213
Nationale-Nederlanden Bank NV
0.125% due 09/24/2029 100 101
Nederlandse Waterschapsbank NV
0.750% due 10/04/2041 140 144
598
1.0%
Dutch Property Finance BV
0.091% due 04/28/2051 67 67
0.124% due 07/28/2058 100 100
Jubilee Place BV
0.463% due 10/17/2057 92 93
260
858
( EUR 865)
0.8%
0.8%
DNB Boligkreditt A/S
0.010% due 01/21/2031 100 99
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SpareBank 1 Boligkreditt A/S
0.125% due 11/05/2029 EUR 100 EUR 101
200
( EUR 204)
1.8%
1.2%
PKO Bank Hipoteczny S.A.
0.750% due 01/24/2024 300 308
0.6%
Poland Government International Bond
2.500% due 07/25/2026 PLN 600 142
450
( EUR 445)
0.3%
0.3%
Russia Government International Bond
7.650% due 04/10/2030 RUB 6,800 80
80
( EUR 110)
0.7%
0.7%
Saudi Government International Bond
2.375% due 10/26/2021 $ 200 166
166
( EUR 179)
1.7%
1.7%
Slovenia Government International Bond
0.000% due 02/12/2031 EUR 420 412
412
( EUR 425)
0.4%
0.4%
Hana Bank
0.010% due 01/26/2026 100 101
101
( EUR 101)
14.6%
0.6%
BBVA Consumer Auto FTA
0.270% due 07/20/2031 56 56
FT Santander Consumer Spain Auto
0.157% due 03/20/2033 89 90
146
2.1%
Abertis Infraestructuras S.A.
1.125% due 03/26/2028 100 102
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Merlin Properties Socimi S.A.
1.750% due 05/26/2025 EUR 100 EUR 106
2.375% due 05/23/2022 200 204
2.375% due 07/13/2027 100 109
521
11.9%
Autonomous Community of Catalonia
4.900% due 09/15/2021 250 254
Spain Government Bond
0.000% due 01/31/2025 (f) 1,750 1,772
1.000% due 10/31/2050 30 27
1.250% due 10/31/2030 (f) 725 782
1.450% due 10/31/2071 (f) 145 126
2,961
3,628
( EUR 3,619)
3.4%
3.4%
European Union
0.000% due 07/04/2029 500 504
0.200% due 06/04/2036 100 97
0.250% due 04/22/2036 200 196
0.450% due 05/02/2046 60 58
855
( EUR 857)
4._6%
3.9%
Stadshypotek AB
2.000% due 09/01/2028 SEK 9,000 970
0.7%
Kommuninvest 1 Sverige AB
1.000% due 11/12/2026 1,600 162
1,132
( EUR 1,088)
1.8%
1.8%
Credit Suisse AG
1.000% due 06/07/2023 EUR 100 102
Credit Suisse Group AG
1.250% due 07/17/2025 150 154
UBS AG
5.125% due 05/15/2024 (a) $ 200 182
438
( EUR 434)
26.2%
0.5%
Turbo Finance 9 PLC
0.879% due 08/20/2028 GBP 100 117

165/405



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

« )
2021 31
( ) ( )
5.8%
BAT International Finance PLC
3.625% due 11/09/2021 EUR 100 EUR 102
HSBC Holdings PLC
0.162% due 09/27/2022 100 100
3.000% due 07/22/2028 GBP 100 125
Informa PLC
1.250% due 04/22/2028 EUR 200 203
InterContinental Hotels Group PLC
3.875% due 11/28/2022 GBP 100 121
Nationwide Building Society
1.375% due 06/29/2032 EUR 200 225
1.500% due 03/08/2026 150 158
Natwest Group PLC
2.000% due 03/04/2025 150 158
RolIs-Royce PLC
4.625% due 02/16/2026 100 108
Tesco Property Finance 4 PLC
5.801% due 10/13/2040 GBP 96 149
1,449

14.0%
Aggregator of Loans Backed by Assets PLC
0.251% due 03/17/2039 55 62
Avon Finance No.2 PLC
0.949% due 09/20/2048 94 110
Canada Square Funding PLC
1.149% due 10/17/2051 71 83
Canterbury Finance No.3 PLC
1.049% due 05/16/2057 73 86
Eurohome UK Mortgages PLC
0.230% due 06/15/2044 44 51
Eurosail PLC
0.240% due 12/15/2044 7 8
Eurosail-UK PLC
0.230% due 03/13/2045 34 39
Finsbury Square PLC
1.030% due 09/12/2068 50 58
1.048% due 06/16/2069 66 77
1.349% due 06/16/2070 92 108
Great Hall Mortgages No.1 PLC
0.000% due 03/18/2039 EUR 20 20
Hawksmoor Mortgages
1.099% due 05/25/2053 GBP 197 230
Landmark Mortgage Securities No.3 PLC
0.364% due 04/17/2044 34 38
Lanebrook Mortgage Transaction PLC
1.149% due 06/12/2057 97 114
Ludgate Funding PLC
0.250% due 01/01/2061 52 59
Mortimer BTL PLC
1.349% due 06/20/2051 182 214
Polaris PLC
1.299% due 05/27/2057 96 112
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Precise Mortgage Funding PLC
0.760% due 03/12/2055 GBP 103 EUR 120
1.249% due 12/12/2055 100 118
Residential Mortgage Acceptance Corporation Securities No.1 PLC
0.250% due 06/12/2044 142 160
Residential Mortgage Securities 32 PLC
1.299% due 06/20/2070 183 216
Ripon Mortgages PLC
0.881% due 08/20/2056 183 214
Silverstone Master Issuer PLC
0.799% due 01/21/2070 66 78
Southern Pacific Securities PLC
0.377% due 03/10/2044 25 29
Stratton Mortgage Funding
0.948% due 07/20/2060 97 114
Stratton Mortgage Funding PLC
0.000% due 09/25/2051 100 116
0.949% due 03/12/2052 94 109
Towd Point Mortgage Funding Auburn 14 PLC
0.949% due 05/20/2045 186 217
Towd Point Mortgage Funding Granite4 PLC
1.111% due 10/20/2051 194 227
Tower Bridge Funding PLC
1.419% due 09/20/2063 98 115
Trinity Square PLC
0.000% due 07/15/2059 100 117
Twin Bridges PLC
0.860% due 09/12/2044 56 65
3,484
5.9%
United Kingdom Gilt
0.625% due 06/07/2025 (f) 350 414
1.625% due 10/22/2054 (f) 208 265
3.250% due 01/22/2044 (f) 450 726
3.500% due 07/22/2068 28 59
1,464
6,514
( EUR 6,332)
14.8%
0.3%
SLM Student Loan Trust
0.630% due 03/15/2038 GBP 70 79
6.4%
American Tower Corp.
1.375% due 04/04/2025 EUR 100 104
Amgen, Inc.
1.250% due 02/25/2022 100 101
AT&T, Inc.
0.310% due 09/05/2023 100 101
Bank of America Corp.
0.244% due 05/04/2023 150 151
0.808% due 05/09/2026 150 154
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BAT Capital Corp.
2.764% due 08/15/2022 $ 100 EUR 83
Citigroup, Inc.
0.500% due 01/29/2022 EUR 100 101
Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.
0.093% due 09/09/2022 100 102
0.466% due 04/30/2024 100 101
0.875% due 01/21/2030 100 101
1.625% due 07/27/2026 150 160
Liberty Mutual Group, Inc.
2.750% due 05/04/2026 100 112
Zimmer Biomet Holdings, Inc.
2.425% due 12/13/2026 200 222
1,593
3.0%
Banc of America Mortgage Trust
2.581% due 02/25/2035 $ 36 30
BCAP LLC Trust
4.826% due 03/26/2037 26 22
Chase Mortgage Finance Trust
3.094% due 01/25/2036 40 32
CS First Boston Mortgage Securities Corp.
0.758% due 03/25/2032 2 2
Downey Savings & Loan Association Mortgage Loan Trust
0.938% due 09/19/2044 42 33
GSAMP Trust
0.372% due 06/25/2036 41 33
JPMorgan Mortgage Acquisition Trust
0.222% due 08/25/2036 41 33
MASTR Asset-Backed Securities Trust
0.872% due 02/25/2034 38 31
0.917% due 10/25/2034 136 110
Residential Accredit Securities Corporation Trust
1.817% due 11/25/2034 117 97
Sequoia Mortgage Trust
0.479% due 06/20/2036 104 83
Soundview Home Loan Trust
0.342% due 10/25/2036 250 200
Structured Asset Securities Corporation Mortgage Loan Trust
0.227% due 07/25/2036 9 7
WaMu Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates Trust
0.552% due 04/25/2045 26 21
1.627% due 02/27/2034 14 12
746
2.9%
Fannie Mae
2.944% due 07/25/2039 35 31
Freddie Mac
0.465% due 01/15/2038 27 22
2.122% due 01/15/2038 (b) 27 2
2.490% due 09/01/2037 53 46
3.500% due 09/01/2048 108 94
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Ginnie Mae
0.625% due 10/20/2062 $ 52 EUR 43
0.860% due 01/20/2066 133 111
0.890% due 09/20/2066 144 120
0.910% due 06/20/2066 143 119
0.910% due 07/20/2066 71 59
0.960% due 11/20/2066 76 64
711
2.2%
Treasury Inflation Protected Securities
0.125% due 07/15/2030 (c) 599 543
3,672
( EUR 3,774)
3.2%
1.7%
Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Ltd.
(0.200%) due 06/01/2021 AUD 1 0
0.005% due 06/01/2021 $ 2 2
Bank of Nova Scotia
0.005% due 06/01/2021 1 1
BNP Paribas Bank
(0.550%) due 06/01/2021 DKK 4 1
0.005% due 06/01/2021 NzD 1 0
0.005% due 06/01/2021 SGD 2 1
0.005% due 06/01/2021 $ 2 2
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
(0.270%) due 06/01/2021 SEK 1 0
(0.130%) due 06/01/2021 NOK 2 0
3.750% due 06/01/2021 ZAR 11 1
Citibank N.A.
0.005% due 06/01/2021 $ 1 1
Credit Suisse AG
(1.360%) due 06/01/2021 CHF 1 1
DnB Bank ASA
(0.780%) due 06/01/2021 EUR 67 67
HSBC Bank PLC
(0.780%) due 06/01/2021 235 235
JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A.
0.005% due 06/01/2021 $ 3 2
Royal Bank of Canada
0.010% due 06/01/2021 CAD 1 1
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corp.
(0.780%) due 06/01/2021 EUR 61 61
0.005% due 06/01/2021 GBP 4 5
0.005% due 06/01/2021 $ 1 1
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Ltd.
(0.310%) due 06/01/2021 \ 1 0
0.005% due 06/01/2021 GBP 26 30
0.005% due 06/01/2021 $ 1 1
413
1.5%
(0.034%) due 01/05/2022 (d) ILS 100 25
(0.024%) due 02/02/2022 (e) 800 202
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(0.024%) due 11/30/2021 (e) ILS 600 EUR 152
379
792
( EUR 793)
120.8% EUR 30,028
( EUR 29,990)
@) 0.0% 3
( $(49)
(20.8%) (5,162)
100..0% EUR 24,869
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©
@
®
BPS (0.580%) 05/20/2021 08/19/2021 EUR (598) EUR (598)
BPS (0.550%) 05/20/2021 08/19/2021 (1,716) (1,716)
BPS (0.520%) 05/20/2021 08/19/2021 (929) (929)
BPS (0.500%) 05/20/2021 08/19/2021 (83) (83)
BPS (0.420%) 05/13/2021 08/19/2021 (100) (100)
BPS (0.400%) 05/13/2021 08/19/2021 (100) (100)
BPS 0.100% 05/13/2021 08/12/2021 GBP (215) (251)
BRC (0.550%) 05/20/2021 08/19/2021 (749) (749)
MEI (0.020%) 05/13/2021 08/12/2021 (306) (356)
MEI 0.090% 05/13/2021 08/12/2021 (556) (6471
EUR ,529
30 31 90 90
EUR 0 EWR 0 EWR (5,529) EUR 0 EWR (5,529)
EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR (5,529) EUR 0 EWR (5,529)
EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR (5,529) EUR 0 EWR (5,529)
EUR 5,529
2021 31 C )
() 2021 31 5,571
« ) ®
BPS EUR 0 EUR (8,777) EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR (B3,777) EUR 3,816 EUR 39
BRC 0 (749) 0 0 (749) 755 6
MEI 0 (1,003) 0 0 (1,003) 1,000 )
EUR 0 EWR (5,529) EUR 0 EUR 0
(1)2021 31 4,301 (0.370%)
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Canada Government 10-Year Bond September Futures Short  09/2021 6 EUR (2) EWR 3 EUR 0
Euro-Bobl 5-Year Note June Futures Long 06/2021 13 5 0 (€))
Euro-BTP 10-Year Bond September Futures Long  09/2021 9 4 4 0
Euro-BTP 3-Year Note June Futures Long  06/2021 6 1 0 0
Euro-Bund 10-Year Bond June Futures Long  06/2021 4 0 2 0
Euro-Bund 10-Year Bond September Futures Short 0972021 10 2 1 0
Euro-OAT 10-Year Bond June Futures Long  06/2021 11 13 0 3)
Euro-Schatz 2-Year Note June Futures Long  06/2021 3 0 1 0
Euro-Schatz 2-Year Note September Futures Short  09/2021 27 0 0 0
U.S. Treasury 5-Year Note September Futures Long 09/2021 13 1 1 0
U.S. Treasury 20-Year Bond September Futures Short  09/2021 3 @) 0 (¢D)
U.S. Treasury Ultra 30-Year Bond September Futures Short  09/2021 2 (€)) 0 (€D)
United Kingdom Treasury 10-Year Gilt September Futures Long  09/2021 15 6 0 ®)
Call Option Strike @ EUR 170.500 Euro-Bund 10-Year
1
Bond August 2021 Futures™ Short  07/2021 4 @ 0 o)
Call Option Strike @ EUR 172.000 Euro-Bund 10-Year
1
Bond July 2021 Futures™ Short  06/2021 2 0 0 @
Call Option Strike @ EUR 181.000 Euro-Bund 10-Year
Bond August 2021 Futures® Long  07/2021 5 0 0 0
Call Option Strike @ EUR 114.300 Euro-Schatz 2-Year
Note September 2021 Futures™® Long  08/2021 24 0 0 0
Put Option Strike @ EUR 170.500 Euro-Bund 10-Year Bond
1
August 2021 Futures™ Short  07/2021 4 2 0 ®)
Put Option Strike @ EUR 172.000 Euro-Bund 10-Year Bond
July 2021 Futures™® Short  06/2021 2 2 0 ®)

EUR 30 EWR 12 ELR (29)
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2021 05 31
( ) ®) @ ®
ELO SACA 1.000% 12/20/2027 1.057% EUR 100 EUR 0 EUR 1 EURO EUR O
C )]

6-Month EURIBOR 0.000% 03/17/2036 EUR 300 EUR 16 EUR (B)EUIR 1 EWR O

UK Retail Price Index 0.000% 01/15/2031 GBP 675 32) 6) 0 ®)

US CPI Urban Consumers NSA 0.000% 01/19/2022 $ 500 ®) (¢D) 1 0

US CPI Urban Consumers NSA 0.000% 01/21/2022 140 (&) 0 0 0

EUR  (26) EUR (10) EU 2 EUR(2)

EUR (26) EUR (9) EUR 2 EUR(2)

2021 31
2021 31 223

EUR 0 EWR 12 EWR 2 EWR 14 EWR 0 EUR (29) EUR (2) EUR (31)
@
&)
®
O]
®
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(W]
BOA 06/2021 $ 789 ILS 2,564 EWR 1 EUR )
BOA 08/2021 7 CzK 145 0 0
BOA 08/2021 2 RUB 182 0 0
BOA 09/2021 6 PLN 23 0 0
BOA 04/2022 DKK 6,868 EUR 923 0 0
BPS 06/2021 CNH 39 $ 6 0 0
BPS 06/2021 $ 18 EUR 15 0 0
BPS 06/2021 12 RUB 947 1 0
BPS 07/2021 15 EUR 12 0 0
BPS 02/2022 CAD 33 $ 27 0 0
BPS 04/2022 DKK 100 EUR 13 0 0
BRC 09/2021 $ 4 PLN 15 0 0
CBK 06/2021 16 RUB 1,213 0 0
CBK 08/2021 86 HUF 25,835 4 0
CBK 08/2021 2 RUB 166 0 0
CBK 1172021 ILS 500 $ 154 1 )
CBK 01/2022 211 65 0 @
CBK 01/2022 100 31 0 0
CBK 02/2022 3,367 1,028 8 18)
GLM 06/2021 EUR 131 158 0 @
GLM 06/2021 IDR 849,236 58 1 ®
GLM 06/2021 $ 135 CNH 889 4 0
GLM 07/2021 2 RUB 138 0 0
GLM 08/2021 EUR 288 NOK 2,920 0 ©)
GLM 08/2021 GBP 619 EUR 720 1 0
GLM 08/2021 NZD 358 212 0 @
GLM 08/2021 SEK 8,095 796 0 @
GLM 08/2021 $ 250 NZD 356 7 0
GLM 08/2021 9 RUB 705 0 0
GLM 08/2021 148 SEK 1,285 5 0
GLM 09/2021 6 PLN 24 0 0
GLM 01/2022 ILS 106 $ 32 0 0
GLM 04/2022 DKK 195 EUR 26 0 0
HUS 06/2021 CNH 387 $ 59 0 ©)
HUS 06/2021 INR 23,057 311 3 ©)
HUS 08/2021 EUR 208 AUD 326 0 O
HUS 08/2021 415 CHF 454 0 @
HUS 08/2021 $ 5 RUB 373 0 0
HUS 09/2021 7 PLN 27 0 0
HUS 01/2022 ILS 106 $ 33 1 0
HUS 04/2022 DKK 8,709 EBR 1,170 0 0
HUS 04/2022 EUR 84 DKK 625 0 )
JPM 06/2021 27 $ 33 0 0
JPM 08/2021 $ 100 SEK 861 3 0
JPM 1172021 ILS 200 $ 62 1 )
JPM 04/2022 DKK 500 EUR 67 0 0
JPM 04/2022 EUR 88 DKK 655 0 0
WY1 06/2021 DKK 126 EUR 17 0 0
WY1 06/2021 $ 175 CNH 1,150 5 0
WY1 07/2021 3 RUB 192 0 0
WY1 08/2021 CAD 1,081 EUR 733 0 0
WY1 04/2022 DKK 270 36 0 0
RBC 06/2021 $ 311 INR - 22,997 5 0
scX 06/2021 4,435 EBR 3,682 41 0
SCX 06/2021 310 IDR 4,506,976 8 ®
SCX 07/2021 4,330 EBR 3,539 0 0
SCX 08/2021 EUR 240 GBP 207 0 0
SCX 08/2021 $ 3 CZK 73 0 0
S06 08/2021 3 RUB 208 0 0
UAG 06/2021 3 213 0 0
UAG 07/2021 5 356 0 0

EUR 100 EUR (48)
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Put - OTC 30-Year

BPS Interest Rate Swap 6-Month EURIBOR 0.195%  11/02/2022 100 EUR 0 EUR 14
Put - OTC 30-Year

BPS Interest Rate Swap 6-Month EURIBOR 0.197% 11/04/2022 150 9 21
Put - OTC 30-Year

BPS Interest Rate Swap 6-Month EURIBOR 0.000% 03/15/2023 200 19 37
Put - OTC 30-Year Sterling Overnight

BRC Interest Rate Swap Interbank Average Rate 0.900% 03/10/2022 100 8 8
Put - OTC 30-Year Sterling Overnight

GLM Interest Rate Swap Interbank Average Rate 0.900% 03/10/2022 100 7 8
Call - OTC 5-Year

MYC Interest Rate Swap 3-Month USD-LIBOR 0.700% 08/24/2021 1,200 4 1
Put - OTC 30-Year

MYC Interest Rate Swap 6-Month EURIBOR 0.190% 11/02/2022 100 6 14

EUR 53 EUR 103
( ) @

Call - OTC 2-Year

BPS Interest Rate Swap 6-Month EURIBOR (0.200%) 05/26/2023 1,800 EUR (8)EUR (8)
Put - OTC 2-Year Interest

BPS Rate Swap 6-Month EURIBOR (0.200%) 05/26/2023 1,800 8) (@)
Put - OTC 10-Year

BPS Interest Rate Swap 6-Month EURIBOR 0.000%  11/02/2022 300 0 (13)
Put - OTC 10-Year

BPS Interest Rate Swap 6-Month EURIBOR 0.000%  11/04/2022 300 (6) (13)
Put - OTC 10-Year

BPS Interest Rate Swap 6-Month EURIBOR (0.175%) 03/15/2023 600 (19) (38)
Put - OTC 10-Year Sterling Overnight

BRC Interest Rate Swap Interbank Average Rate 0.800% 03/10/2022 300 (©)) (©))
Put - OTC 10-Year

BRC Interest Rate Swap 6-Month EURIBOR 0.000%  11/04/2022 150 A3) (6)
Put - OTC 10-Year

DUB Interest Rate Swap 3-Month USD-LIBOR 2.300% 09/29/2021 600 (O] (€H)
Call - OTC 1-Year

GLM Interest Rate Swap 3-Month EURIBOR (0.526%) 11/17/2022 2,100 A3) (€H)
Put - OTC 10-Year Sterling Overnight

GLM Interest Rate Swap Interbank Average Rate 0.800% 03/10/2022 300 (©) (©))
Call - OTC 5-Year

MYC Interest Rate Swap 3-Month USD-LIBOR 0.550% 08/24/2021 2,400 A3) 0
Put - OTC 10-Year

MYC Interest Rate Swap 6-Month EURIBOR 0.000% 11/02/2022 300 (6) (13)
Call - OTC 1-Year Sterling Overnight

RYL Interest Rate Swap Interbank Average Rate 0.050% 03/24/2022 5,500 (©) (©)
Put - OTC 1-Year Interest Sterling Overnight

RYL Rate Swap Interbank Average Rate 0.100% 03/24/2022 5,500 7 9
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1

( ) (O]
BOA Put - CDX.1G-36 Index Sell 0.750%  08/18/2021 200 EUR 0 EUR O
BRC Put - iTraxx Europe Series 34 Index Sell 0.850%  06/16/2021 300 0 0
BRC Put - iTraxx Europe Series 35 Index Sell 0.700%  07/21/2021 200 0 0
BRC Put - iTraxx Europe Series 35 Index Sell 0.750%  08/18/2021 800 (€D) (€D)
FBF Call - CDX.1G-35 Index Buy 0.450%  06/16/2021 200 0 0
FBF Call - CDX.1G-36 Index Buy 0.475%  08/18/2021 100 0 0
FBF Put - CDX.1G-35 Index Sell 0.800%  06/16/2021 200 0 0
FBF Put - CDX.1G-36 Index Sell 0.800%  08/18/2021 400 (€)) 0
GST Put - iTraxx Europe Series 34 Index Sell 0.750%  07/21/2021 200 0 0
EUR  (2)EUR (1)

1

( ) w ¢

BPS Call - OTC U.S. dollar versus Canadian dollar CAD 1.265 02/11/2022 130 EUR (DEWR @D

(Y]
GSC Call - Fannie Mae $ 101.227 07/07/2021 100 EUR 0 EUR O
GSC Put - Fannie Mae 103.758 06/07/2021 200 (€H) 0
GSC Put - Fannie Mae 103.895 06/07/2021 100 0 0
JPM Put - Ginnie Mae 102.297 08/12/2021 1,000 ® ®

EIR  (HER (3)

EUR _ (97) EUR(135)
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2021 31
2021 31
© 1SDA 2021 31 16
@
BOA ELR 1 EWR O EUR 0 EIR 1 EWR (1) EUR O EIR 0 EIR (1)EUR O EIR 0 EIRR O
BPS 1 72 0 73 0 (80) 0 (80) 0 0 0
BRC 0 8 0 8 0 16) 0 (16) ®) 0 )
CBK 13 0 0 13 20) 0 0 (20) 6 0 6
DUB 0 0 0 0 0 @ 0 @ @ 0 @
FBF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
GLM 18 8 0 26 6 10) 0 an 9 0 9
6SC 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 16 16
GST 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
HUS 4 0 0 4 15) 0 0 (15) (11) 0 1)
JPM 4 0 0 4 @ ) 0 0 0 0 0
MYC 0 15 0 15 0 @13) 0 @13) 2 0 2
N 5 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 5 0 5
RBC 5 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 5 0 5
RYL 0 0 0 0 0 12) 0 12) 12) 0 12)
SCX 49 0 0 49 ) 0 0 @ 45 0 45
S0G 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
UAG 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
EUR 100 EUR 103 EUR 0 EUR 203 FEUR (48) EUR (135) ELR 0 EUR (183)

*%k

@

@
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2021 31
2021 31
EUR 0 EWR 0 EWR 0 EWR 0 EWR 12 EUR 12
EUR 0 EWR 0 EWR 0 EUR 0 EUR 2 EUR 2
EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR 0 EWR 14 EUR 14
EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR 100 EUR 0 EUR 100
0 0 0 0 103 103
EUR 0 EUR 0 EWR 0 EUR 100 EUR 103 EUR 203
EUR 0 EUR 0 EWR 0 EUR 100 EUR 117 EWR 217
EUR 0 EWR 0 EWR 0 EUR 0 EUR (29) EUR (29)
0 0 0 0 ) &)
EUR 0 EUR 0 EWR 0 EUR 0 EUR (31) EWR (31)
EUR 0 EWR 0 EWR 0 EUR (48) EUR 0 EWR (48)
0 @ 0 @ (133) (135)
EUR 0 EUR (1) EWR 0 EUR (49) EUR (133) EUR (183)
EUR 0 EUR (1) EWR 0 EUR (49) EUR (164) EUR (214)
2021 31
EUR 0 EUR 0 EWR 0 EUR 0 EUR (1) EWR @
0 0 0 0 6 6
0 0 0 0 57 57
0 15 0 0 () (26)
EUR 0 EUR 15 EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR 21 EUR 36
EUR 0 EUR 0 EWR 0 EUR 217 EUR 0 EWR 217
0 0 0 0 (36) (36)
0 23 0 0 67 90
EUR 0 EWR 23 EUR 0 EUR 217 EUR 31 EUR 271
EUR 0 EUR 38 EUR 0 EUR 217 EUR 52 EUR 307
EUR 0 EUR 0 EWR 0 EUR 0 EUR 49 EUR 49
0 ) 0 0 (10) (11)
EUR 0 EUR (1) EWR 0 EUR 0 EUR 39 EUR 38
EUR 0 EUR 0 EWR 0 EUR (5) EWR 0 EWR )
0 0 0 0 (82) (82)
0 1 0 0 110 111
EUR 0 EUR 1 EUR 0 EUR (5) EUR 28 EUR 24
EUR 0 EUR 0 EWR 0 EUR (5) EUR 67 EUR 62
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2021 31
2021 31
2021 31
EUR 0 EUWR 458 EUR 0 EUR 458
0 105 0 105
0 109 0 109
0 923 0 923
0 101 0 101
0 88 0 88
0 2,233 0 2,233
0 100 0 100
0 100 0 100
0 166 0 166
0 408 0 408
0 27 0 27
0 713 0 713
0 908 0 908
0 55 0 55
0 102 0 102
0 101 0 101
0 257 0 257
0 315 0 315
0 101 0 101
0 232 0 232
0 407 0 407
0 1,074 0 1,074
0 613 0 613
0 109 0 109
0 72 0 72
0 853 0 853
0 598 0 598
0 260 0 260
0 200 0 200
0 308 0 308
0 142 0 142
0 80 0 80
0 166 0 166
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2021 31
2021 31
EWR 0 EWR 412 EUR 0 EUR 412
0 101 0 101
0 146 0 146
0 521 0 521
0 2,961 0 2,961
0 855 0 855
0 970 0 970
0 162 0 162
0 438 0 438
0 117 0 117
0 1,449 0 1,449
0 3,484 0 3,484
0 1,464 0 1,464
0 79 0 79
0 1,593 0 1,593
0 746 0 746
0 711 0 711
0 543 0 543
0 792 0 792
EUR 0 EUR 30,028 EUR 0 EUR 30,028
EUR 12 EWR 2 EWR 0 EUR 14
0 203 0 203
EUR 12 EWR 205 EUR 0 EUR 217
29) 0 0 3L)
0 (183) 0 (183)
EUR (29) EUR (185) EUR 0 EUR (214)
EUR (17) ER 30,048 EWR 0 EWR 30,031

2021 31
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Statements of Assets and Liabilities cew
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Statements of Assets and Liabilities cew

AT
Iy o]
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Statements of Assets and Liabilities cew

M=t Aszze1 Vilue and Redemption Price Per Unit Dutstanding:
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Statements of Dperations ceau

e P
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ol - St Town vty
Irwestmant Income:
Imtmret, e o Formpn s ] i Euf 178 5 W7 o
Mescwlia Tl
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o 513 "
Witk AL Mk |
[ Hik 1
KA MLE NA I
Wk 5 [
Kok ! L
K RIA Wik X
[ MLA i i
[ MLk ik 11
ik B ‘] M
K ML L
KA A Nk 41
[ L K o
[1] i i
1 I
[ T 142 i}
Nt Investmant Incoms [Expessel i ] ¥ £ 3, 25
Net Realized Oaim [Loss):
[ rex i setuntien. res of forean e [ :] | B54
(isk] ] A
o 0 18 pi | 1
it i 514
T 3
""" A6 Wi 2
Nst Change in Uassalizad Appenciation [Depeeciation):
Isverimaiy i ecunties, res of foregn oo™ 1 L] L] LEL
(A1 H] 1
[ 12 4ET Fen
= = - ¥
i eiil T EX
P 730094 I 1 401
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Statements of Changes in Net Assets cem

Mt Borl Totn Fltars PRILD el PRI Bt
el Fusd i Fumt T Brmdingsy
Increase (Dezrease) in Net Aszets from:
Operations
| eI NG DT (R | L] EiR i i - 1a] 350
22.710 B26 1068
13,56 46 1306 3 5
Dietiikastions 1o Unitheldars:
[ T Ig I Mi&
Y [ Bk
0 Wik K2 MA
I AL ™ [ o .
| U0 i) [ Mk ik
1 IIRFL K M KA
J IMEN| ML Mk L
Thr N Y Hih
| [1AR Lt KA " WA
= Wik ki A
[E=1s HiA Fu'd, M
Tatal T 13,541 L1 1]
Fund Unit Tremactans:
Nt increace (decramal nahng o Fund ot rasecean” LUEEL] 11, 500 LR 136,529
Total baereasn (Daciaasel in Nat Azl |45420 B 1505 152,431
Nat Aserte:
Begerry al paar 2 ER 15,713 M EM 430,198
Eng of yoar W EUA 4L B5E 43,135 b
h
T addegan g Faled N Rt | My 31, 792
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Statements of Cash Flows

PALT Eirg
PINCT Pl Tatal Astum
Rt Fund Fursd

Cazh fpws from oparsting aetiviies:
It increas i asean eauiieg from opens o ] 1306 ER L]

Adfustments fo reconcile pet increase [docreasad in net assety resefting from
aperations fo net cash provided by opevating sctivittes:

|Purchamesl of kng tam securnies

111 81E 17,543

F i 't saies of leng tarm pecuries HAE
[Pawirertal ¢ i

= 1
LE; THT
nat ™ ]

Desrease m il ]
[escrapss n i | 1.4 B e
[ecrasse n & [ &3 ;|

Lsrase n
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erty purchassd

nereate im mienen payable 1 I
e ddeciess | m accreed ranegenen e 2 L}
Ircraats o accrud desciors des 0 1]
|Decrease! n acoreed agency fm

\rcrmess |éecraasel m accr

Ircrmass |decrgas| m

TRHE N acrred A
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Statements of Cash Flows e

Vaar Ended Way 31, PI21

PIMCD Eurg
PINC L) el Tatnl Astum
Awtum Fund Fusad

Cazh Nows from Knancing activitios:
Pegaimds loen anelg pld

Brimsbunons r wsthokiens, ral of resvsgimeni

Mal cazh provided by fnancing acihilias £ 2

:Hnr fncrease in Cash and Foreign Cwrrency - 0"

Caxh and Foradgn Currancy:
Bagureung of yeas 7

1y

Sppplemental disclosure of cash fow information;
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Financial Highlights jcesu
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to Financial Statement

1. DRGARIZATION

Each Fusd drcussed in thes neport (each a "Fund” and collectively, the “Funds®), whach sha inclades each dlsas o unils of that Fund (sach a "CRass” and collectiely,
the "€ limses™], is o sesies trust of PIMCO Bermuda Trust (the Tt ™)L an open-ended unil tust established under the L of Bermada as & multiSeries trast parsuant
10 @ trusf deed execuled by Winchester Glabal Trust Comparny Limited o Auguit B, 3001 (52 amended ram time 1o ume, the "Tiust Dol ®). Effectve a5 & the dide
al businass. [E assern time) on September 39, 2017, Maples Tnstee Senaces [Bermuda) Limibed (the “Trustes ") was aopomded o trstes of the Trst. Pachc Frastment
Managemert Company LLC {"FIMCO", the “Manager™ or the "investmens Adiser™ | s the sponscr of and was respensible for stnuctunng the Trust

T Trond s siobpect b0 negqulation and superamsion i proveded fon in B Inestment Funds Aot 2006 and telsted wules telating o standaid fnds
The terms.of the Trust Deed confler upon the Trustee, with the consent of the Manager, the powed, In the future, 10-establish further funds in addition to the Funds
currenily in operation & al the cate of this repoit

Aelerances to unitholdets {each, & "Unithelder™, and collectasely, the “Unitholders” ) in, of umsts of (o an imwestmeat in}, the Fund shall mesn Un thalders of the Fund
wivd haold winits, o classes of units (s appbcablel, which ane attrbatable to that Fund

The Funds presented mn this 1epon ale listed below
FILALT Bervsrts Farge Live Diarmren Fosl Ol arly mn harudn ks i i of Fonis® wrvess, 8 defsed @8 e vl 0 i Isaenma Tty
PR Ewrreanta 1 5 oo [horeess Furd Esiaoates, Jwin, i 59 lehes weth § bl siRstum n peg e prsicaen
PIRCT Errargng Marknis Boad Ford [HTT)
FIRICD Ervobrging Mariones Baad Fueed | Ven Hidpes
FIACT] Ervatrgping Midrkats Bend Fueed 1)

FIRIC) fuuss Tt Beters Fued

Dlerest 1n mensd vsions i Jupmn By way o poble :Ii::q; tesegh & Ectibue 0 lapen, rd my

LT Pl Fesarn Fand e ofured 12 other mvestars o the deowien of The Maraged
FRCD Sor-Tamn Sy | ptared 13wl vz i Jugnn iy wry o] pebic femg Paegh § Smrbume sadi § Sl

| vy cargury 1 Sapae. and mry ba Sl fo e varian o the dncretan of the Massger
PRI Errwrpng Markeis Basd Fund (M| DHared eely 10 acter Fands by serve oa o underiong rvesrent setacie for such Funde

| PPF e’ TR (e o P TR et Lt ey i el iy 10 A it o Tand' o Vel i, o il & e et o e ey (o) dirames, et o 17 el aa J ilel dview o iy SR il e

B am ' CMCTY et T Sranvgy 4 efenr’ sy A oo [l i e ) o8 ey ny ey asfei br s s

Uinits of the PIMCO Euro Total Retum Fund, PIMCO AReal Retem Fond, and AUD, Y, and USD Classes of PIMCO Shor-Tesm Strategy have been registered under the
Financial Instrumenits. and Exchange Law of fapan. Units of each of the mmamning Funds and the C {USDY, ) {FY}, and | (U50) Cléetses of PINCO Shor-Term Strabegy
hawe not been and are rot cumently expecied 1o be registered under the Fnencisl Instiuments ard Exchange Law of lapan. Accordingly, such Units of these Funds may
not b, directly or brckrectly, offered in Japan of 1o any resident in Japan, evcept in complianoe with applicabls lapaness laws and 1egulations

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Thw bofigwing i a surnmary of signiliant soopunting policies consistently Toliowed by the Tt in the preparation of its [mangal statemmenty in conformity with
aooounting principles generally acoepted in the United States of America {™U.5, GAAP™). Each Fund i reated as an investment company under the reparting
iefquiemenls of LS GAAP The peepatation of {nsnoial atsmest in accoedanis with U S GAAP ieqinied management b Mike sANmates and maumpiand that
affect the reporied amounts of assets and liabdites and discosure of contingent awsets and lakilities at the date of the finandal statements and the reported amounts
af increases and decreades in net assets from operations during the reponing period. Actual sewu’es could differ from those estimates

\m) Aewuired Funds The Trustes and (ke Massger may apoly al o 4 portos of the assets of FIMCO Emengrg Markets Bond Fund {IITF], FIMCO Emergeg Markets
Bord Fund (¥en-Hedged), and PINCO Emaenging Markets Bond Fund B {each refemed 1o harein as 2 “Fund of Funds® or the “Acgaining Furd”, wiich invests in other
Furedyl o the iespectve oedit of the PRMCO Emerging Madkets Bond Fund (M} [rederied bo berem a3 an “Acquived Fend{s)"]. Any assets 10 sopbed will be held mososch
Aoquited Funish as if recewed dreatly Whene assels are 5o apphed, the Aogured Fund(s) will neoord chi e of wnits to the relesant Aoiusting Fursd 1 the S5ue prive
did it 6l such usabt &0d well repunchane such units 81 the repurchati pocs pod et al wel ufets 51 the time ol repuschne

Ratios shoeam im the Financial Wighlighty do not include expenses of the Acguined Fanddy) Soe Wote §, Fees and Experise, lor further information mgading fhend fees
a5 npplcaide

i Seowtities Trassactians and lmvestmeant Incame S0 Ted lanwarer, s ieeorded s ool the vade date for linancial epaitng puiposes Secuntes punchated of
sold on & when-issued or delayed-delivery bass may be settled bepond a standand settfement pericd Bor she seauify afier the trade date. Realized gains and losses
Tresmm st s sold are receedind on the identified cost bass. Dividend income 4 reconded on the ex-divisend date, enceptl cortain dividends fiom freign secunties
wisere the ex-daidend date may have passed, which a'e recorded 23 1000 & a Fond & mformed of the ex-diadend date Interest income, adjusted for the aconetion of
discounts ard amortization of premiums, & recorded on the acomal basis from setement date, with the exception of sequnties with a forwand starting effective date,
where nteres] income i 1econded on the acorual b fiom eBle(ie date For comstibile sequrme, premiarms altribatable 1o the convertion feasure aie not
amortoed Estimated tax labilfies on cortan farpign secunties are recorded on an acruad basey and aee sofiected as components of inférest income or net change
inteakeed apgeeciation [depreciatnn) on inwestments on the Statements of Opem o, &5 appropeiace. Tax labilies realred a5 2 resu® of sach spounity sales are
ieflecked a5 8 component of nef reakzed gain (l05s) an Emesiments on (he Statements of Operators. Paydngn gass and ested on momngage-ieleiead and otrers

et Ri1 | Mi) 31, 2220

189/405



s F

inancial Statements

arssel-nacked securibes, o any, are recorded as comganents of inferest mcome
an B Statermants of Operationt, Detil chiigations may be placed on non-
ancrual status and refated intenest incoma may be reduced by ceasing qument
atcruaks and varicing alf insereit recervable when the collecion ol all or a
poitian ol intenest hes became doubtful Based oo consistently applied
prodedures. A deit obligation is remaved fom non-accrusd status when the
Fusues esurres interest payments of when collectabdity of inenest & siobable

e} Cash and Feauign Cosveney Thw Firancisl stalements of gach Fund ane
presernted using the currerdy of the frimary ecoroma emasanment in which it
aperates (the “lnctons currency™) The hmctional cumeney o pach ol the
Fureds is Bsted im the below table

T mariet values of foseign seaurities, curency holdings and ofner assets
and habilities ang tramvlated into each Fund™s tunctional currency based on the
curent enchangs rates each husiness day Purchases and sales of seourities
and intome and expere ies desarenated in daisign cumencies, Il any, are
renslased brin each Fund's nespective funciional cunency at the exchamge
rate in offect on the transaction date. The Funds dio not soparately report the
eftects ol changes in foresgn exchange rates from changes in markel peices on
secutities held, Such changes are included in net reslized and nel changes in
unieakeed gain oo loss from Ewestments o the Statements of Opevabions

The Funds may nvedt = larelgn curieney denommmated seoaies and may
TR in forpign currency bransartions either an a spot [rash) basis at the
fang privaisng in the cumendy exchance marke 21 1he time or through a
forward doreign currency contradt, Realized foreign exchange gains or lses
artsing from sales of spot foreign cumencies, cumendy gains. or lodses reafizad
Detween e trade and serlement dates on Securntes Mansactians aed the
diflenc e between the ieconded amounty of dividends, meed, and fosign
withholdieg taes and the functesal cerency scuivalent of the amounts
sctually recenved or paid &'e intluded in nat ‘oalined gain or low on foresgn
currency transactions on the Statements of Operaticrs. Net umrealized foreign
eathange gains and krsses atrsing freem changes in foreign eachangs ra1es an
lonesgn denominated assets and abdities other than investments in securities
Fvelcd at the end of the 1epoiting period ate included in net change in
unteakzed appreciation of depreciation on foreign comency asoets and
hakslities on the Statements of Opserations

The Met Asset Value | "MAN" ) aod total retums of cetain Funds (or Classes
thereal, & spphcable) ang prevented m thie currendy for whsth the NAY i
reported {the "NAW currency "] as detailed in sach Fund's Ofesing
Memerandum (the "l:ﬂ'lrcmg Memorandum”). For the puipoaes of the
presentation of the NAY and the total retumn in the NAY curengy, the
begneing and ending MAYs are converted using the penod begnning and
kg enchaige jates, respecinely, and detributions aie comeited wing the
{-:u;l':mlr rabe af the tmo of the dstnbugion See H'-r!mi'uq table for the
WAY cutrency of each neipective Fund:

FurdTlese.
 FIMED Bermada Forasgn Low Dusanon Faed)
TR a0 Fnd
| WED Emerprg bariass Bond Fued LITTY |
FIMCD Emaepng Markast Bard Fund () [ 5. dor U5 ool
|+
| FINGO fmerging Markoss Bond s (tanfidged] | Jpwsesepen | U5 ol
AMCD imargrg Markees Baret Fund 1 [ dmssecayn | 15 col
« JERL
= laon
= JUNR)
L
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T Dt
4 (18T

= J[TARI Japiriess yan U5 doler
PIWCD Eurs Terad Revarn Fard = Eus
PEACT) Fins Rturn Fund 115 coler | US oot
PAMCE) SthorTeem Stratagy

& M0 Asmtisken folar | U8 doker

+  Cash LS. dollar U5 daler

® JIFN Lpinene yin U5 dnlar

iU Jpurteth U5 dolla

TR L v L5 dolar

+ 15D 1S dalar g seler

i Multiclass Dperations  Each Clea ol o Fusd olfened by the Tiust has
tights 10 the assets of the Fund egqual 1o that of other Clases of the same
Fund, except for specilic assats ard gaing and losses designated to a Class
redabing 1o currency hedgng operations. Income, non-Clads spedfic expemet,
anedd rom-Class specific realized and unrealized capial gains and bosses are
alocated bo eath Class of units based on the selathe fet assets of sk Class
ol the respective Fund Class specific expenies cutrently indude
management, abwsory, administrative, MLy, ard dntibution Teer, whan
aoglicable

el Diatribution Paliay The doflewing tatile shows the asticingted frequency
af distributions for each Furd fatibutions fom each Fund may be declaied
andd devinibuted In Unitholders cnly upan the authaization of the Marage,
which aushotizanian may be withield at the Manager's discretion

PMICD Een Tont Betam Fund

Declmed and Paid Maatiy:

MO Ermergng Mackats Band Fond LETF
IR Erret g Mlarkine lasdl Fured (Yiee-Hedged|
PIRCT Ermigg Markits Band Furd Il
FILCT Feorn Taem Srmegy
- J I
J |
Mevimed and Pald Qusriwrly:
FIKICT Berrrasdn Farmg L Dutsben Fund
FIMITE Berrasty U5 Lo Dot Fond
| Docloed andPii huesate |
b Bl P Furd
PO Soors-Teem Sirnagy

Masager diees nad avpect 1o declaie diatvibotlon with repee! b this Fand
fur Classe therwol, I applizabial, but may, In is dlsesetion, deslass and pay
fime,

FRCD Ervwerpng Markcy B Furd NI

Destributions, if @y, wall generally be made lom the selevant Fund's (or
Class's, if apglicable] net investment income. In additon, the Manage: mey
asthorize the paymard of net realaed capital gains available dor dstribution
Addsanal detribunions may be declaned as the Manager desms appropriate
Distributions paid with newpect o day Fund (or Class theneol, i applicabie)
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wll reduce Bhe HAY of 2uch Fand {or Class theredl, o ﬂ|:|'.'||!'.H.IE:| Allhe
discreton ol the Unitholdars, cash dsiributions from a Fond (o Class Shereal,
f applcabie) may either be reimvested in additonal units of a Fund {or Clas
therzal, il apphcable) or pald 1@ Unithelder im cash. Cash payments will be
pisd ia the NAY currency of the Fund Each Fund for Class thereod, o
apphcakle) may declare further distnbutions if considered nacessary in andes
lo maintan a reasonable el of distnbations lor & Fund for Class thereof, d
appicatio). Inthe evenl tha tere B nadequate nel ncome and net reained
capital gains 1 pay & distribuson of 2 Fund jor Class thereod, if applicable)
soquiied by the Offedirg Memoiandum, the Mansge may pay & dstihubon
conslsting of a portion of the cagetal of such Fund [or Class thereof, if
Apabcatdel Dathutions nol colecied wethin 40 :.!m..‘!.r' thewr due date
will lapse v will avcenae 8o the bennfit of the relewant Fund or Class thereof,
il apphcakie)

1] Mawy Bezounting Pr t3 and Regalatory Updates In March
2020, the Frandal Atooustng Standsids Boad (” FASE *) msued &0
Meocoumiing Standards Updage ("ASU" |, ASL 2020-04, whech provides
aptinral quidance 1o sase the potensial acoounting burden assoniated with
transitionig away fiom the London Interbark Crifered Rate (LIBOR") and
athar teleience rates that are expecied by be discontineed . The ASU 7
effectve immediately upon release of the update om Manch 12, 2030 theough
December 31, 2022, AL this ime, mansgenent i evalasing the implcalions
al thewe changes on 1he linancial slatements

A INVESTMENT WALUATION AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

|x) Envexrtmant Valustion Policies The prce of a furd s units & based on
the Fund's NAV. The MAN of a Fund, or sach of s Classes, as appicable, &
determingd by dnading e total value al portioho investments and other
sl aitiibutsbdy to thal Fund or CRass, bess any liabilties, by (be 107l
number of weits gutstanding of that Fund or Class. Om each Fund's Dealing
Duery {as described in the cument Offerng Memorandurs ef the

Tiust], Fussd wnits ane ocdinacily walued & of the dode of regular trading on
thie New York Steck Exchange { "NYSE Close™ ) Information that beccesss
kneran 1o ke Funds or thelr agents after the time 4 aof wheeh NAV has Been
calculated on a partcular diy will not genecally be wied B0 etmacteely adind
the price of 2 secwity or the NAY determired eatlier that day. Each Fund
teserves the right to change the time 23 of whiach #s NAY is caloulsged if

the Fund closes earlier

Fer purposes of calculating NAY, portiolio securities and osher assets for
whah bl quotes are readly avallable ae valusd &1 maikel vadee. Maiket
valug 5 genarally determined on the basis of official closing prces or the last
reporied salss priges, or if ra sales are reported, Based on guotes obiained
Trem enatiburad marker makers o prices Grclodeg svaluaned peices) supplied
try the Funds' approved priong wWriichs, quotation |fpur|ine] systerms o
atheer third-party sources {iogether, "Pricing Senaces”} The Funds will
nonmally e pricing data lor domestic aquity wcurities iecennd shartly after
the N¥SE Close and do not rarmally take ina accoust trading. dearances af
settiemenis that take place afier the NYSE Close ¥ marked value pricing i+
uted, a foreagn [non-UL 5. ) equity securty traded on 4 fantign mchange o an
mare than one exchange & typically valued using priong information fom the
enthange ¢ermiceied by FIMCO 1o be the primary exchange. A& foreign [man-
U5 ] equity security will be valsed a3 of the dose of trading on the forcign
eachange, or the NYSE Close, # the NYSE Close ooours bedore the end of
1radineg on the foreign exchange. Domestic and (onegn (san-U 5. ) fned
noome securities, non-exchange traded deratives, ard equity options ane
normally vakied on the Basis of quotes chtained From brokers and dealers or
Prcing Senaced ieling wach dats refiecting the prncspad market for thote
wecunities, Prices obtained from Pricing Services may be based on, among
ather things, infermatian provided by matket makers of estimates of markel

walues cttiined from yeld data relatag to vestrents of securiies with
srmilar chacachemtits. Cevtain loed Income securtiies puichased ona
dalayed-celreery hanas are marked 1o market caily untd seftlement at the
forward senberent dae. Eachasge-traded options, exepl eguty options,
futures and options on futures are waloed 8 the e tilement e detemined
By the refvant ethange, quotes clbtaired from a guotation reporting sistem,
eitatimhed markel MAkers of Priang seriies Sawap agreemens 2re valoed
an the basis of market-based prices. supplied by Przing Senaces o guolm
abitnined fraem Beakers and desfors. & Fund's wemients in open-end
management insstmen] tompanies, ol than enthange-traded fusds
§"ETFs™ ], are valued a1 the MaVs of such imnestments

fHa Ir:rqu]n [ L) 5.} equity security's value has materially chan qu alver the
cherbe of the Securdy’s primary exchange o principal market but bedore the
MYSE Cloae, the secunity may be walued 2 fair vals Baded on procadurs
estabiished and approved by the Wanage Foreign [nor-LL% | equity

secif s than da nat trade when the NTSE 15 open are also valued at Rair
valug With respoct o Toreign [ron-UL5.) equity socutites, a Fund may
datermine the fall valse of nvestments basad on infeemation prowded :-'f
Pricing Fervices and other thind-party vendoo, wheeh may reconmend Ler
value o adjustments with eeference to othor securitics, méioes or assets. In
mn;idp-'ir.g whather fair vaksafion s mequied and in determining fain

walues, & Fund may, among ather things, contider sigrificant ewents (which
ray be considered o include changes in the value of U 5. securibes o

oo et indice] tha? ocos sfter 1he cloce ol the relevam market and balane
the NYSE Cloie A Fund may wtice modeing 1ooks peovided by thed -party
wersdors 10 detesmine fair values of foieign (nen-U.5 ) securities. For (hese
paipoies, any movemend in the applicable referente svdex ar inatrument

1" o tigger” | between the sarfer dose of the applicable foeorgr marked
awd the NY3E Chose may be deemed to be & i-";"llrILi"E &ent, prompting the
soplication of the pogng model (eflecively reultrg e daily fan

waluations). Farzign achanges may permit trading in foregn (none U 5}
equity seculites on days when e Trust is rot cpen Tor business, which may
tialt in & Fund's partfolio imesiments Seing aMeoed whin Unithalders ai
wndble to buy or sell units

Sanior secured floating rate keans for which an acihe secondary market exisis
10 4 reliable degrés well be valued At the mean of the last avadable baddsik
grices in the market for such loam, s ovided by & Pricing Service. Senge
secieed Tloating rate loars for which an active secondary masket does not
exrid to & rebable degres will be valeed at Tair value, which & intended to
aoprocmate market vakse. 'n valuing a senéor secured figabing rate loan at
len value, the facios considened may include, but ae mot limited 1o, the
folkwmng: (3] the credibwarthings af the boingwer and dny sieimediate
participants, (b the 1erms of the loan, (c] recent prices in the mariket for
similar loans, If any, and {d) recent prices in the market for nsnements of
samilor quality, rate, pericd wrtil next mtanes rate rese! and mahty

Ireviimants vailoed in curencios other than the functioral cemancy

aof & Fund &re conserted to the functional oumency using exchange rates
aatained fom Pricing Services, Asa rewlt, the value of sch investiments and,
ir fumm, the NAY of the Fund's units may be affected by changes i the value
ol tumrencied o reation 1o the funcional oenency The value of irvesiments
traded in foreign markets or dencminated in conencies atter than

the functiona! cumency may be afected significantly on a day that the Tt is
Al oged [or bk, Ad adesull, 15 the extest thal 8 Fund holds fuu:-gn-
§non-Ll % ) ivwesiments, the walue of those myeiiments may change at times
when you cannal purchase, redeem o exchange urits and the value of uach
wrwestments will be reflecied i the fund’s next calolaned NAY

irveiimants for which mariot gustes or macket:bassd valuations are not
rearclly avaiable ere valued a1 fair value as determined in good taith by
1he Managed o pedsons aClng Al ther doedtion. The Manage: ke adopled
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methods far valuing securities and other assets m Griumstandes where
mariopd quotes ano fot readily avaitable, and has delegated to FIMCO the
respansibilidy for applying the fair valustion methods. in the event that maiket
Quiies of malkel based valuations are mat rea dily mvailabie, and the secunity
ar aeet cannat be vadued persuant o o Manages approved valuation
methed, the walue of the seounity or asset will ba determined in good faith by
i Wahuatedny Commities. Maikel guoned &8 condidedad nal readly svadable
n cEpamlances where theve i an alrence of corent oo relialie market-
based data (e.g., wade information, bidiask wdomation, indicative market
guitateten |" Broker Quobes”], Prucing Servces” piices), including whens
events cocur after the close of the relewant market, but prios to the KYSE
Chese, that materially afect the vahses of the Fund's securites or msets In
sddivon, maikel quotis e conadeted not iesdly sumlabio whin, dus to
entracedfinary (irumstances, the prchangss o mankets on which the
sequrines rade o0 nof open Por tradeng fod the entirg day and noother
matice] prices ane avssdable. The Manager i responsible lof monitaring
signdizant events that may mateially aflect the values of the Fund's secerities
of assats &nd for cesesmining whether the value of the aopfcable secwites of
swels should be reevaluated in light of such significant events

When a Fund wses fair waluation to determine the value of a portfolio seowity
or oiher asset for purposes of aloulating i MAY, such investments will not
b piced on the bads o quoles [rom the primary market in which they &
trascled, Bt rather may b priced by another metsod that the Manager o
petsond acting at thsr dsction bebese reflecs fair value Fair valestion may
mequite subjective debirmination: about the value ol a secunty While

the Trust's podiy is intended to tesubt in a calodation of a Fund's NAY that
faithy reflects secunty values s of the time al prting. the Trust cannat endure
that {air values deterrined by the Manager or pemons acting at their
direction would accurately refiect the price that a Fund coubd obeain for 2
soscutity il 1L were 1o depene of that secuwity & of the tre of pricing (for
mstance, in o forced or detressed sale]. The poces used by a Fund may differ
Treem the value that would be realized i the securities wene sold

il Fair Value Hiorarshy U 5 GAAP described laif value ay the price that

& Fund would: receive 10 5ef an asset o pay to transter o lisd¥ity i an ordedy
Irafibchon bebween Mrkel pamopants al the Meéaiunement dite. It
elahlntes 3 bai value hisrarrhyy that priotitees inputs 10 valisaton methods
and requires disclosure of the fair value erarchy, separately for each major
categony of atseis and kabiliies, that segregues fait value measurements inta
beveis (Lewel 1, 2, or 3) The inputs of methadolagy vsed for valumg seonities
&fe not necessanly an indwaton of the rsks associated with swesting in those
socntitien. Leveln 1, 2, and 3 ol the Lair walue tiearchy are defined dy follows:

# Lipwel 1—Qualed prices in active markets of exchanges for mdentical asiets
and Rabslities

= Level 2—Significant other observable inputs, whicn may include, but are
nal limited to, quoted prices for umilst assets or habslities on matkets that ane
active, guoted prices for identical or smilar assets or liabilites in markets that
afe hot s, inpull sther than quated padid that e ahevalle lor the
ayrts or kabilties (such 85 interest rades, vidd curees, volatites, @ epayment
speeds, boys severities, cedt iisks.and default rates) o ather market
corpborated inputs

® Level 3—Significant nobiervable ifpins based on e Best inloimdtion
availaile in the droumstances, 1o the exient observable inputs e nat
availaile, which may mdude assumptions mads by the Ha"al]’!l OF P EOTE
scting ab thei dinsetaos that Jee uied m detesminitg The fain waloe of
myesimants

In accordance with the requirements of U S, GAAR, the amounts of transfers
n gad oul of Level 3, if materia), are dcloded in the hates. b Schedde of
brrestrents for each respective Fund

For la valuatiom wiing sgwfcant unobservable inputs, U5, GAAP requires
1o disclosa tramdes into and out of Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy and
parthases and issues of Level 3 assets and laddibies during the period
Addvonally, U5 GAAF reguies quaniilatme n‘r:rﬂ-a:-t-'ne-._;arl]n!q ke
srdicant unabservishle inputs used 5 the determination of fair valee of
aisets of liabiioes categonized a5 Level 3 in the fair value Mizrarthy in
Srodande with the requiemests of US GAAF, & lar value eranchy, and i
raderial, detois of uigt fiant uncbarrvable inputy; have been included i the
Mates b Schedide of Irvestments for each mspective Fund

el Valmation Techeigmes ard the Fair Value Hisrarchy

Lawed 1 and Livel 2 trading aasats and trading labilities, a1 fadr valus The
waluation methods (or “sechniques™] and significant inputs used in
chterminire Thi Fain valees of portioho wecunibes or ather aseets and habilties
categoiined a5 Lieved 1 and Ll 3 of she tair vaiue: hisrancy am s follows:

Fimed income securities. induding corporase, comveriile and musicipal bonds
&d moled, U5, governmend agencies, LS. treadury obligations, soveregn
mies, bank loans, oottty prefered securites and non-U 5 bands are
namally valued on 1he bass of quotes obtained from brokess and daakers or
Pricing Serwces that use broder-deder goolaton, iepoited tiades o
sraluation eytimates from their internal gricing models. The Pricing Serdioes’
rneimal models ube inputs tha ase obsenadle such as Hoser detaib, inteen
dales, yld cures, prepayment ipeeds, credil rakuspeands, delaull rates and
quoted jprices for similas assets. Securities that use similar valuation
Techmiques and sngrits a5 described above a'e Ccategonded ai Live 2 of the
Hair value hisancky

Foued incoma secunties parchased on o delayed defivery basis or o a
reputthae commitment in a salebuyback bansacton are marked 1o market
daaly il settlemant &t the forwand satthement dato and ate categonized &
Lewel 2 of the T value hiesaicy

Mongage-related and assef-backed seganes ale usually isued a5 separate
Aranches, & clatied, of tecuritiol withs e deal Thede vecuiilied are alss
namally walusd by Pricing Sensices that e benker-daales quotations,
reported trades. of wvakiation estimates from their inseenal pricing modets. The
ricing madek for these secatites wsually consider manche-lovel antributes,
gumest market data, sstimated cash flows and market-based yweld spepsds far
each tranche, anel incormorase deal collaterzl perfrmance, a5 avadablz
Mongage-relaled and ssel-backed securities. thal we simiar valuation
fechmiques and ingerts a5 described above 0o categonzed as Lewel 2 of the
Hi value hievaicky

Commen Racks, ETF, exthange-taded nowes and Ersndsl detvathe
rstpments, such as futunes comracts, gt and warants, or options on
futures that are traded om & nationsl securtied exchange, aie stated o1 the
Last pported wale of setllement pnce on the day of sakiation To the extert
these securities are actieely traded and valuation adusiments are net appied,
thiey are categeeired s Level 1 of the Tair valoe hisarchy

treepitmants valosd (dencmrated) i Surrencssd othed tRam the lunctional
curmency of a Fund are comverted to the functional curency using mchange
rates [cureny spot e forwand rales} cbeamed bom Pricng Services, As a
result, e MOV of & Fund's wits may be allected by changes in the vahue of
furmences in relation i the funchional curency. The walue ol o traded
i foreign markets or dendeninated in currencies othes than the funczional
gumency may be affected sigrficantly om a day that the Trust i not open for
Buinass. Valuation adjustmants may be applied to cetain secunties that are
solely baded on a foreqn excnange o accourt {or the market mavement
Bretwen e choe of the longign markel and the NYSE Cloge. These sicuntss
ae valued usrg Pricing Serdices that censicer the core'ation of the trading
paiterre ol i faregs secutity 1o the intraday bading in the U 5. marbeis for
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sreesiments Sedunles wiesg these valuation adjustments & (alegorped a4
Liwwl 2 of the Tair valoe heranthy. Preferied socuritees and othe equilies
raded on imactm mark et cr walued by referenca to smdar imsdrgmends are
aho categorized as Leve! T of the far value hieratchy

Equity-lnked secuntees ane vakeed by relerencing the last reported sale or
wettement price of the linked refeserced equity on e day of valuation
Foresgn exchange aduatments are apghied 1o the st reponed price 0
convert the linked equity's tading cumenty to the tontract's seiting currency
These imvestrrents am categosped a5 Level 2 of the Tair value hierarchy

Imipstrants in regriemmd open-end myvedmen mmpanies {othe tian FTF5)
well be valued basad upen the NAYS of wsdth irmeuments and are caiegadzed
a5 Level 1 of the fair valor iemanchy. Imestments in unregastersd open-end
reestment comparies will be caloslated based upan the NAYs of such

e imints s ace condidened Level § provided that the NAWY e
abrervable, caboulated dally and ae the valoe ol whech both purchases aeed
sabes wil b condutted

Valualion adjustments may be aoplied to ceitisn exchange raded hulues and
aplions bo accoend for maried movemnent Between 1he muckange wetibemaent
and the NYSE close. These sequrites are valued using quaotes cbfained from &
quatatson reporirg ystem, estabiiched marked makers or pricing senses
Financial demvatiees anang these valuation adjustmenty are calagonzes as
Level 2 of the fair vakee hierarchy

Equity exchisnge traded aptions and over the coueter fnandal deiivatie

mstrumends, such a5 Jorwand famign curenty contracts and optices: contracky,

derie theer vk from underking assel pnoes, indices, reference rates, and
atter inguts o & combination of these leciors. These comliacts are noemally
walued on the bases of godtes obtained fram a quotateon rparting system,
establahed murket maker o Pricing Senvices {normally delermired a5 of the
NYSE Clor). Depending on the arduct and the terms of the Trsvaction,
financial desteative instruments can be vaksed by Pricing Senvices uaing a
verbes of pechesgues, including simulation pricng models. The pricing rodels
e imgats Ehat ane obaerved from actively quoted mackets such as guoted
prices, issuer derails, indices, bitdvask spreads, innesest rages, implied
welanities, yefd cunves, dendends and exchange rates. Fonancisl dernative
st et thak use smilar yaluation techniques and inputs at described
above are categorzed a5 Level 2 of the fair vakee hieardhy

Certrally clesred swaps and ave the counber vwaps derwve thes value lrom
underhying asset praoes, ndeoes, releioncs rated, and ather inputs or a
combination of these lartors. They are valued ysing a brofer-dealer hid
QUINETon of on manker-pased prices privided by Praoeg Senmies (normaly
detemined a4 o e NYSC Close) Centealy cleared vavaps and cuver the
counter swags an be valued by Pricing Senvices using & series of technigues,
ncludng iesulaton picing models. The prging model sy use mpuls ta
i obriened bhom actively qualed markets sach a5 the osernighl index swap
vabe (" H5" ), LIBOR Borvenrd rate, interest rates, yebd ourves and coecit
spreads. These secutitied ane cateqorited o Lowel 2 of the lair vale histanchy

Level 3 trading asasts and trading liabilities, at falr value When a fai
valuation method i applied by the Manager that uses significant
unishstivabie inputs, rveitment will Se griced by 6 method Ehat

tha Manager or persons acting at thair direction believe reflects far value and
afe (aregorined &5 Livel 3 of the 1air value hietarchy, The saksation
techniques and significant inpufts used in determining the fair walkoes of
porifoho assets and lisbdiies tategorived au Lewel 3 of the fairvalue hisanhy
mie % fodlove:

Prowy picng procedunes st The base price of 4 fxed mtome secanty and
subsegquently adjust the price proportionally o madoet valie rhang{!s of a pre
determined secisity deemed b be companable & dulabion, generslly a5

Treasury of stverergn note based on oounitry of fssuance. The base prce may
b a Erolec-dealer quabe, transaction ice, or an eteinal valuo o detrood by
analysis of market data The hase peice of the securtty may be reset on a
perodie bass based on the eailakelity of marke data and peocedures
dpproved by the Valwation Commitiee Signilicant changes i the
uncirservable inpurts of tha presy pricing process (the base prical would result
o gl and propartsanad changes in the lar value of the secunty, Thege
wowilies ae categoried & Ll 3 of the Tair vadue hivmarchy

i third-party evaluated verdor prcing is nod available or not deemed o be
irdicative of falr vakae, the Manager may elect 1 abtaim indicative market
quitaton drectly fram the Braker-dealir or pasied-through bicker quose
from a shird-party wendor bn the event that fair value is based wpon a single
sowrced Brokier Quote, these secutities are cofegodized & Level 3 of 1ha Tai
wiilue hrarchy. Booked Cuofes aoe typecally recerved fom estabslished marncet
paticipants. Akhough indepensenty recetved, the Manager does not have
the trerspa‘ency 5 view the underying inpuls which wupgart the market
guotation Signdicant changes i the Braker Quobe wou'd have disoct and
propomional changes im the fair vabee of the secunty

Shori-ieim debt tiorenty (k& commedtial aspe) haw i) & PTG
maturity af B0 days or bss may be vaksed at amortined cosl, o long a6 the
arortized toat valua of such chars:term debt instuments = approximately the
shent a5 the Tan value of the reatnesent & determined withoul the use of
amortied cost valuation. Theso securities ang categorzed as Level 2 or Loved
3 of the faw value heeraichy depending on the source of the base price

4, SECURITIES AKD OTHER INVESTMENTS

Aa) Dedayed-Dedivery Transagtions Certain Funds may purchase on sall

secuf ities on o delayed-debery bashs. These ansactions ok a
commitmant by & Fund to purchaie o sell securtied for & predetomingd e
oy, with payment and dalivery tak g place beyond the customany
sefllemerd peniod. When detayed-delrvery rarmaltions ane ublanding,

a Fund vell designate or oo a5 colldderal bguid asacts = an smount
sutficient bo mest the purchase prce or respective phligations. When
patchdding o wecurity on & clayed-delivery S, & Fund asiumes. the nghts
aned risks of ownorship of the security, including the risk of prioe and yield
fluctuations, and takes such fuctuations Ine acoount when determining it
HAY A Fund may dispode of of nenegotate a dilayed-delnery ansacsen
& it = entored into, which may resslt in & realized gain o kaa. Wi

& Fund has iold & securty on & delayed-del very bane, the Furd does not
participata in haure gaing and losses with respect 1o the wecurity.

&) Indlationdndened Beada Coran Funds may irvestin nflation- mdewed
bands. inflation-andened bonds ane Ted income sequrties whoas princpal
walue i pencdically adjusted by the rate of inflation. The imterest rate on
these bonds 1 geserally Tued at issuance at & rate lower than typical bonds
Over the B of an inflation-indexed bond, Rowever, snterest will be paid
baied on & principal saloe, which & adjusted for inflation. Any increass of
dacrime in the pincipal amaun of an inflason- indesed band will be included
i, mieves! meome on the Strtements of Operatimns, sven Ehough imnstors do
mo receive their principal until maturizy. Repasymend of the criginal bond
principal upon maturicy (a3 acjusted for inflation) & quadanteed in the case of
U5 TIPS, For bords that do rgt prowide a wmilar guarantos, the adusted
grincipal watue of the bond repaid 3t maturiy may be less than the onginal

g il

el Losam Parthalp Aamig s and Orlginas Cortan Funds may
irwest in direct debt irstrumseens which aie Interests in amouns ovwed 10
Rpndin of lerding syndicabes by corporale, ginvermamental, o othis bommvers
A Fund"™s investments in loans may be in the form of participations in loans or
asigements of all o a pertion of loans fiom third parties o imestrrents i o
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afiphiatons of kaand By the Fund, Aloan i often admanistened by & bask &
athar firancial institution (the " lender” ) that acty as agent for al hoidery. The
apent adminssiers the terms of the loan, as spectied m the loan agreement

& Fured may ivest in multiple sees o panches o a foan, which may have
varging tes and carry ditfetent astocisted ks, When & Fund purchases
assigrerenis from lencers & acquines direct nghts aganmsl the borrowers. of the
boan, These loans may include partspations i bidge loany, wheth amne losm
laken out by bowrowen Jor o steat perod {bypicaly bess than coe year)
pendis Frrangement of moio permanent financing thiough, for example, the
wsuntce ol bonds, fiequently kigh yeld bends issued For the purpeds of
#bquisitions

The types of lgans and related irvestments in whidh the Funds may imvest
ntlude, smong gthers, seniof ksnd, subordinated loans [ncedng wond
fwin lpams, B-Mofed and merfaning lgans), whele loans, commengal neal
estate and cther commerncial loans and structwred loans, & Fand Ty
angnale loans of soquite deed inbielts in loans teoogh primary loan
distribestiorn andion in private tramactions In the caie of subsedinated loany,
therz may be significant rdebtedress ranking atead of the bomower's
abligation 1o the holder of uxh & loan, ncuding in tee event of the
bomower's imalonoy, Mezzanine loans are fypically secured by 2 nka’g.f of
&N ety inherest i the morgage bomower that cwns the real estate rather
than an inberesd in a mofigage

brversbments i doang may include enfunded loan commitments, which are
cendrachaal chligations & funding Urfunded loan commitments may nduede
ievohang credit faddhes, wheth may obbgate 8 Fund 1o wpply sddtanal cib
{o the bovower on denard Unlunded o commiiments rigpesenl a lulwe
abligation in Tull, even though a percentage of the commitied amount may
nal B utiired by the boirter When inseiting o & lsan paticpation,

& Fined by the right o receive payments of pringipal, interest and ary fees 10
whwech i 15 eatithed only from the lender seling the loan agresment e ony
upan receipt of payments by the lender from the borower. & Fund may
receim a commitrent fee based on the undrawn portion of the wnderlying
e of credit portion of & lasn Bs cerzin oroumstanoss, @ Fund may recense 3
penalty fee upon the prepayment of o boan by @ Sormower. Feed eamed oo
pasd are recorded a5 3 component of interest incoma of interest apana,
tespectvety, of the Slatements of Operabiers Unlunded loan commiaments
ae mfected & 4 Rabiity on e Statements ol Assets and Lisbliles

1 Mortgage-Aelated and Dther Raset Backed Socutitien Cerman Funds miy
el im morigage-refated ard cthor asset-backed secuntion thn dimctly of
indwetly regresent @ participation in, or ase secured by and payable from
ko on real property. Mongege-ielated securities are cieated from poo's of
residential or commercial morigage loare, including martgage ioans made by
sanings. and loan instiburtions, marigage harters. commenal banks and
athérs. Thide securities provide a monthly paymend whath conaists of bath
ateest and principal Interest may be debermined by foed or adpsiable rates
The rate of prepaynerts on underling mortgages wil affect the peice and
volanlity of & moigege-lelaled secunty, and may have the #tlect ol
shartening ce extending the efective curation of the security selative 10 what
wt avicinsted i the time of purchane The timaly pagment ol principal and
ritenest ol coftan margage-relsted wecutities & quaranteed with the full faith
and credit of the U 5. Government. Pools oreated and guaranseed by nan-
goweirenenial lssuers, including govemment-sponsned ooipoeations, may be
supporied by various Tommi of insurance o quaranbess, but there can be no
asurance that privade imsurers o quarasiors can meet ther obligations under
the nsurande poficies or quaranies arasgaments. Many of the risks of
rresting in mortgage-nelated wecurities secursd by corvmercial mortgags
baares eiflect the effects of load and ather economic conditions on real estate
marcet, thir atshity al tenants 10 make ate payments, ard the sality of o
property b0 attract ang mbin tenantt. These spcunties may be Gess liquid and
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rray exhibit greater price vobatiity than otfer types ol momgage-relsted or
ather asurt-backod tecurties. Other asset-hacked secwities am crested om
may types of assets, inchuding, buf nat limited 10, auto loans, atcoents
recetable, such &% credit cavd receivalles and hospital account receivables,
o equity e, studont loans, bost loans, mobile home loans,
recreational vehide kass, mamud attured housing ioans, aloaft leases,
computer leased snd syndicated bank loans. The Fusd may evest in any level
ol the capatal structure of am naoer of morigage-backed or exet-bocked
segitities, inghuding the squity es "First loss” tanche

le] Collateralized Mortgage Dbligations |“CRA05") e debe ablicatiam of a
legal ertity that are collaseralived by whole morigage loans o private
matigage bonds and divided into classes. CMOs are streciured ingo muhiple
clwiges, often referied 1o 44 “tramched”, with aach class bewing a different
stated materity and endfled ina different schedule for payments of procipa
and imeves), including prepayments. CMOs may be less liquid and may exhibit
groser price wolatilty than ather types of mortgage-releted or asset-backed
wecurilieg

il Etvipped Mortgage-Baeked Seeuritien {"5MEL") aie déivaine multe-dld
o g securition. SMBS are usually structuied wath te classes tha) eorie
dfiprent peopartions of the interest and principal distributions on @ pocd of
raitgsde ssatt As SMBS well hinse ong class that wil recenve all ol t5e
intevest [the interest-onfy or “I0" class) while the othes class will recehve the
entre princpal {the prencipel-only o “PO" dass), Payments recetved fa1 103
e intlodied m infeneid intoma on the Statovents of Operations. Becauna no
grincipal wall e reopaved ot the maboamty of an 10, adjuistments are made tn
thie cost ol the security om & menthly basks unad matwity, These adjusiments
& incladied in intereyd income on the Statemwnts of Operations, Payments
received for PO are teated & raductons to the oot and par value of the
LeCulies

dgh Collwteralized Debi Obligations [“C00s") include Collateraiied Bond
Cirbganons *CHOs"), Collaterahaed Loan Obbgatkons | *CLGs" ) and athes
similily AEnactured securities. CBOs and CLOL &0 typsts of el Backed
securities A CHO & a trust which is bacoed by a divensified poal of high riak,
Bedowy irvesiment grade Tmed intome seturtses. A CLD = & el typscally
colateralized by 2 pool al beass, which may include, amang athers, dometic
and {oreign seninr sacuned lnans, senior umseauned lnans, and subomdinete
corperate loans, Includisg baans that may be sated below investment grade o
equivaient wreated lpans. The risks of an investmend in & CEO depend Inu;a:!h
an the type of the cofateral sacurties and tha class of the COG in which

& Fund mvests In addition &5 1he nomdl racs ssaaoabed with | ped snoome
seowitios discussed ehavehen in ths report and the Furdy® Offering
Memarandum (2.g, prepayment k, credd ik, liquidty sk, market dsk,
atrottural rivk, bagal sk and intorest mate ke [which may be exacerbatod i
the interest rate payable on 3 stnuctures financing changes based an

P e l.l‘-i"lauges. i el fales of irversely 10 chasges 0 mienes]
ratesy), TBOS, CLOK, and other CD0 carry sddimional nskd wthodng, bul not
fimited to, [ij the possislity that distributions fom caliaterak sacueities will nat
e adiequare oo mabe inteéngst or othid payments, (il 1he guality of the
onllateral may Seciing in valun or defalt, {iil) the riak that o Fund may imest
i CB:Ds, CL0s, oo other CDOs that are suborginate to other classes, and {w)
The complim dtructue of the secutity may nat be bully urdeciooed o ke Eme
of imvestrent and may produce dapuies with the issuer of unexpedted
myestment resls

k) Paymsent In-Nind Seowrities Certain Funds may mvest = payment in-kind
seourities | FIKS") Pigs may gmve the issuar the opton at each mienest
paynerd date of making interest payments in either cash andior additonal
debt spcurithes. Those addibonal debl spcerties wwually Bave the same 1eimd,
irchafing ratunity dates and interest rates, and associased risks a5 the
arigingl bords The daily marker cuoanons of the ofginal bonds may indude
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the acceued inerest brefemed 1o a5 a “diny pce”] and requie & pro iata
adrtment fom the unealined appreciation of depheciation on inveltments
{0 interesi imcevable on the Statements af Assels and Lishedibes

il Remtricved Sesurites Cenan Funds may hold myvestments that are sulyect
1o legal or contractual restrictions on resale, Thewe secuntics may be sold
privately, but may be required 1o be tegistered o7 exemphed from such
regriration belond baing sold 1o the publbe. Privete placement seculities an
gerserally comssdered 10 be restricied. hsposal of resticted investments may
rroold WMe-Consiming negobatcons and exgendes, and prompl see at an
seeaptable price may be deffiedt 1o schon Restricted mvettments beld by
the Funds at May 31, 2021, & applicable, are disclosed in the Notwes 1o
Schedute of Ivestments

il Structwred Netes Covtain Funds may wvest in structured nobes and other
telnled mitraments, which are prvately negatisted debt obdigationd m which
ke princigal and! or interest is determined by eference %o 1he perdormance of
& benchmark asset, market o interest rabe (an " embedded index™), such as
solacied securtiod, an inden of securitios or ypectied intenest rates, of the
diflerensial padcemancs of fao asuwets or markeby, such as indeses efacting
Donds. - Srcured ERTamencs may be msuec Oy [oMpoIanons, nhuding
benks, g1 well oy by gowernmental agendes. The teren of such strectuned
struments. nomally provide that their prindpal andfer interest payments. are
1o bt i e pied o4 o dowetrevasds (bt ordnanly ot be'on péral bo
reflext changes in the eebedded index while the sireciuned istiuments are
outstandiag. As a sesult, the ienest andlor principa! paymrants that may be
maste o & struciured product may vary widely, depending on a vatiety of
Tachess, including the volatilsy of the embedded Index and the effect of
changes in the embedded index on principal andicr merest payesents

(ki LS. Gewernment Agessies or Governmest Sponsored Enterprises

Cartain Fundy may immst m sscurtties af LS. Governmant agencies oo
goverrereni-sponcoied emerprises. 1S, Gowemment securies an
ablsgation of and, n cerain cases, guaianteed by, the U5, Gowermimenl, its
apences of instrumenialities. Some LS. Gosesnment securities, such as.

1 Ty Exlls, notes and Bardy, and seCuntes I;-..-d-'d"l'IPE'C By e LEL AT
Hational Meorlgege Associaton {"GHMA™ o "Grne Mee™ ], ae supporied
by the full Faith and crecit of the LS. Gowernment; others, sech s thowe of
the Federal Home Loan Banks, ate supporied by the right of the issue to
bomow trom the U S Department of the Treasory (the "L S, Treasuny™|; and
athers, such as those of the Federsl National Morigage Association [“FNMA"
af “Fanme Mas™}, e cuppoied by the diseretonady authanty of the U5
Gowrimend 1o porthase B aqenny™s ohbgatiorn U S Gowemmeal secutes
mgy include 2o coupah secuntes, which do nod distrbute Mees on a
curtent basis and bend 10 be subsect ta o greater sisk than interest-paying
secunities of similar matwrities

Goverment-refated gaaantors §i e, not backed by the full faith and cedn of
the U5, Governmes include FRMA and the Fedeal Bome Loan Morlgage
Corporagion {“FHELMC " or “Froddie Mac™) NS 5 2 govermement sponsoeed
conporation. FNMA porchases conventional §i e, not insured of quarantesd by
afty gavertment agendy) resdential mangages from a k5 al approved
seflers'senvicers which inchuce s3ate and federally charered sanings and loan
FLodatons, mutoal Lwangs banks, commercial banks and cedit unioas and
martgsoe bankert Pacs-thenugh weusties wued by FREA ate quarantesd 4
I imely payment af principal and interest by FNIGA, but are ned backed by
ke il Faith aned credil ef tha U S, Government. FIFLMC msues Farticpation
Certilicabes. {* PCs "), which are pass-through secuntses, sach representing an
undnided mterest in 3 pool of residential morgages. FHLML guaraness the
limey paymenl of irceest and ultimate oollecion o prircipal, but PCs aie not
hatked by the hall faith and credit of the U5 Gowernment

I June 2019, FkA and FHLMC stamed sdung Urshorm Mangage Backed
Socurities { “LINES"] in place ol their curret oeesng of TRA-egible
secirties [ "Single Secimtty bstiatren” ) The Sirgle Secunty Intiatve speks
10 suppoet the overall Rgudity of te TRA market and algns the
chiracteratics of FNMA snd FHUME cemmficstes The eflects that the Single
Sacurity Initiathve may have on the market foe TRA and other morigage-
Baited weuriliel 208 Unceriin

Aoll-tiring strategies can be used where & fund el 1o exterdd the
expiration or matunity of 3 ponition, such a5 a TBA seowity on an underlying
aiael_ Iy closing et the positien before expiration and apening & new
poitian with isspect 1o substamially the same undedlying aiset veh a lates
egperation cate. TOA sewrities purchased or sold ame reflected on the
Setpmenits ol Autety srd Lishieed a5 an st o ||ab|||:.'. nespectely

i Whan-lesund Tramsactians (emam Funis may puerkase or sl senunities
09 & when-Lied hada Thess transsctons ane mad condtonaly Becdins o
weourty, lh*-nm]h authoriped, has nat yeq been issped in the market
Traraactions. 5o purchase c¢ sel seoamties on @ when-nsued bass ivoboe

& tomimdlment By & Fund 1o paichate of 80 thete securhes lor &
predwtwmined price o yield, with oyt and delivery laking pleoe beyond
The customary semlement perod. A Fund sy sell when-ssued seguries
bt o thary are delreered, which may rewdt in a soakzed gain or low

i) Bank Dbligations Bank obligations inwhich a Fund may imiest incude
werhifsates ol deposit, bankeds aoceptances, and foed e deposits
Corificates of depost anp nh;-:ll:hlr gertificates issued against funds
deprnited in a commersial bassk Sor a definite period of time and eaming a
specifed retum Bankers' acceprandes are negotisble drafs oo hils of
gachange, normally drawm by an importer of geporter bo pay for specific
merchandice, which are “socepted ™ by 3 bank, meaning, ineffect that the
bk uncandiianally scrie 1o pay thie Waio value af 1 indtument on
matuiity, Fooed time deposits are bank oblgatons payabie at 2 stated
rmaTLy date and bearing interess 810 fined eate. Fived time cepodits my be
wwithak man an demand by (ke imvestol, bol may be subject b5 aarly
withcrawal PEnaies wiich vary cepending upon marcet conditons and the
pernainang Faaturity of e oiligation

5, BORROWINGE AND OTHER FINANCING TRANSACTIONS

The fellowing dadeseres centain information on the Fusds’ abllity 1o lend o
Bainors (st of MbCuritiis 10 the @ctin] permined unde the Olleing
Memorandum, which may be viewad 83 bamewing or finanging transactions
Bry thed Fungs. The bscabon ol thess natiuments 15 deatided Below. Fod 3
dhetaslied devscniptaon al credit and counterparty ks 1hat can be asociated
with Borrewings and osher financing bransactions, piease sea Mate 7,
Mineipal snd Otker Rslks

la} Bepurchase Agresments  Cortam Funds may engage o repurchais
apeements. Undes the teems of & Typelal repurchase agreement,

@ Fumnd parchases an undelying debit obfigation (ooRstecal] subject o an
oligaton of the seller to ropechass, and a Fand 1o resell, the cbfigation ot
& agreed-upon price ged time. b B0 open matunty iepurchese sgreeent,
theto 1 na pre-dmermined repurchisie cade and the agreement can be
terminated by the Fund of countesparty at ary tme. Tre market valoe of the
cnlatersl st be squal 1o or excesd the total amont of the epunduse
atfajabon, nekdng irtecedl Repurchite s eements, including accraed
irterest, are includied on e Statements of Assets and Liabilties Imerest
earned b recoidied a3 a com ponent al intéres] intome an Lhe Statements ol
Dperations. n pencds of increased demand for collageral, a Fend may pay a
fee for receipt of collateral, which may result in imesest axpense to the Fund
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ki Reverse Repurchase Agreemmtn  Certain Funds may enter ssto everse
mpurchase agresmentz in a rpvene reprchase agrepment, a Fund defers a
SECLNTY i Eechange for cash to a feanrial imshiuhon, the counterparty, with
B SHLIMARSOUS BIFBESENT 10 reguichass e wame of subantally the wame
secutity at an agreed upon price and date. In an open mataity revene
repunchide sqresment, there | no pre-deteimined repunchase date and the
agieement tan ba bermnabed by the Fand of counterparty a1 any bme

A Fune i entithed 80 1eceive prncspal and interes payments, @ &y, made on
the secunity detiweted 1o the counberpasty during the term of the pgreemens
Cazh tecond in gucchange for securtios delivered plus accrued intersst
oEyments b be made by a Fund to cosnerparties are reflected as a liabdfin
an the Statermeents of Adsets and Liskslibed. Interest payments made by & Fund
10 counteipartics ai moorded 2 a4 component of rieest axpensa on the
Statements. of Operations In penods of increased demand frr the sanunity,

& Fund may (ecei & foe lor e of the security by the counterpaty, which
may result in interest income ta @ Tund. A Fund wil segragate aasets
determined to b Bguld by PINCD e vl etheraise oo its cbSgations
undes neverse repuithace sgresments

e} Sale-Buybacks Certain Funds may enter ireo financing pansactons
refaired 10 & 'sale-buyhacks”. A sale-buyback financing bansacton tonsfs
al @ sale of a socursty by a Fund to a financial wtitutcn, the countenparty,
with a semukanecus agreement 1o reparchase the same or substangially te
same secarity a1 an agieed-upos price and date. A Fund B not entiled o
mcenm prncipal and inlerest paymenty, if any, made on tho socungy sold o
the mousterparty durieg the teme of the agreement. The ageesd-upon
podeeds fod SeCunted io be sepunthased by a Fond ane reflected as a hatliry
on te Statements of Assets and Liasbiltes. A Furd will recogrize nat income
represented by the piice diferential between the price received Tor the
trarrdivied decurty and the agreed-upon rgarchase price. This is commanly
mefaired 1o a5 the pice diog™ A price diop consists of (i} the faieqone interst
and inflationary income adjustments, i any, a Fund would haee othersise
recened had the secunity not been soid and i) the negatiated fmancing berms
oetween a Fund and countesparty. Faegone interest and ﬂr'-if-l:l'li-"p InCome
:L'._,.n.hllfﬂl:L '] &y, aie iedonded & Loimpanefily ol inleisst Ptome o the
Satements of Operations. Inferest paymnents based wpon nogatiated financng
termes made by & Fund to courterparties ane reasded as a companent af

e esl @xperrie on the Statements of Opeatond In pemads ol indreased
dernand for the seourity, a Fund may receive a Toe for wee of the secunsy by
thie coseeeparty, which may resalt is imlerest income 8.8 Fund. A Fund will
whgrngatn asseiy debermired 80 e Epuid by PIRACO ar vall athenyiss cowar ity
abligations under sale:buyback tranzactions

i Short Salas  Certain Funds may enter into shom sakes randactions. Shan
sabas ane trandactions in which the Fard sells a secunty hat it may nol own

i Funed may make-short sales of securtties to () offset potential decknes in
bongy posilioms. if wmilas secuntses, (v) 10 inciease the Fembahity of the Fund
yii) Tor verstment retum, (i) a5 part of 2 risk arbitrage strategy, and {v] a5
partal its cverall portlobo management strategees invohing the use of
detivaing (nstnements When a Fund Bnganes ina uha't s, i1 may Dormaw
tha security soldf short and deliwer it o the oourterparty. The Fund will
ardinariy have 10 pay & fee or piamiue 10 bosiew @ securizy and be obligeted
1o requiy the lender al the secueity sy dividend ai infened (had accroe on the
secunity during the pericd of the loan. Securities scid in short sale tramactions
& the tnidend or mdetest payable an such secafties, i any, are tellecied a3
payabie for short sakes on the Statements of Assats and Liabdses. Shon sales
expose the Fund to the risk that it wall be requeted to cover s shart position
al & Lere wihin the secumity of olhet assel hes sppeedialied o value, s
'osljhm] in losses to ghe Furd. A shor sale is 'a}.;l|r1r1h[| box™ #

thia Fund haids in fis portfialio or has the right 1o aogquie the security sold
shoit, o sequiites idestcal 10 the secuily vold dhait, &1 no additonal cod

& Funed will be sabject to additonal ks to the egent that it engages in short
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sales that afe nal "poarst the ban ™ A Fund's loss on e shert sale could
thoaratically be unlimsed in cases whane the Fund & unable, Tor whatews
reason, to close ot it short position

B, FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

Thar lellowing disdlosases contain information on bow and why the Fonds use
finarwial derivaiive instruments and how financial desfvative instruments
afict the Fundy” finangul postion, results of opeartions and cad flows. The
Becation and fae vahue ampunts of Bwse insbuments om the Siatements of
Asses ond Liabilses ard the net realized gom foss] and net dhaege in
wirpalered apprecaton (depieciation) on the BMabements of Dpevanons, sach
calegoiined by type of Francal derivatim contract ard selated risk exposune,
are theded & Lible i the Moled 1o Schedule of Inveatmests. The hinandal
derraative instruments cutstanding as of peiod end and the amounts af net
rpalirad! gain [Inss) and net rhange n unrealmed apgeeciation {deprecation)
o0 financlal dervative insruments dus rq 1he peviod, as dedosed in the
bates to Schwedule of Imsestments, seree as indecaions of the volume of
firarsciad dhevivariive actiety for the Funds

A} Forward Foreign Currenzy Cestracts Civtan Funds may engage mn
Iniwmd forsign cutrency conacts in connection with wetiling plammed
purthases or sales of secunities, 1o hedge the turenty exposise suotisied
wwith some of all of & Fund's secuntss or ok part ol an investmend stralegy, &
forward foreign curency contract s an agreemen betwien fwo partes to buy
&% L2l & urency 414 se1 price on a huture date. The market value ol a
forwarnd foreign curency covtract Mucsustes with changes in fareign cutrency
exchange rates Fansard *run_:i]n CUITENCY COniTaCis are marted to market
daly, and the change in walie & deoonded by & Fund as an uriealied gain o
Toas. Realized gains or louses are equal 1o the difference batween the value of
the conbract # the Sme it was opened and the value at the time it wars-cosed
e atn incorded Lpos delivery of eeceip] of the cumesdy, Thews contracts
mary ireolve market 1k in excess of the unrealized gain o loss reflecied on
the Statements of Assets and Liakilities In sddition, o Fond could be exposed
1o ik if the counterparties ane unable 1o meet the tems of the contracts or il
the value of the cumency changes unfavrably ta the functional oumency. Ta
eratagate such rak, cash ai sedunites may be exchanged as collstenal puriasnt
10 e torms of the underlying contracks

Coamn Funds, having a hedged Class, may also pater méa forsvard foneign
curmesdy contraces devered o offeet the effect of hedging at the Fund level in
oder to leewe the hedged Class with an expoaure 1o currencies. other than e
fungtigeal NGy Trarg can b no guarantae that these Class specific
fonars 13!&;’] CumEnCy coeviracts will be sucoessiul

i Futures Comtrapts  Cerldin Funds may enler irgo futuis conbiacts. &
futures coniract is an agreement 1o buy oe sell a seouity or other asset for a
set price on & fulure dase and & Daded an an exchange A Fund many we
futunes coniracts to manage its oxposee 10 the seowitics maroets o 1o
FRCETENTS (1 I TlSfesl dales and sendy walues The g iy Tiks, asaceiated
it thee use of futures contracts are tse impedect coselation between the
chimge in market walue of the securities held by a Fund and the mices of
futures contracts and the possibiing of an (liguid market. Futures contracks
are valwed heved upon their quoted dasly settlement prices. Lpon entering
rto @ futures contract, a Fund & required 1o ceposit with its fitures broker an
amcuml of cath, U 5. Government and Agency Obligabon, of select sovensign
debl, ifi socondande with 1he nRiel mangin iequeemests of 1he bicke o
-r:{ﬁr:nge Fugues comtracts are matked to markes daly and based on such
marnEns in the prioe af B cordracts, an appropiiste payable of receivable
for the change m value may be peatnd or colacted by the Fund [ Futures
Vanatcn Mamin"). Futwes Varation Mangies, §any, are dadosed within
ceritrally cleared financial devroative instiuments on the Statements ol Assets
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and Liabebtes. Gaond o losses aie recognaped bt not consideved ieakped uril
the contracts expite of clase. Futuies contracts imiobae, to varying degro,
nsk af loss in excess of the Fuhees Vanaben Margin included within
exschange traded o cenirally cearsd finencial dernative instrumesnts on the
Satements of Assets and Liabddnies

e} Dptiens Contracts Certain Funds may wiite of purchase optiorns bo
eihaiE iElURRS Of 80 hiddne &% exsting posiion of fule swestment. Celan
Fureh, may wrile call ard put options on securities and Snengel devame
nstrumse s, they cown of in which they may invest. Witing pul options tends
1o increde @ Fund's exposise 10 the usdedlyng mitrament. Wiiting call
aptions tencs 1o decreate @ Fund's exposare 1o the underlying imitrument
Wwhen & Fund wiites a call or put, an amoan] egqual 10 (he pramaum regeved &
roconded and wbweguertly marked 1o marcet 10 reflect the cunent vakee of
the ophen witien These oty ame inchided on the Sk sments of Asseis
and Liabikzies. Preeniums secerved from wiiting aptions which expire ane
treatesd 2 realized gains. Premivms received bom wiiting options which are
papirisad of chred are added o the proceecs of offwr against amaunss paid
ah B underiyng fulones, Swisp, Secutily of turTency raRSaCion 1o detesmne
the 1wiligvd gaim or boss. Certain optiors may be wrilben with premmiurms o be
detesmined on a futwe date. The premivms for these eptions ane based upen
‘r_:ln-'J volabbty parameters af speclfed terma. & Fund a5 8 wiiter of an
aptior has ro control ower whether the underying instrument may be soid
{"call *) co purchased {"put”] and as a resil bears the market rik of an
unlavesabie chasoe in the price of the watument underhpng the vantlen
aptior. There & the rak a Fund may not be ahle ko exter into a closing
transaction because of an illgesd marke

Certam Funds may stsa punchese pit and cafl optiond. Purchasing call aptions
tonds bo iscrease & Fund's eoponue to the undailying instrumen. Purchasing
put options tends bo decrease a Fund's exposure to the undedying instrument
& Funsd paryy @ premnium wiich in echuded as an st on the Statementy al
Agsets and Liabilites ard subseguently marked to martet o reflect the
cursent valuse of the option. Premeems pald ot purchasing aptiors which
expite- are rested & nealiped kdaes. Cortien optiony may be punthised with
premiums bo e determined o 3 future date. The premiures for these options
sio basid upon impled volstikly paiametens 51 ipecihied teims. The ek
awocalpd with purchaeng ma and tall optasee i imited b0 the premium
pasd. Premiums paid Tor parchasing optiens which aee evercised or choed are
siided tn the ampurts paid or olfsst sqainst the pioceeds an the undedhing
restmant iransaction ta determime the realized gain or ks whein the
undertying transachon s eveuted

Credit Delaslt Swaptions Cwlam Fund may wiile o puechase uedit
deloult swaptions to hr-d_q.‘ gy 1 tho coedit risk of an imvesteent
withoul making & commilment 1o the underlying nstiument. A credit cefsul
wwaption & an aption o sell or buy credd protection 1o & specific relenence by
ertening inba & pre-defined sevap agreement by some specified date in the
Tuituite

Feamign Caraney Opilons Cortain Funds may veite or punchans forsign
CUNTBNCY Dptians 1o b2 used as 3 shor of |:lr'g hE':I';E aqainsr possible
vanaboed i foreign exchange rates of 1o gan expasure ta foreign curmences

InflationCapped Opthena  Certainm Funds may wiite or purchaswe nSation:
cappied ot 50 enhahie [Ed oF o Fedging opportumiies. The pumos
ol purthasing inllation-capped oplions is 15 probect a Fusd fiom mflation
esion above o otriain rate on & gheen national exposure. A Bacr can be
uted 1o g dowrelide profection b evesiments in inflabon-lnted products

Interest Rate-Capped Options Certain Funds may weite or purchane inberest
rate-capged optons to enhance et o o "H]l_llllg opporiunites. The
putpene of purchaing interes! rate-copped optiom i 1o prolect a Fund fom

flasting rate rsk abeve & ceviain rate on & given nabcnal expesere. A Toor
can bo ased 1o give doveride robection o investments in interess rabe linked
products

Interest Rain Swagtlons Certain Funds may welte or puichase intenest rate
eapticr which arp options to enier inbo & peo-defined swep agreement or
1o sharten, extend, cancel or othenaise modify an exsting swap agreemant,
B Sodmi S fied date o this futues. The wines ol The seiapten bicomed he
ounterpuarty 1o the vaap if the buyer esecnes. The inhenest rate swaption
apeement will speofy whether the buyer of the swaptien will be a fined rave
fecever o & fad-rate P Upon ERerLe

(Dptions on Exchanpe Traded Futures Coatracts Covtan Funds may wiite o
ptthase options on exchange-traded futures commacts [*Fubuees Optiea™) 1o
hedge an ouisting position or fulure imvesiment, for spocul ative purposes of fo
IManae EnporLre 1o market moyements. A Futures Qiption is. an opbon
contract in which the underlying ivanement s a smgle fufures comtrac

Opilons en Securitles  Certain Tundy may weetn or purchase options on
SeOEites tn enhance refurms o io b an enghineg poiikon or future
melimenl AR oplish on & Secunly wsed & specihed Secunty &4 the undellying
matiarmnt for She option ot

b Swimp Agreomants Certain Funds may imvest i swap agréements. Saap
speaments aro biaberally neqotisted agieemnts between a Fund and a
oounterparty 1o exchiange o° sivag imvestment cash flows, assets, foseign
duirefces o msikel dmked ietur ol specled, fulie interiak. Swap
aprements may be privasely regotiaied i the OTC market or may be dearcd
throagh & third party, known as @ central counterparty or dervatiees cieating
a'ganirangn (Teenraly deaned swiaps™) & Fund may encer o asset, oedn
deflault, cows-oumency, ndenest rate, ial reburn, variance and other fams of
W[ AQreRMEnts 10 Manage N exposune 10 bdl, CulFENCy, nbeni rae,
cammadity, equity and fiflstion mk. In conniction with thess agieaments,
securties o carsh may be identified a5 collateral o margin in accordance with
the teremas of the respecive swap sgreements 1o previde assets of value and
recourse in the svent af dofault o banknuptoyfinsohency

Contmaly chsared wraps ane mardoed to markel daily based upon waluations a5
determined from the wnderhphy confract o in scosddance with the
requitements of the contrad counterparty er devmatmes clearng organization
Changes in market value, if any_ s refiected a5 3 component of ret thange
i unepaioed appredanon (depeedianon) on the Siaemens of Operations
Daily changes in valuaton of centrally deared swaps (" Swap Yariation
Margn ), il amy, are dackosed within cantrally cleared financial denvative
ralraments of 1k Slatements ol Assetd and Dbl itied OTC Swap payments
mecererd of paid at the begnning of the memaemend peniod ane mcuded on
the Statements of Assets and Liabilities and represent premigms paid or
tiservind upan efleding nta the Swap Soreemant 10 oM pEiate L]
dferances betwean the stated teems of the swap agreemant and paesaiing
enarbel Condilions (el spresds, Cumesdy exchangs rales, ineest rabes, and
ather refevant lacdoes) Uplices premiums iecenved (pand) are netially recoeded
i Eahilties (rvwets) and wirequently marked 1o market 12 miiect the curent
walue of the swap. Thesa upfiont pramiums aie recorded &5 reakzed gains or
lostes on the Statoments of Operatgrs wpon termination or matunity of the
swap A Bquidation payment received o made at the termination of the vvep
B tecotded 35 reahized gadn ol loss o the Siatements of Operabons. Net
perad payments recénied of paid by a Fund ane included & part ol mealized
gaens o losses on the Staderents of Operations

For purposes. of axpherg cectain of & Fund's invesimenn palicies and
testiction, wwap sgrsementy, lie other deivative rinssenty, may be
walued By.a Furd a1 market value, nobormed value or full exposure value In the
cirse of a credit defaut swag, i appdying certain of the Funds imvestment
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ooles and resticuon, the Fund will vadue the oredht default swap at its
aatioral value or s full exposun value (.9 , the Sum of the solional amoont
for the contract phus the market value), bt may vale the credit default swap
at market valoe for purposes of apphying cerain of the Fund's other
rroekiment paficies and nestnicton. For example, the Fund may value oedit
default vwaps ai full expouse value Tor purposes of the Fund’s credit cuality
guitehings (il any) because such value in general beied refiects e Fund s
aciual economic expouay duting B tem of the oedit delacl swap
aproement. A% a result, a Fund may, a1 times, have rotionad sy o an
aised class bebore nefting) that s geeater o bessar than the stated lim of
restriction neded in the Fund's Qfferg Memomandum. Im this contest, both
the nothonal amount and the market vaiue may be positive of negative
deperadriy o whather ths Fusd = selleng of buyhg protechon Beough thi
rredit defaut vwap The mannar in which ceain sepuites or ol hes
st s afe valued by the Fund Bon punposes of apphying imessment
policies and restriction may differ fnom the manser in which thode
svestmants are valued by other types of imvesion. Entering into saap
ApeEments invihves, 1 vargng degrees, elements of mienest, oredit, markat
and documentation risk in eecess of the smgunty, eoognised on (e
Startements. of Assets and Liabdnies. Sach risks imoolve the pessidity that
there will B¢ rio ligusd market fee these agreemints, that the counterparty o
e agresmenis may detaclt on its obligation & perform or cisagres a3 1o the
meaning of contractasl terms n the agreemenis and that there Py be
unlaverable changes in intenet rades or the values of the asset upan whik
ke swap m hased

A Funed's maimum 1isk of loss Brom coustprparty coedit risk 5 the discounded
nied vadue of the exsh Nows to be recewed from the counteiparly over e
contract™s remaining fife, ta the extent 1hat amount & posithe. Tne rak may
e mitigated by having a master netting acrangement betwesn a Fund and
the cousstespaity and by the posong of coll#tedal 1o & Fund to oovet & Fund's
epasure 10 the oounte party

T thae et & Fund hee & policy o limit the ret amount owed 1o oo to be
tecenned Inom & single (ounpiparty undisr sxilling WWap soreementy, such
Emitation anly applies fo countespartes to OTC veaps and does not apply to
conitradly deared iwaps whiso the couMipaity il & tenlrsl cun leiparty o
desivatnes clearing amanization

Condit Default Swap Agreements Certain Funds may enter iseo

crecht cefault ywaps 0o corpoeate, loan, sovereign, U5 mwnicipal or US
Treasury Sooes W0 provioe a measure of profection againat defaults of the
eibuens [ @, Ba feduce nak whete & Fund oans o has expoiune 1o B
referenced cbligation) or b2 take an active kong or shart pasitlon with respect
1o the bkeihecd of & partoular ssuer's default. Credt defeut swap
agreements mvalve oo party making & stream cf payments [redecied 1o as
the buyer of protection) to another party [the sefler of protection] in exchange
Tor the tight 1 recebve a specified retumn in Eve evend that the refererced
ety m!l;ntmor’ index, a5 specifed in the swap agmome, undergoes 3
cerian oredit svent. A5 3 seller of protection on credit defsilt wap
apteements, 8 Furd will genezaly recesve from the buyer of protection a lned
rabe off income throughout the Yem of the swap ploviced that thene & ro
credit event As the seller, a Fand wedld effectvely add leverage to i
portioba bacause, ) adddsan 1ok 1ot et ety the Fund would He
subject bo Irvestmant axposwe on e nedional amount of the vevap

H o Fund is & seller of prosection and & oedi event-oomrs, a5 defined unde
thie tereres of that particuls’ e agreement, a Fund will ethe |1} pay 1o the
buyer of protection an amount equal ta the notigral amount of the swap and
take defvery of the relesenced oblgation, other deliverable obsigations o
undedlying deturitied compiising the refenenced ndex o [i) pay & net
wetthemnent amount i the form ol cash o seountes equal 1o the sobanal
ampunt of the swap dess the recovery value of the relerenced obligation or

wiadérlyng secuities comprtsing the referenced index I a Furnd is a Buyer of
protection and a credit epent accory, at defined under the terms of that
particdar swap agreement, 3 Fund will sither (1] recaive from the saller of
prolecian an amount egual s the notional aswunt of the savap a0d detheer
the relesenced obligation, other delrverahle obligations of undeilyng
securities compising the refmenced index or (i) recetve a net sattlement
ST (0 the Porm of e o Lefurmie el 15 the nobonal amount of 1
s b the recowery walue of the referenged oblgation oo underlying
secuties compasing the sefoenced index. Recovory vabaes are estmatod by
madket maker conudenng erthes industry Randand necowery rates. of ety
specifc factors and cormaderations until a cregit evest oocurs. If a cedit event
Fhas occumed, the recovery value o detemiced by & Taciltated auction
wheneby & minimum number of alowable Broker bids, tagethes weth a
specifer valuaton method, are iied to calnulate tha setflement walue Tha
aulity 10 delies other obligatorns may resull in 3 dheapes-o-delre opion
ithe buyer of protection’s right ta chooss the delrerable abligation with the
loweest value following a credit event)

Credir delault swap agreements on oecit mdoes involve ane pary making a
steam of paymerts (o soother party m exchasge bor the nght to neceime a
specided resum in the evend of 2 write down, pringipal shartfall, imenest
shortiall or defautt of a8 or past of the refererced entities compiising the
cipdit index. A credd index B & basked of oredd imstruments or exposunes
designed to be representative of some part of the coedit market as a whole
Thisse indscis ade made up of reference orsdits t4et are fudged by 4 pell ol
dralers to be the mast bguid enlises in the chedst delault swap market Baed
o the secter of the index. Components of the indices may inchude, bt are
nat limifed |0, imvedtmen grade secueitied, high yield tecuritio, aset-bached
secwties, pmenging markets, and'or varioun credit ratings weithin sach sector
Cres inghes are traded using credi default swaps wih standardized terms
rchading & foed spread and stendad matunity dales. An index cred defaull
swap rederorces 2 the names in the index, and d thore is.a default, the ¢redit
evend 15 sefthed based on that name’s welght im the index. Te compaosition of
The indices changes petiodicaty, ususly every s manihs, and Sor modl
rdices, each nama has an equal weight in the idex. A Fund may use cedit
defauln swaps on credit indices to hedge 2 portiale of credit defauly swags o
Brands, which o bl exgpediove than i veould be 1o Buy miry credit dedial
wwaps 0 achieve a simiar eflea. Credit default swaps on indices are
nstiuments for probectng svesion awmng bands st delault, and
tradens e them 1o speculate o changet i credil quality

ioghied credit spreads, epresented in absolyte Yorms, uSied in dotermining
1he matket value of oedin delault swap B SemEnts 00 (Oiporate, koan,
sowieign, LS, municpal or U8, Treasury dsue 25 af penod end, if any, are
drcloted in the Males to Schedale of vestments. They seree a an indicator
of the owrent siats of peymentperdommance risk and represent the ikelihood
o ik of defaul for the referenced entity. The implied credic sproad of &
particular referenced entity seflects the cost of biyingfselling protectian ard
iy echuce Lphont payments sedured 1o be made 1o entsr @0 D
apvermont. Wider oedit speead 1epresent 2 dotstioration of the mlenenced
entily's credit soundness and a greater Khslihood or risk of default or ather
ciedit ewent occunting af delined under the teims of the agreemnent. Far crecit
default swap agreements on assel-backed securities and oredit ndices, the
quoted market proes and resulting values serve 3 the ndsiaton of the ouent
status of the payment/performance sk, Increasing market vabses, in absshse
ferms whan compared o the notioral amount of e swap, represent a
deterionation of the referenced entity's credin soundness and 3 graze
likefihood or nisk of defaudt or other cedit event ocourring a3 defined under
the terms of the agreement

The masmum gotential amoun of futune payments (undsoounisd) that
& Fund as & seller of protecton could be requined 10 make undie @ credil
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defeuli swap Bipeemend egushi the nobional ambunt of the agreemel
Motional amounts aof pach indridual credit default aap agreement
outstandeg as of period end for which a Fund is the sefiar of protection are
disclosed i the Hotes 1o Schedule of Ivestments . These potestial AMoUnTs
would be partaly offset by sy recovery vakeed of the redpective refetenced
ablgations, upfront payments received upon entening inso the agreement, or
fi#l amounts feceteed Inom the seitement of buy protecion oreda delaull
v agroements endred imo by @ Fund Fe the seme referenoed endity or
eriitios

Interest Rate Swap Agreemants Cerlam Funds s'o wwhest ta @t rate
risk expasure i the normal course of purising ther immestment objecitees
The vabue of the fined rate bonds that a Furd holds mey decease i interest
tates i, To ke'p hedge sgqamat the ik s 10 mamtain i abilty to
]wuﬂn inoome st R market rates, a Fued may Brter indn edeest
fare Swap agresmants Inserest rane vwap AONERMenms iMvone the EII:"'IB"_}E
try & Fund with another party for ther respectie commitment k3 pay of
e imerest on thie nobiomal amoant of prircigal. Ceetain forms of ingerest
tabe svwap agresments may include: [) sl erest rate caps, under whech, in
rebarn For @ premium, ane panty agiees (o make payments bo the other o B
extent that inferest raes evcoed 2 specied e, or “cap”, (i) inderest rate
lloars, undes which, in retorn for & premium, one paity aqrees 1o mate
payments b0 1he: pther to the extent that irterest rases fal below a specified
rabe, or “Boar”, (] imerest sate collars, under whach 2 paity ses & cag and
purchades & Hodr o wide vina it an altempt ba piotect kel againat interedt
rale moweTents errpeding gaen masimure of maximum lesels, () callable
nIEIest rale Swags, under which the buyer pags an upfon: fee in
comideration far the right fo early termimate the yevep trarsaction inwhole,
At reng 005t and aTa Flidﬂi‘l"-ﬂid date and fims I D he ﬂ'r“h-‘ﬂll B,
il spreadiocks, wheth alony te inDePesl rate Swap s 16 lock in e
Ioraard dif e ential {or sgesd) be tvesen The il est rale wwap ate and 2
spedified benchmark, o () basis swaps, under which bwe parties can
exchange varuable interest rates based on diferent segments of money
markets

7. PRINCIPAL AND DTHER RISKS

i Princigal Riska In the normal course of business, the Fundh o Acquined
Funeds}, if applicable] trade financial instruments and enter inty Snancaal
Irarractiond veheie fisk of potential ki exets due 1o such thirg & changes
n the market (mracoet risk} or tniigre or inability of the ather party joa
(rarrsction ta perform |credt snd countenpadty rrk], See balow lor a detsioed
driciiptos of selact pancipal iac

Fond of Funds To the extent that cestain Funds imvest substantially all of
their respective assets in Acguired Tund(y), the raks. assocsated with mveiting
n these Fends will be chosedy related 1o the risks arsociaied wish the securties
and other ivestments held by the Acquired Fundish. The abiity of the funds
10 ity ther despedinee mvesiitesd, objcinees may depend upon the sbeity
af the Acquired Fundis) to achies thes respective irvestment objectyves
There can be no alourance that the investment objective of any Acquined
Fursds} willl b achiewed The HAY of g0 Asquiring Fund well fluctuste n
nesponse bo changes in the respective MAY of the Acquired Fundish in which it
el

in the normal cours of bused, Aojursd Fundid] tade tinsncial mituments
and enter inta finantial ansactiond whene rek of potential loss ensts due fo
chandges in the market (market rak), oo faikite or inability of the oter party o
a traviaction to perform {credit and counterparty risk)

Market Rishs A bund's imvestments in fmancial dervative inssrumants and
ather Tresd o inativmenls sxpiie this Ford 10 varous isks such &, Bl et

imited to, Frisest e, leoesgn inon-1L 5] currendy, equity &nd commodity
ritk

irie st ralo nk is e ik chat el mdome securibes and olhar maiesents
Pl by & Fund may dedine in walue because of an increase in ineest rates. |f
nomanal interead rabes tive, the value of certain fimed income secunties bield by
& Fund veould oty decrease. A nominal svierest rate can be decribed as the
s of a real interest rate and an espacied inflation rate. Intesest rase
changes can be sudden and unpredsctatde, and & Fund may lose maney o
these changes are not antiopated by Fund managemant. A Fund may nat be
e o Pusdge #]aif‘-'l-l Ehashiped i inbenet] rates of may chbose not to do so et
oSt of ather ieasans. In additon, sy hediged may sol veoik a3 nlended

Duration is 8 meavure used fo determine the sersginty of o securty’s price o
changes i intetest rates that inoopeeates a secunity's yield, coupan, fral
mmatunty and call ipstures, irmong other charactansscs. Convexity s an
acdditional measure wed bo undentend a secaity’s o Fund’s inieresd rade
sersifenty that measures she eate of change of duraten in response 1o
changes i ekt rates, Fooed income securitivs with longer durations: 1end
o be mone sensitive t changes in intarest rates, waally making them mane
wolsile than securites with sheorter dutations. A wide varety of facton can
e mloresl rates of yinids of U5 Treasury securities (or yiekds af other
fynes of bongs) bo e {p g |, rentral hank moretary policies, inflation rates,
gereral stonamic canditions, etc ], This i ewpedally true under oent
gondiions because intenest rates and bond yaelds ane near Ristoncally kowe
Bevels. Thus, the Funds curmently face a heigriened lavel of risk associated
with Frimg iletest fates endioe bond peddy Thas could be diiven by a vensty
ol factors, inciuding but not Bmited to centrad bark moretary policies,
chingirs inflation or real grawth rates, gerers] ecceemic conditians,
reieasing band istuances of redoted madket demand lof fow yielding
rvestmants. Further, while LS. bond markets have steadily groan over the
pad theee deades, dealer “market making” abskty has rerrained relatively
slagnant Given the impotance of intermediary “market maling” in oreating
& robasst and acine madket, fead moome sexunties. are rusTEnty

fating noreased volatility and Rquidsty rsis A0 of these facmoes, ooliectively
ardior mdividually, coutd cease o Fund bo bose valoe i the Mond kosd enough
walug, the Fund coubd face increased Uniiholder redemphisnd, which could
Surther smpae s pertatmance. Alvo, B Fund may be adverusly sfieched
when a lage Unithdder purchases or redeems lainge amounty of units, which
N DOcue At any time and may impadt te Fund in the same manner as a high
wolume ol redomption réquests. Lasge Uinitholder tramactions may rmpact
the Fend's bauidity and net asset vebee. Such transactons may also increase
the Fard's inerraction consts of othenwise cause the Fund io periom
dffeently than intended. Mongowrs, the Fund i subyect 1o Bhe rik that
ather Linithalders may make nvestrent decisioms basec on the choices of &
Range Usatholder

oMy Fund may Bave sgnifcant expodure 1o issuens in the Usrted Kingdam, The
United Kingdom's withdrawal fram the Ewopsan Union may impact Ford
deunte Thd dicrlon may (ke sibstan tal volabhity n ionegn exhangs
rmarkets, bpad to weakness in the pctangs rate of she Britiih pound, et m
@ sustained period of market wnoertainty, ard destabikoe some or all of the
othar Eunapean Usioe member couninies andler the Eurazoni

Foreagn (Aas-U5 ) iediafiDes 15 1he réper ank dasufied iy thie enunitry of
rooeporation of a hr,{ﬂ:-'& In ceriain imstances, & secyriy’s countny of
roed poration may be different from it country of economes exposune.

I & Frared irvogsits directly on 1oregn [roe-LE 5. ) oummendss, or i Secunimies thd
rade i, and redene niveduid in, batesga (non-) S ) curiencies, o in fnencsl
derraiive iInstrumesis Thal provide saposure 5 |I}'fgl'| (=R T ) outrences,
il be subjitl i the ek that thene catrencnes will decling i vikoe relatree
1o the base curmncy of the Fund, or. iv the case of hadging pesiticrn. 1hat
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the Fund's base curency will dedling i value relatiee 1o the curency baing
hedged . Cusrency rates in foreign coaninies may foctuate scnificantly aver
shor periods of time for a namber ol reasons, inchuding changes in mbsredt
rabes, intervention for the falune 10 interverse) by U5, or foreign governments,
et Basks of supranatioral enlites wach &4 the International Monétany
Fured, &t by the Engosition of oumency controls of ather pefitial develapments
fithe United States of abrosd. A & result, 8 Fund 5 invest=ents in loeign
cunmEy-tenomingbed scaities may mduce the Fund™s seluim,

T mariet values of equities. such as cemmon stocts and prefemed seowiics
o equity related irvesiments wich as futwes and opeed, heve historicaly
i and fallen in peraadic opled and may decline due 1o goneal maiket
conditions which are rof specifically related to a particular company, such as
toal of percehved advecie econamic conditnns, changis n Tha genetal
aulloek for comarte samings, changes ininterest or urmendy rates, publs
hialth emargencies, such as the spread of infectious illness o disease, or
atherde imeestat sentiment generally. They may also decline due to faciors
which atfect & particular indmitry o industries, such ag labar thortages or
nTeased prosSacion [osls and Comganitee condiians wilhin an industry
Ditfeent types af equity secuniies. may react dilferently (o thewe
doewlopments. Bquity securitics and equity related invwestments gen craly have
greater muarket price valandity than faed incoee sarurities

Certaih Fumds may ifest in certain imstruments that rely In some fashion
upon LIBOA UROR & an marage intenest iate, determned by the ICE
Benchmaric Adminisiration, that banks change cne ancther for the use of
sha-am money. The Unded Engiom's Hnahisl Condud Autkarty, which
requlates LEEOR, b srnoesrd plam 1o phase out the use of LIBOE by e
erd ol 2021, The warniass may resilt in-g redartion in the vahes of cerain
rutrumeniy held by & Fusd o a redaction in the offectwenen of related Fund
tramsactions sedh as hedges There remaing uncerlainty segarding future
utilization of LIBOR and the natwe of any reslacement rate (2.g, the Seamed
Ohvem 9'*-1 Financing Rate, which & intonded fo replace LS, dolle LIEEOR and
measares the cost of cvernight bormawings teough repurthase agreement
trarsactions collaeralized with U5, Treasury securities), and any patential
etiects of the ansition eway from LIBOR on a Fund or on coriem mstuments
o whiich & Fund imeests are not krawn and could seult in losses 1o 2 Fund

Hegmnisg & lanuary M0, QH:".I&;.'I"-EI'J'J-!| mafkets have axpenenoed and
may tonkine to eapenence signidiant volstiity resulting lrom e sgresd ol &
niove| corgnaings known a5 COVD- 1%, The outkreak of COVID 19 has

i iad if o Snd boider fetimiUons, quarinline, '|.u:lphl chain
diwruptionn, lower consumer demand and general market uncertainty, Tha
globad ecoremy, the econcasies of certain nations and individual tssuers have
bwent ancd ey continue to be sdversely affected by COVID- 19, particulady in
it ol the misitonne ity Befason sconomist and fmanoid madets, f of
wiich eray negatively impact the Funds’ performance. I addtion, COVID-19
and goverrrendal responset 1o COVID-19 may negatheely impact the
capabilties of the Funds” sonvice providens and disrupt the Funds” operations

Coadit and Cosntarpanty Riaka A Fund wil be anpoded to oredit risk 1o

o R with wehom it Brades and vall also Bear the risk ol seltement delsult
A Funad minimizes concentrations of credit risk by undenaling iransactons
with & lasge numbses of qustomans asd countarparties on eyl wd
ieputable eachanges, wheie appistabls. OTC dedhvale transsctions a
subjfect o the 1k thal a courtepaity to the tramsaction will rot Tulfill 45
centractual obligations 8o the ather party, a5 many of the protections aforded
o cenrally cheed do‘vatiee trardactions might rod be aeailable bor OTC
desivative transactions. For derivatives traded on an axchange or thiough 2
central counterparty, oedil i retades with the cediwort s of

the Fund's dearing broir. o the dearingheume jtvelf, rather than with a
counterpaty in an OTC dermative transacton Changes in regulation nelanng
1o i Fund's wie of derivatmes and refabed inmtuments could potentally limd

& impadt the Fund's sbdity 1o imvesd i derrvatoees, bmit the Fund™s atshiy 1o
employ certain statagees that use dervatives andior adweruely alect v valee
o parfcemance-of cemvatroes and the Fund. A Fund could lose money if the
iy o paaraniny of a fised income securiy, or the counterpany 1o a
financial derivartive instruments condract, mpurchase ageement of o lpan of
portioks searities, B unable or unwaling to maie omely prindgal andrer
irbevEst paymenty, of to otherase honor i3 obligatians, Securites and
finarwied dermvative mstruments ane swbject 1o verying degiess of coeds sk,
which may be reflected in crodit eatings.

Simila to c1edit ik, 2 Fund may be axpouad b countedparmy gk, of the nik
that an indtifution er ather engity with which a Fund has unsemled or open
gransactions will detnul, AMC0, s the Mz'mrr T mi;\gin;n}.-molmn'
ritks 10 the Funds theough & rumbe of ways. Prar to esteding intg
transactions with a new counteiparty, the PIMCO Counterpasty Risk
Committes conducts an extenshe redit revew ol such COUTTIE parTy and mas]
axprove the wie of such counterparty. Fuithermaone, parsuant to the terms of
tho undethying contract, 1a the satent that urpaid amaounts owed 10 Fund
Eoceed A precetaimmed Threshold, wuoh counsenpanty shall acvance collateral
\o- i Fund in the form af cash o securtics equal in value 12 the unpad
amour owved 102 Fund, A Fund may imwest such collateral in securities or
ather instrumants and will fypically pay infenest o the counterpay on the
colateral recoeed. M the unpaid amount owed 8o a Fond suiregoently
decreaves, & fund would be required to retum te the counterparty afl or a
it of tha collataral prevesuthy Bdwanced. PIMTO'L S108MPES 1 Mafif 2
dountempurty tisk may, hovwseeed, be unsuctesitul

All mansactions in lisbed sscurities se setled’paid [or upon deley using
ecproved courtemparties. The risk of delaub is considerad minimal, as delivery
ol sntuntsed eold = only made once a Fund has recewed paymant. Payment s
made on a purchase once the seoies have been defivered by the
counterparty. The tade will Tail if etther parry fasls to meet i obligation

) Ouher Risk. In goengral, gach Fund may be subect 1o additional ks,
irchading, Bat g Bemited 80 risios refated b QuveIrEent mguulim and
insenentos in Bnancal marke(s, operational sisks, ks associated with
fingncial, economic and globel market cewuptions, and oybersecunity niks
Paase 1eler 10 each Furd's affedng dotuments fo: & mene detasled
deisrphon of the ke af mwidtng & The Furd

Markei Disruptions Risk The Funds ane somc o investment and
aperational ks associated with financial, economic and ot*er global market
direfiopmants and dinuptions, ncloading those atising rom war, enomm
marbet manpuiation, govemment menentons, defaults and shubdoars,
pohial dhanges of ihpkamatic develogmenits, pabhe health emeigenoes
{such as the sprepd of infoctious diseases, pandamics and epidemics) and
maturaliemironmental ersasters, which can all negatively impact the secutities
rrcets, lerest fales, aurhans, secondany Trading, ratings, ciedin ek,
rBation, dedlation and other iactors relating o the Fund's investrments o the
Manager's operatiors and causa a Func 1 lose value. These events may have
it long-tevm elfeets on the LS. and waoild scordmiss and markels
gererally. These gvenis can also impair the technology and other operational
systems upon which 2 Fund's serdce providers, sncludeng PIMCD as the
Fundy' invweitment adviter, toly, and cocld othersvde disiunt a Fund's tendce
provaders” abdity 1o fullil their obbigabons to the refevart Fund. For example,
the spread of an misctions iespretony llness caused Ly a novel stiain of
oorondyirus [known as COVID- 11 Fas cauvsed volatilfy, severe mariet
dislacations and Fquidity constraints in many markets and may adversaly
afect @ Fund's invesiments and operd torn

Davernment Intervention in Finmssial Markets Fecenal, state, and ot
ganemments, their regulabory agencies, or self-requlatony organizatns may
Takoe achond that sect the requlahon of the @iiruments & whed b Fund
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enreesit, o the istuers of such indtruments, o wiays that are unlpresepable
Legitlation of regulation may aka change the way in which a Fund iself i
regulated. Sach legnlation or requiation could kmit or prechade & Fund's

ahe ALy 10 ACPREVE | IFvESTIMEN I}E|L‘{|.-"'t Furthasmene, wnlatile financial
maroets can expoye & Fund to gieater market snd hgudity ik and potental
ditfinaty in waluing portiole srsinaments heid by the Fund. The wvalue of 2
Fured's holdings & ako generally subject 1ot risk ol future local, nabonal, or
global scoromic daturberces besed oo unkngwn weacnessrs in the market
n which 2 Fund invesss. In addition, it & nat certain that the U.S. Government
woll irrtervene in redpovie fo .4 (utue madket detunhance and the elfect ol any
wuch Eature mtervention carmot be predicted. i it difficult lor s o
prepare fes the impect of future financial downtures, although comparies tan
coek ta wantdly and manage lubee uncerintes through rsk mansgement

:'III'!I]I'I-"'."‘

mlﬂlhq' Bhak Financisd ennties, such as invesiment companies and
mraeitmant advizers, ane ganely subject 5o extensive govertment regulation
and intenartion. Government requbation andier intenantion may change the
way & Fund 5 regulsted, aflect the expiried incufed duectly by & Fund and
the vy of ity imersiments, e Bmil andéor proeclade a Fund's ability o
athiewe its imesirent abjective. Government requiation may change

{reg ueitly and may hive :.eg-lrhr.ar-l Adyerie consbguenies Moreovi,
goveimemaent mequlation may have engeedictable and urantended effects

Dypmratiensl Rink An Freestiment i a Fund, ke any fund, can nvolve
aperational fisks ansing from factors sach a8 pocessirg errors, human efioe,
madequate o failed irteenal o ecternal processes, Lailues in wsipms and
lechnology, changes sh personned and erors Caused by thed-parny serace
praders. The oocuresce af .11rn‘ these failkoe, emors or breaches coold
vesult in a loss of imformation, regulatony smating, reputational damage or
ather sveats, any of which could have & material sdverse effect on a Fund
White a Fend seeks to minimire such everns theough controb and cversight,
thare may sull be falures that could caune losses to the Fusd

Cyber Security Risk As the iso of technalogy has becomd mone poevalent in
the toese ol business, the Funds have becare pobentially moee susceptible
1o operetionsl and information seduily rsks resuliing from bieaches in cybe
wocutity, A breach in cyber socurity refers 1o both imlentional and
unerientional rybeer ayenits: that may, among other Ii'-n:ﬁ rause a Fund i
BOSE PYOQNELET i DNMAToN, sufes dala CefTuptian and'or desauonos of lose
aperational capacity, result in the enaethonzed refease or other misise of
confidential information, o athenvise dsrupt aormal butiness operations
Cyted setunty failutes of Bteaches may eaudl i Srancal losses 1o & Fund and
ils Linaticagichers. Thesr Fadlunes or eeaches may aba resull i daruptions fo
business eperations, potestially resulting in Tinancial keses; sierference with
a Fund's shifity 1o caloudate & net asset value, procous Linitholde:
transactans o othenwtse fransact business with Unitholders; imgediments to
traschrey: winlations of applicable mvacy and athes laws; regqulatory fines;
pinalted; repulatonal damage; ievmboriement of ather comperdation coid;
additional compliance and cpber securty risk management costs and otfar
Sfheise (ofdeguences In acditon, subsiantal ot may be incuried in ander
1o peeant any cyber incidents in the futere

8. MASTER NETTING ARRANGEMENTS

The Funds may b wubject 1o vasnious nettieg acrangemens [ haster
Agrepments” | with select counterparties. Maiter Agiesments qovem the
1emes of ceran ransaciony, and arz intended ta teduce e B palty ritk
awocated with melevant transactions by specifying crodil protecton
mechanisms and provedng standardzaton that & intended to wmpiove legal
cetanty. Eath bype of Made Agiesment govens ceiain ypes of
tramsactions, Differend types of ramactions may be vaded out al different

Beggal entities or affikates of & partodlar orgamnzation, resufting i the nesd for
mukiphe agreements with a single countecpaity, A the Matin Agredments
are speitc 1o urmque operafions of different asset types, they allow a Fund 0
horie oot and net (5 toaal exposuie 1o & counterparty o the event of a defach
with Pespect b0 al the trassactions governed under 8 single Mater
Agpeemant with 2 counterparty. Foe financial reporting purposes e
Sraiements of Astels and Liabikoes generally present dernalne assets and
Gabikties oo & gross basis, which refects the lul ks and exposunes piar 1o
negting

Master Ageeements can ake help limit coursparty rivk by pecitying
collateral posling airangemdnts a pre-atranged sxpoiuie lewels Uinder most
Master .ﬁ.u}'nfr'qrm collateal is routingly transfemed i the total net expowre
1o cerlan iranssctions (et of existing colatecsl already in place) governed
wkes the relevant Magher Ag'nn'raﬂ' with & counlemarty = & goven acdount
enceeds 2 soecifed theeshold, which typically ramges from zero 1o 5.250,000
degending on the counterparty std the type of Master Agressent United
Seates Treasury Bils and U 5. doflar cash ato gentrally the prefoimed forms of
«ohacesal dll:h'.ugll DOner SeCilibes may Be used dEDE"IﬂI'-g on ihe eems
oullred i the apgliceble Maiter Agreement, Securitees and cash pledged as
collateral are refleciod a5 assots on the Statements of Assets and Liabilitics as
wither a component of Imestments t value (securities) or Deposits with
counterparty. Cash collatersd recevved B not typically beld in a segregated
acount and as such is eflected an & Rability on the Statements of Assats and
Liwell ties. &5 Despertits frnm eountédpaity. The Safket valie of any seduribi
ecerond &4 collateral m not refected 44 & componit of MAY The Ford's
averall exposure bo counterpacty visk can change subsiantialy within g short
period, & 1 i affected by each iramaction wobject 1o the relevant Maater

Acpesment

Master Repurthase Agreemerts and Global Master Repurchase Agreements
findiidoally and colecnvedy “hissner Repo Agreements ™) gowerm sepurchase,
s repurchase, ond sale-buykaci transactions beteseen the Funds and
selert countempartios. Mader Repo .!u_',r\n:mnnn rrainsn peovisins for,
AT ot [|¥"ig'L INTENON, MM PayFMments, Sents I:Ifﬂ\!'!-ﬂ."l', and
manberance of collateml. The mariet value of ronsactions under the Master
Repo Agreement, collxieral pledged o recaived, and the net exposure by
counterparty 44 of penod end are declosed in the Notes 1o Schedube of
Irnersimen|s

Master Securities Forward Trarsacbon Agreements | Master Forwaed
Mgpeements” | gevern cesn fonsad witing trarsactions, wuch & TRA
secwitios, celepsd-delivery or sale-buyback rantactons by and

between the Funds and seleqt courreipanties The Master Forwang
Aopemen [ MBRLEA PirEicns for amang othes thindgd, i Blteon and
canhmaton, paymind and tramher, svents of defacdt, teimination, ard
maintemande of collateral The market value of forsard settiing ransactions
callatesal pledged or reterred, &nd the net expodane by countepanty as of
perad erdd are disclosesd i the Hotes o Schedu'e of bvesiments

Cusnomes At Agrepments and related addenda govem Ceaned
deinialives, aisacbors such as Puluies, oot on lutudes, and desied OTC
derraatives. Such transactians iequire postrg of inftial marge as detomined
By eacch relevant dearing agency which is seqregabed in an acoount at a
futiine commetatn meschant | " FCMT) regianesad with the Commbdiy
Futeres Taading Comenivsion (" CFTC" ] Inthe Unined Sates, cossviespariy rk
rmay be reduced & crecinges of an FOM cannot have @ chaim o Fund assats in
tha srgingatied attoud Portahlty al pupdriuie i the ment o an FCA
defauit seenatio further reduces risk 1o the Funds, Yarasion masgin, of
changes i market value, are generaly sxchanged dady, but may rot be
netiod botwesn futures and Ceared OTC dervatiers unbiss the partses buns
agreed 10 @ separate arangemend in respect of fund margining. The markat
walue o egcumulated unredized appredation (degreciation), mitial maigin
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9. FEES AND EXPENSES

Lt foslbcrwney fees. payabie an the felowing annual rates (staed as 3 perceraage of the average daly met asiets of each Fund, or Class, |f
Jpn W
Fean

Fund Management Advizsny Adminintrative Apgency Digtribution
PBCD Bermuda Foreiga Low Daration Fund i - - = =
PBACD Bermuda W.5. Low Duratian Fund 12E% - - = =
PBCD Eura Total Retuin Fasd - a45 025 il 0%
PBACO Real Return Fund - &5 N4 nid na
PRCO Shan-Term Strategy

= b & g = ol ne

= CluSh - = L 2 5

w L - - ~ = -

= JSD|

DR L | i

. D 045 3 5 DETS
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advizory and administrativg foes, § applcable, sro pasd monthly in amears 1o PIMCD for provding e 1'rr.:_|.'-: Hor the proveion of adwory,

s The agency and
o reimbure frarcisl interredianes that provide wervices and distritsdtion nelating bo th % ol e

uda Foreign Low Dueation Fund and MMWC0 Sermuda LS. Low Duration Fund, PRACO,
aut of i3 managemen Tag, wall haar e COSIS Assorafed willh aavanly and aammistraimne senaces, [ CoveT AimInEtratve Epenses in
exchange lor th fee, PINKCO will bear the Costs of cérain thind-pany e quited by the Funds, inducing sudit, cushodisl, pusiee, poriolo s(counting, legel
trarvfer agent and printing senices. PIMCO, and net Unitholders, would benedit from any price decrease in the cost of such thisd-party senices, incuding deoeases
resuliing Fom an incéase i niet asaels. b sddnon, with respert 1o Fusds thal a'e subgect 1o &5 5d mirwsira e e, PIMCO generaly mates & prefit on wech & e

g noled in o ble aboie, certam Funds and Classes of Funds ane 5ot ubyedt 10 management, advisory, adminismsive, agency of distrbuton lee, PIRCOD lapan
Lad, PINBCEY's afiilate inv Jmpan, 15 pavd & fee from the Japanese bvesiment Travts or ather invesimend vehicles. that invest in such Fends or Classes and a jportion of
such few is then aliocated o PIMCO to compencate it for it sennces

distritaation fees, i applicable, ane paid monthly @ ate
applcatie Fund (or Class thereod, a5 applicable). In tha case of the PRICO Benes

e Funds [or Claces theseal, 31 apabicable] may beas in pered fEated 10 Thsr upe-'arm that are nod covered by the managemeni, advsory, admmisiiatmg,
apengy or detibution fees, inchuding bt nof lmibed to: | (=) biokerage fees and commivsion
1) costs of borow g maney, including imerest exparse; | ragid ary eapenses, ncluding costs al ||I|:||,|||:|| and i
aliocaned of allacahle to a specihie Clis ol units, & spplcable r|r."|}m.p| § the aeganitational expiente Fiaocialed with FIMCO She

ap

d otfer portiolio e ton mpenses;
nses) and (v any expensas
n Saraneqy’s witial wet-

e mii e

PIMCO has. pald the ceganizational expentes ausodiated with the meation of the Tt if further Fumds ate lsanched, such costs direatly attibutable ta the releant
Furd may be batne by the teecsnt Fund
. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIOMS

The Inwesiment Advier & selated party do the Tunds and Is a majonty-taned wbsidiary of A
dischosed i Mote 9, and scctied related party fog amounts, 4 any, ane disclosed on the S2ateme

1 haist Managessent AG. Fess paid to the relaed paity, if any, &
15 of Advets and Liabibties

Crtain Funds gie peimitted 80 purchase o Soll wecuribes Inam of to certair related fiiated hunds under ipecified condito autlined i ceocedunes. sdopted by the
Isestreent Adviser. The procedunes have been designed 1o ensure that any purchase or sale of secarities by a fard from on to arather fund that & of could be
condideied an alfhate by wiis of hivesg & common adviser (of iMEated imaitmedt sthasen), & eHectad at the turtedt market price. Duting the percd ended May
A1, K021, the Fundis) below engaged in purchases and saes of securtties among atfilisted funds [amcunts in o)

sl P b
FIMCD Barrvada Foregr Law Daritian Ford § i
PIWCD Barwals U 5. Liw Dstemsan Furd m
FICD Ererpng Marke B.-nu Furd M1 19,462

FINTO Faad Atz Ford
PIMCD $hown Term Sunmgy

141,155

11, GUARANTEES AND INDEMNIFICATIONS

Unides e Truat's ceganizational documents, ceriain parses (ncleding the Trustes and PIMCO) ae indemnlfed aqainst ceriain labilites that may atise oul of
petformance of their duties 1o the Funds. Additionally, in the nomal course of business, the Funcs ender into contracts that cortain a varety of indemnification dauses
The Funds' maxmum expodwe under these armngamends i unknown as this would neolve heture claims that may be made againsd the Fusds that have nat yet

S Himweee, the Finds | e clares o IDs5es pUrvea] 1n thise conlrass

1L UNITS OF BEMEFICIAL INTEREST

The Trunt may [ssue up o 500,000,000,000 urts. The Funds may have & significant conventiatien ol mk, a3 certain Unitholden own more than ten percsnt of the ret
agsets of each respective Fusd Such concencration of Unitholders” incerests could have a man Fiect on the Furdh in the event these Uritholders iequest w0

withdraw substantid amounss of capitsd 32 the sama time, Sukdoiptons snd redemgtions of umety of the Funds are decommnated in the Funds” NAY cornency and
converted b the Funds” Tunicnas curenscy &1 the wpal rale on 1M Uansarnon date, Unim of esch Fund ane ssoed withoot par velee The Trusese, s
the Marager, may in the Future create and offer an sdditional Fund or Class or Classes of units

Vi consent of

et Ri1 | Mi) 31, 2220
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. nits of beneficlad imesest were a5 Tollows (units and amounts in thousands®]
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@ 2019 29 2020 31
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Statements of Dperations wont Vear Endad M

T
Eerymy PRILE Ewe
Whaign B Tkl Bt PRILT fam PRICE T
T Tl \rart P Tave Srming
Invistmont bncom:

STRIEL i EEY EUA 1T L 1.3 5 11,093
Moxrin- nceme - - .
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Wik 18 n (1)
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ik Wik [ o
mimif & 5 | 4 13 I
Maxalioraoas faps 1 ] L 104
Tanl frsmese: I ] 87T ]

Net lewvestmeent Incone LES T4 ] 3 &

Net Realizad Gain (Loss):

hi et o lovwon Eaosi™ L] 1 S A

e ] 181 1978 .72
1k f
] B

palired .ﬂu.ppru:illinrl {Deprociation)
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et Incroaso |Docrense) in Mot Aszots Resulting Irom Oporations ) 5,188 EUR (] i 3.6 i 266

* Farmgn man withholdng L] o §
v el . s W - R
Lia srsemganying eaim Mnwsi Rapar | iy 31, 029

264/405



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Statements of Changes in Net Assets o Vet Endad My

Eratpry LD
T Tital et PIMCE PRI b
. i Vet Toms ot
Increase | Decrease) im Net Assels lrom:
Dpirai tana:
T IPWRSIERRE RO i 1 28 g3 1.4
Pl reel o n (] i) ¥
Rt chasge 1 urrmaied sppeena o Eesreren, 3 B T 1 q
Pl s [decraass) mizating Iom comanons 15188 &h "
Distribtions 1o Unitholdors:
Dxiinbutrees 1]] Hrd
Hik h'8 Hid
Wil KA Wik
ik i Hih
L1L] WA Wik
Wik NA [
? m i i
Tg ] [ 0
Fsnd Pnif Tramsaclions:
et i oot nating o Fund ot Faeeien” TRADN )| 11,07 #1174
Total liicrease |Docroase] im Nel Assels 115, B} 71 1537 &1 574
Net Azants:
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End of yu P EUR 5, 'aa 13,53 5 431,19
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Financial Highlights con Year Ended May 31
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1. ORGANIZATION

Each Fusd deboussed in thes neport (each a “Fund” and collectively, the “Funds®), whah sl ncheces each odlass of unio of thar Fund (ach & “Class® and colerysly,
the "Clesses™], is o senes trust of PIMCO Bermuda Trust (the “Trunt™ ), an open-ended unil tust estabished under the Lews of Bermuda as & mults-series trast pursuant
to @ trust deed executed by Winchester Global Tt Company Limited oo August B, 1001 (a5 amended from time to time, the "Truss Deed ™). Efectie a5 of the dese
af businass. (E asseen time) on September 29, 20017, Maples Toustes Serdees Bermuda) Limvted (the *Tnstee®) was aoposnied &5 tnstee ol the T, Pacfic bwesiment
Wanagemert Company LUC {"PIMCO", the 'L’.an:q:r' or the " Inwestmens Adviser™) is the sponser of and was responaible for siructuring the Truss

T Truit is subyect 10 nequla tor and supseretsion &5 prowded for in the bavestment Funds Act 2006 and related sules relating to standard funds

T tevms of the Trust Deed confer upon the Trusies, with the consent of te Manager, the power, in the future, 1o establish hurther funds in addition ta the Funds
cumenily in operation as of the case of this regon

The Funds presented in this 1epor are listed below

i [Hiormd 10
PARICD Bormeda Foraign Low Duration Fund Eitfered onby o fumds wath 8 “Fard of Funds”™ gnecture, a5 defned in e reles: of the |
PMICD Bormada U5, Lovw Duration Fund Ereastmant TRass ARRCiFion, Japan. of i3 fonds with & 3imilar stuciure inamy otk
PARICD Emarging Madkets Bond Fund | JTF) prndsciion
PKICT Ememging Mericrts Bond Fund [Yen-Hixgedh
ARICT Emerging Mivieets Bond Fund I |
“PMICD Ewro Tatol fiotem Fund. | Oforod 1o reaail invesices in Jepan by way of pebic off2ning irosgh o Sistribstor iy |
ARICTY Aeal Retum Fand | Japan, ard mey be alletad 12 other ivesioes & B doeenon of the Manager
PRACT) Sheart-Tesm ooy ™ Pes e v el ivvaices in Japan by vy of pebiic offsing theough & Sstrlsie srlis & |
sales hand g company in Jagan, and may bo olfesed 83 ather investors o Ba d screlicn
of the Manager. |
" MMICD [mergng Makets Bond Tund {M) T ciﬁ- 1 attear Fonds to servs 8 o and evlying inwestment vshicle o much Funds |

P 4 LIPTY g S [ o PR Shory o Sy v e vy 1t Ay e ¢ T ot FCWions, o i o S T o (W T Ty ST, g, 7 A Y 4 SIS ST 8y S e

i 10 e o AT Dl (e sty £ e sy A e S anuft b o 7 i srwbelymay et sk for s e

Units of the PIMC D Eura Todal Retum Fund, PIMCO Real Rt Fond, and AUD, Y, and USD CRasaes of FRMCD Short: Torm: Stratogy hawve boon registered undor the
Financial Insirumeris. and F:ma'\:::: Liw of fapan Linats of each of the remaining Fungs and the © {LISDY, 1 {FY), and | (USD) Classes of PIMCE Shor-Tem 'irrqm_'pf
hiwe not Been and are Aol cunenlly espacted 10 b negistened wnder 1he Fiendal inttuments and Exchange Liw ol lapan. Accondingly, such Units ol these Funds may
niot b, dinecily or indirectly, offeed in lapan or o any resident in lapan, excepd in complianoe with applcable lapaness lras and :(\-g,]l.}'.i-.;.'.s

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The foliowing s a summary of signifcant aocounting pofities consistently followed by the Trust in the praparation of its finandal stasements in conformity with
sctounting principles gererslly sccepted in the United States of America (U5 CAAR®) Each Fund i teated a5 an investment company usdesd the reperting
requinments of U5, GRAP. The peeparation of fnanciad statements in accerdance with U5 GAAP requingd managemend to maks extimales and assumption that
affect the reporied amounts of assets and liabdites and dischosure of contingent asets and lakilities at the date of the Finandial statements and the reported amounts
ol incresses and daceses in nel dssats from oparations durng the repoing perlod. Acusl retu'ts could diflar from those esiimates

{nh Unebartying Fumd The Trestes and the Marager may apply all of 4 portion of the swsets of PRMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fusd [IMF), AMCO Emesging Markets
Bend fund (¥en-Hedged), and FINICO Emenging Markets Bond Fund B (each referred 1o heren as @ "Fund of Funds”™ of the “Acguining Fund”, whech invests in other
Furedy) to the irspective oedil of the PIICO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M) (neferied to hereim 43 2n " Undestying Fund™ o the " Aoguined Fend{s)"). Any asiets w0
appbed will be held im such Acquired Fund{s) as # receved directly. Where assets are so appled, the Acquired Funols) will record the issue of units 1o the relevant
Aeruining Fund a1 the iviss prace ped unil of such imis snd wll sopuichase ach anitt af the repunchine price ped unit of such usiks at the tlime ol epunchaie

Ratzos shown in the Financiel Hghlights do nol include expenus of the Acquoed Fand]s) Soe Nole 5, Fers and Eapene, lor luither inlormaticn isgatding fend lees,
5 BpDRCAR

by Secerities Transactions and levesiment Incoms “eowmies rarsechons are recorded as of the ade case i Snancal eporting purposes. secehes purchated o
wold on & when-nsued o delayed-delivery bain may be setiled beyond o slandand settiemen] period foi the seowily aller the trade date. Redised gaitn end ko
Treem sequnities sold are recoded on the identified tost bass. Dewidend income & reconded on the ex-didend date, extept et dividencs from forsign sequites
wiabre thie c-divicend dae may B pedoed, which &t fecorded 34 soon o A Fand B nfaimad of the #-dvadend dats Inteeest income, addjusned for Bk acietion of
discounty srd smartization of premiums, & eecorded on the acrual basis rom settement date, vwith the exception of secarities with a lorwand stanting elacthe cate,
wiere interest income is recorded on the accrual bass frem eflective date. For convertible secunties, premiams atributable 1o the comeersion feature are nat
amertzed Estimated tax kabibies on certain faneign securities ane recoeded on an soorusl basis aed are reflected as compenents of interest income or net change =
unieakited appeeciation [depreciation) on ivwestments on the Statements of Operations, & appropeiase. Tax Kabilities reakired a5 a revu® of such security sales are
teflected as & comparent of net reakred gain (Joss) on evesiments on the Statsments of Operatiers. Paydown gaess sed leases on moiigage-relsied and other aused-
bt besd securibies, if any, &re fecorded 83 componenits of inteeesl incorre on the Stilements of Dpezations. Debt chiigations may be placed on nos-acirusl St and
related imenest income may be reduted by ceasing curtent acoiuals and waiting off interess recersable when the collection of all o a podtion of interest his become

e P | My 31, 30 a
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doubtul based en consistently applied procedres. A debi obligation s
semoved om non-acciual statis when the isium reumes inbéret! paymants
ar when mllectabiity of interest is probable

{eh Cash and Foreign Cumency The franoal statements of each Fund ane
presanted using the cumency of the primary ecoromic amviconment in which 4
oparates. (the “functional curreray”™) The funsctional cumendy fer each of the
Furds i ksted i the below Lable

The mardost walues ol Fne\engr secumties, curency holdings and ofher asiels
and kabilities are trarslated irto eadh Fund's funetional currency based on the
curte enchange catis vath busines diy, Purchages and sabs of sodwitors
and income and experse dem dencminated in foreign curencies, H any, ane
tranilated ietn each Fund®s respective functional cunency at the exchange
1abe in efflect on the transaction date. The Funds do not separately report the
ellects of changes in foreign exchange raes from changes in maikel prces on
sequrites held. Such changes are included in net reafized and net changss in
unitakeed g of logs Trom ervestmaents o9 the Sacements of Dpeatises

T Funds may it in loreign curiency denominated secaties and may
engage n foreign currency ansartons efther on a spot (cash) basis an the
raby p'r«lai’\-nr}in the cumengy eacha g market af {hg tme |;|r1hrgugh:
Terward foreign currency contract. Realized forsgn enchange gans o losses
Alising fram saked of spot Saitgn Curehoies, CuimenEy gami of iidtes reakhed
beivaen Bw trade and sekement dates on secunfes Sansackiors and the
diffierence between the recorded ameunis of daadends, inferest, and Foreign
withitinlding Lined and e functonal curiehcy squivalont of the amtanty
achually received or paid ave incluced in net realized gain or loss on foreign
CunEncy HAnSACToes on the Statements of Operatons Nel unrealized fersgn
eachange gains and bovees atising from changes i foreign exckange rates an
loregn denominabed assels and liabdities other than investments in securities
hield &t the end of the tepoiting seriod are inchuded in net change in
uniakized apprediation or deprociation on 1nm'5n currency #5uets and
sabalifies on the Sratements of Operations

The Faen Axset Viahae { BN ) el 10l etuing ol cortan Funds (o1 Cladses
thereck, & applcable) are prevented in the currenay for which the NAY i
repanied (the “KAV currency ™) as detalled in each Fund's Ofieing
Wemarandum (the “Uffenng Memarandum® ). For the purposes of the
piesanlabon of the NAY and the botal isiurn in the NAY Luisengy, the
begneing and ending NAYS aic conerted wsing the perod beginning and
-:h-.'d-vng morhan:p rates, ipadtively, and distributions ane oomarted .nin} tha
eachange rate & the tme of the dstibution. See the faliowing table for the
WAY cumendy of each respeciie Fend:

FIMED Berrmuda Farmign Low Qoo hand | dopenese yon |
| FMCO Bmrnads U5 Low Daranos Fard | depanese yen | UE dodat
(| PAMCH gy barke: Byee Fueml LITTF) Lyt )Y g
AN Dmarprg blarkts Dond Furd (041 _| U5 dolar | UE dodow
= B0 |
FIBICD Emerpng Markesy Bond Fund (Taniecged) | Jepansseyn | US dolm
hHEﬂ!ﬂuH !J:nﬁsn_&mdh:d!l ] Jup|mg1'm | ULE, dollai
« JERl |
® J'gﬂ_l
® J A |
= KN
s JiTRA
- J TR
FILICD fure Towl Rrtum Fund Eurg Eern
| FIMCD Rual Rurn Fond | US doler [ U5 dolm

Faztong?

MY Curreney

Earergy

|_PCD Shen-Teem Sumiegy
« AD Austrofien dolar | LS. deller
« CoEh 115 dellar LIS dellsr
#  JILFN Japese pen LS. dellar
w  Jusin Japanie yen LS. dollar
s I lapmre pen 15 deller
[ i 15 dellar | 145 dollar

{d} Multiclass Dpersthoss Each Claw af 8 Fund offered by the Truss has
rights 1o 1Fe assets of the Fund oqual 1o that of other Clavses of the sama
Fund, aucept for specilic assets and gains and losses designated to a Class
redating o cmency hedging cperations. Income, non-Class spedific experes,
arsd rgn-Clasa specilic waliced and umealioed capital gains and loyes are
Flocated to sath Class of units based on the selative net assets of eadh Class
al the respectinee Fund Clast specific exsendes aumently inclade
management, advisory, administrative, agency #nd dasribyton fees, whene
axplicable

{a) Distribstion Polboy The faliowing table shows the anbicpated Bequenty
of distritations for each Fund. Distrbutions from each Fund may be declared
drwd ceniibuted 1o Unitholders onrly upon the authatization of 1he Manage:,
which authorization may be withkeld at the Manager's discretion

Dociered Duily wrad Paid Mosthiy

FVCD Furo Totad Returs Fund

PRACO Emarging Markets Bond Fard UITH
PANICD memging Markats Bond Furd fen-Hedged)
PACD Femiwging Markazs Bered Furrl 1

FACD Short-Tarm Sustegy
- 4 UP
- J IUEDN

Declpted and Pald Quarsty

PACD Bsitiinda Forigm L Duiat o8 [und
PCD Berrmixia LS. Lo Dutatson Fund

Secivrnd and Paid &nnoliy

PACO Recal Rotuen Fung

PG Shert- Tam Sindegy
" AL
« CIUSD
- Y
U

Ths Mansgar dsas nol & boana with respac 4o this

n iy discragen, Saclans and

Fured [er Clisgaa Paretd, F applzahlsl Bul
gy distributiess 10 S Unabelders 51 aey e

PAICO breging Markas Bond Fornd iy

Distributions, if any, will gmmr-,- be made from the relevant Fund'™s {or
Class's, i apglicable] net investment income, In addition, the “anage' may
axthorige the paymend of rel coakoed copitsl gaind. pvailabile for datsibution
Addtonal datyibutions may be declared a5 the Manager deems appropriate.
Distributions paid with respect to amy Fund far Class trereo!, i appicabic)
will redure tha NAY of such Fund (or Class thereof, # applicable). &1 the
dacetion of the Unitholders, cash dutibetiang freem 2 Fund (o Clas thareef,
o appicable) may eiher be renvesied in addrhonal usits of & Fund (o Cless
theseof, if applicablel or pad to 8 Unithalder in cash. Cash payenents will be
i i Ehe MAY currency of the Fund Each Fund |or Class theepal, if

el Pt | Wy 31, 190 i
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apphcakle) may dedare further disirbetion if considend necessany in anjer
10 rmaintan & reasonable lreed of dinbetions (or 2 Fund (o Claw themod,
apolcatiel). Inthe evest that there i inadequate net income and net reafized
capital gaing to pay & drtributen of a Fund jor Class pvereod, | applicable)
roquired by the Qffering Memorandum, the Manages may pay a distribution
coiaing of & poiton ol the cagtal of such Fund [ Ol thaeal, if
applcatle] Dhstibutions rot collecied withen sin yeais Hiorm thes due date
wll laczrse el will aocrae 5o the benefit of the rebevant Fund or Class themof,
A appheatdel

10 New Ac:counting Pronosmcemants n March J020, the Financia
Acoounting Standatds Bosrd [“FASE") meved an Accounting Standands
Update { "ASU™Y, ASU DO20HE, which provides optional guidence 10 ease the
potential aco :l".i'l.j b associated u.ilhﬂ.w-r.-risrin] away from the
Lendon Irgerbank Dffered Rate [“LIB0R") and ocher reference rates thar ae
expected b0 be descontinued The ASU is effectieely immedately upon iclease
of the upddate on March 13, 2020 thiough December 31, 2022, At ths time,
managemant & svaliating the impbcaticns of these changes o the finanoal
stakements

2. INVESTMENT VALUATION AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS

(o} Bnvestment Valuntion Policies The price of a Fund's unifs o based on
the Fund's NAY. The AN of a Fund, or each of its Classes, as applicable, is
detetmined by dividing the total value of portiolio investments. and other
sl attributable to that Fund or Class, less any Eabiltes, by the total
niumbes of wnis outstanding of that Fund or Class. On each Fund's Dealing
Dy (s descritsed i the cuirent El-'-'e*r\-g Menpiandus ol the Trua),

Fursd writs are ordinacly valued a5 of the diese of reqular trading on the New
Yook Steck Bxchange ("HYSE Close™) Indnimation that becomes. known 1o
the Funds of ther agents aler B trmie i4 ol whath HAY Rad beeh Caltulated
an a parkioules day will nog l;l?'ﬂfﬂ"rb'.l..‘\?d o 'qlrﬁﬁ.'r'ﬂl-r ajur the prace
af o security or the NAY determingd earfer that day. Each Fund reserves the
right o change the time a5 of which 1is NAY i waltulated d the Fund doses
perler

Fee purpeses of cabulating a WAV, pordolio secwities and other assets foe
wiih bkt quones ank ceadily avalahle see walued 8 marke! vl Wacke
value 5 genarally determined on the basis of official ciosing prices or the last
repaned saled prites, of if o el aie repaited, bated on quotes ablsmed
rom establsbed madot matoen oo pices (ncleding svaluated prices) supplied
oy the Funds’ appeowved prcing senices, quotation reporting systerms and
ather Theid-paity souites {logether, ‘Flu..rl,'. Senace” b Thi Fussd will
nomally use pricing data for domestic equity securdies recoied shartly atter
the W¥5E Close and do not saemally take into accoun trading, cearances of
settiements that take place gher the NYSE Clete M markoet value pricing i
used, & foreign [mon-L. S ) equity security traded on & foreign eachange or on
more thie one exchange &5 typically valuid using pricing infermation fam the
enchange conticensd by the Managet o b the primary sachange, & lorngn
{nan=L5 ) equity security will ke vaboed a5 of the dose of trading on the
Tpreign exchange, of t5e NYSE Close, i the NYSE Close aoours before the erd
al ttadire 0n e kaivigh exchange. Domesstic and fovegs nan-d! S | tmed
MIDME Seowities, non N[h-iﬂ:]'! traded derivatives, ard equity options are
natmally valued on the basis of quobes chiained fram broters sed dealen oo
Pricing Senvices wing data refleding the sarier dosing of the principal
markets for those securities. Prices obtaned from Prcng Seneces may be
heved on, among ot thengs, infeemation proded by maiiet makers o
estimates of market values obtained from yeld data rHarn}:n imyesterents or
sequtities with wmilse charactesistics. Cerain faed income securities
puithided on & Séliayed-delrny bl ke mbioed 1o markel daily unts
settiemend at the Torsard westliement date Eaman;r'-t'ﬂﬂed aptions, soorpt

equity opticns, fulures and aptions on fatuses, sre valued &1 the serfiament
prico defermined by the relvant sxchange, Swap agréemants e valued an
the basis of bid guotes oitained from beokers and dealers of market-based
prices suppled by Pricing Senvces of other plicing sources. A Fure's
rwrIments in open-end managament mstment companies, ottt 1han
enchange-biaded funds [“ETF"), are valued at the MAVS of such imvestments
Oper-end Management mvesiment companies may rchude alfifated funds

ol & laregn {Fan-LL 5 ) equity secunty s value has matenally changed alter the
whore ol the secunty’s prmary eachange o principal matket but bedoe the
MYSE Clode, the secuity may be walued a1 fai vabe based on procedures
eitabdinhed and approwed by the Manage:, Fareign {nae-U,5 | equay
segaries that do not frade when the NYSE is open are abso valved at fair
walue With 1espact to [umu;r- [ron-LE 5. ) eduily secunbes, & Fund may
ghebermirw the Fair valuw of ivestmenis based on information prowided by
Priging Services and other thind-party vendees, which may receereend faie
kot o éd|u'.|r|¢n|’l.'.\|lh-'r|r'm:r o athed degumed, mod of Bssels B
amsidering whether fair valuation iv wquired and in detoimining Ris
walues, & Fund may, amoeg other things, consider sgnificant events (which
may be contideved o include changes in the vahoe of U5, securts or
securities indices) that ocour adter the clase of the relevant market and before
thee NYSE Clowe. & Fund may wili e modeling tools provided by thed-pariy
wendon 1o detemine Tair values of doreign (non- LS ) securities. Foe these
PuEpases, any movement in the applicabie reference index or instrument

(" meie Migoer” | between the eaber doe of the applicatls fesmign market
anad the NYSE Clone may be deemed 1o be 2 significant everd, prampting the
appheatn of the pricrg moded (sfectively resulting in daily fair

waluations). Forsign exchanges may parm tradeg i foosign (non-Ll s )
equity seaunities on days when the Trust is rof open for business, which may
g5l in & Fund's portlelio irvesiments Being afecied when Unihalders oe
unabie to buy of 4l unitt

Seniof wecred Naating rate icans tor which an actie fecondary markel et
1o a reliable dégree wall ba valued ot the mean of the last avadable badlast
griced in the matket fo such loand, s proveded by & Pricing Sernce. Sencr
seced Tioatmyg rate koans bor which an active secondary marked does not
i o & relbable degres will be vabeed at faill valye, which is intended o
Sxprommate markel value. (o valeeg & sersor setuind loatsg eate ban at
Hair valur, the factom considernd may include, but ane not limited 1o, the
follewing: (2] the crediewerthiness of the bemower and any imemedize
participants, [b) the 1eims of the koan, (o] iecent prices in the market ot
samilar kgans, if any, and {d) regent prices in the marked for intinements of
simalar qualty, rate, penod wrtil next nbeset rate feset and matusity

intes Lt s veakoed in correncies othes tham the functional omency

ol a Fund are conserind te the funciional cumency using cachange rates
cmAined hise F'.l:':l\.g Sarices. A5 A result, the value of nach vesiments and,
i qurmn, thie WY of the Fund's units may be atfeced by changis i the value
al curencies. in relation 1o the funcBional oamency. The valie of irmeesiments
traded in forelgn surkets or dencminated in cunencies oter than

The functional curmency may be alfected sigrifcantly an o day that the Tnnt is
mat open for busineys. As a tesult, 1o the extent that a Fund holds Toreign
{non-U 5} isvesiments, the value of those mwvestments may change 81 times
when you canhal purchate, redeem o exchisge units and the valie of uach
rvesimants will be refiected in the Fund’s next caloulated NAY

Eeweestments for which market geotes or market based vakeations ate not
iy avai able de valied &1 Far v da determined m good laith by

the Manager or peisons acting at ther direction. The Marager kat adapted
methids o valuing setuntes and athe: assels in arcumsiances whede
mmarket quiotes are not madily availabls, and has celegated 1o PIMCO the
responsibdity tor applying the fair valiasion methods In the event that market
eoies of rarker besed valuations are not readdy availzble, and fe ssouity
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or 3552t cannot be vadkped pursuant toa |'|"-\1l'l-]l]l’."' approwed valuabon
methed, the walos of the secunty or et will bo determined in good faith by
the Valization Commitiee. Markel quoies are considered not readly svalable
n Ehoomatances where thers is an absence of current o rellabie rarket-
hosed data (g, trade information, bidiek slomation, rdcatte marke
quotatsiors {"Broker Cuates”), Piiong Services” phcesh, inciuding whene
ey, ociut aler the dides of (he releaant marked, bul gool b the KT
Close, that materially affect the vales of the Fund's securitees oo asets, In
addition, market quotes ate considered not seadly avadable when, dus to
enlracRnaly Ciitimatances, the sachengss of maikers on which the
socutities trade do not open Bor trading for the enting cay and no ather
markcet prices are aviiable. The Manager is responsible for menitoring
ugrhianl svents that may mstctially tlect the vilued ol e Fund s ieturtied
o assety and lor gedeimining whather the value of the applicable seourites or
arssets shoukd be reevaluated in light of such significant events

Witirs & Fund e Aar waluston oo dedssmming thee value ol & portiolio secunty
ar other asset for punposes of calculating it MAY, wch imestmants will nat
e griced on the basis of quotes from the primary market in which they are
trasche, Bwil risthier mary be prded by angther rathed (hal the Manager o
pessons acting at their deection believe reflects fair value. Fair valuation may
tequine subjective determenations aboul the value ol a secuity. Wide

the Truss's poboy is inbended to sl inoa calculation of & Fund™s NAY that
fauly refiocts sapunty values as of B time of picing, the Trust casmal prsune
that fak values derenrined by the Klanager of persons aing at their
direction would accyraiely reflect the price that a Fund could obtsn for a
wecutity il it were i dspode of that seowity as of the tme of pricing [for
sutance, in 8 forced o dtrassed sale] [P prce used By & Fund may differ
{rom the walue that would be realized A the seourities wene sold

{1 Fair Walue Hiewarchy U 5 GAAP dewcribes fair valse as the price that

& - Fund woudd receive: 0o Sell an et of pay po tranlis a liak ity o i afderly
Iramaction behween market parmcipants af the mexunesent dato. It
estoblesbes a fai value leerachy that peicritizes inputs o vahation methods
and requires diaclodure ol the far value feetarchy, separately lor each major
category of assats and Eabilies, 1hat segregates fair value measimments into
bevels (Lowel 1, 2, o 30 The inguts od -I-eL'f.r.‘-'Jr.-gr used for walu i) SE0UDes
ate hot fdeddardy &0 indiabon ol e raks sssotuded with swesting mn hede
woecuritios. Leveds 1, 2, and 3 of the Ear walue hievarchy are defined as foliow:

= Levef 1—0uanied pnces in acive mickets of exchanges for idenical assets
A abslitiey

# Level I—Significant ather obasrvaiile inputs, which may include, but sre
nat fimited to, quated prices for similar asse s or Habilities i maikets B ane
aitive, quoted prices for identical o similar assets or iabalites in markets fed
afo not sctive, inputs other than quoted prices that ace obeenvablo for the
awets or babildies (such as interest rades, peld curves, volatidhies, prepayment
speeds, b severities, creda ks and default ranes) o other market
comobonated inputs

® Lyl 3==Significant tnobienvabie irputs based on B bast imformation
avaikadla in the drcumstances, 10 the exent obsanable inpuss ale nod
svallatle, whith may intlude stsumptons made by the Manages or pesons
#cting at their direction that see used in determining the fair valos of
frresiments

in atcordance with the requaements of U S GRAF, e ampurs of pamibfens
n and out of Level 3, if material, are dediosed in the Kates o Sdhed de of
brvestrents Tor sach respective Fund

For fair vabuatons using signilcant unctsersable nputs, L5, GAAP nequings
10 dscioae transfers into and out of Level 3 of the fair yalue Bierarchy and
purchases and issues of Level 3 assets aad Rabilies during the period
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Adduonally, U5 GANF requnes quantitatre sdormaticn regasding the
snpificant unobsaivable inputs wied i the determination of lair value of
assety or liabiities categorized as Level 3 in the fair value higraschy. in
sccordence with the requeemests of U 5. GAAR, a far vahie hierarchy, and i
mmatefial, detads of figribcant unckhervable inpats, have been incloded in the
Mates to Setedule of rvestments for each respective bund

il Valuation Tochaiquas and the Fair Value Hisrarchy

Laval 1 and Level 7 wadisg sssats and trading liabilitios, st fair vales The
wilustion methods (ar “techniques ™) and significant nputs used in
daterminieg the fair valees of portiolio secutites or gther assets and labilgies
categorizad as Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair vatue hiesandhy are as foll ows

e incorre securities. inchuding conporase, comvertible and maesicipal bands.
&d noted, U5, government agendes, LS. treajury obligetions, soversign
Epues, Bank loans, corverbible prefered sequiities and nen-U%. bonds are
mermally valued on the bass of quotes obtsined from brokes and dealers or
Pricing Seraices that use broker-dealer guotabons, repored trades or
saluation evtimates Traun thei inkema pricing mudels The F|||_|'|;| Capies’
wienal modes ube inputs that ate obrsenable such a4 daeer detinh, setest
rates, wald curses, prepaymant speaids, orodit rikvpenads, default rates and
qued pices for similar assets. Securties thar use similar valuanon
Techmiques &nd ingrits o described above e categonzed as Lene 7 of the
Hair value hiprarchy

Foed income sequnties perchased on a delayed-delwery basis.of a5 a
fepuiifdse commmateen] i & sak-buybeck ansaction aie mearked to maiket
daily yntil setticmend at the forward settloment date and ang categoriped a6
Legnl 2 of the g value heaicky

Mongage-relamed and assef-backed Securites. are iAually miued a5 sepatate
tranches, o dasies, of vecumities withs wach deal. These secoribied aie aha
momally walued by Pricing Senvioes that wie beoker-dealer quotations,
Epormed wades. of walugtton estimates from their mesmal plicing models. The
pricing modeh lor theve seomities incally consider anche-level abtributes,
cutnest market data, estimated cash Fows and market-based yaeld spepads fo
wach tranche, and incoeporste deal collatel perlarmance, a5 dvaslahis
Mortgage-related and asset-backed secarities. that use simiar valuation
echniques and inputs as described above a'e cabegonzed as Leve! 2 of the
Hair value hisrarchy

Common siocks, ETFs, exchange-traded notes and Brardial dervatie
irstaments, such as futures contradts, QYIS AN WAITANTS, of optiens on
futiined that aoe traded om & natenal securied exthange, bin Stited i e
East reported wafe ne settlement price on the day of waluation T the extert
These sedutines ale actdedy Traded and valisaron sdustments are nod appled,
they ate categerized i Level | of the Tair valee hisrardy

reeptmants valosd (desce na ted) i furfencsss othet thas the funclional
currency of & Fund are coeverted 1o the furtional curency using exchangs
rates [currendy spot e lorward rates) obtsred bom Pricing Senvces Ad a
rosull, B BN of 3 Fund’s umitt may be atfocted by changes in the valug of
cunences in relabon to ke fundional curency. The value of seotes traded
i ot eign markels of dersorenatied o currences obbes than the lunciona
currescy miny be affecied sigrificantly on a day that the Trust is net open foe
Butinass Valuation adjistments may be apphad 1o certain secunties that are
sobely baded of 4 loregn exchange 1o atcoar fof e market moavement
kbetween the dose of the foreign market and the NTSE Clase. These sequrites
e valued useg Pricing Sercices that censider the corelation of the tading
patter of the faspign seourity 1o the intradiny trading in the U 5. markets for
ryesiments. Secuntses wsng these valuston adiusiments are categornzed as
Lewel 2 al the fim value hiecarchy, Prefered securities and other equiies
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traedec on maciee markets or valued by reference 1o simdar instruments ane
st categonped s Lewed 7 of the lar value hierarchy

Equity-imiced securities ane valoed by reletencing tee Last repored sale or
setifeneni price of the linked relesenced equity on the day of valuation
Forosgn exchange adpatments are applied 1o the b2 repoifed peice to
convert the linked equity's trading currency o the confract's setifing curmency
Thesie imestments ale categorieed & Level 2 of the Taw value hieraidy

I tments o feguisied open-end mument companie {eths than ETF5)
well he wvalued hased upan the NAYS ol sueh imestments and are categoized
a5 Level | of the falr valee herarchy. Invessments in unregistersd open-end
rvetiment campaniss wll be caleolated bated upon the NAVs of such
mestmentt and ae considesed Loval | prowvidad that the NAW: we
observable, calodated daily and are the vabue at which both purchases and
saie will b conducled

Equity exchange-traded options and over the coumier financial deratie
nstruments, such as forwarnd fareign cumenty contracts and options contracts,
deshe Uit wakus from undelying adset prices, indices, relerende rales, and
gther inputs or & combination of thew factors. These contracts ane r.:-*'nall_l'
valued on the basis of quotes obtained from a quotatien repomieg system,
esiableahed market meten of Prong Senices inormally delermaned as of the
HWYSE Clonel Drp-rndlrn] gn the producit and the: bermis of the Traaadion,
linancial destrative instruments cas be vakoed by Pricing Senices weing a
vt o techrerpees, including umulabon preing model The prong models
use s Ehat are obaerved from actively quoted markets such a5 guoted
ances, msuer dersls indoes, hudlask spreads, indeses] rates, imgried
wolatibtied, yiold cunved, drndends aad exchange fabidi. Fanandisl derriative
enstruments that use similar valuation techniques and inputs a5 desoribed
abiorre are cabegorzed a Livel 2 of the lain vake hisaichy

Cervrally cheased fwiags and v Bhe counber Swaps dermen Thest value from
underlying asset prices, rediogs, rolmence rates, and ather inputs or &
ombination of these lacoes. They ae vabued using a broter-geae bid
quatation of on market-based prices provided by Prcicg Services {normally
determined asof the NYSE Close). Contraly dleaned vwaps.and cver the
Counber sinaps can be valued by Pricing Senvices useg a series ol technigues,
ndludng simadation pricing models. The pricing model may use inputs that
are obsened from actvely quoted markiets sach as the cvernight index swap
tabe (NS |, LIBDA forwaid rile, mlenkal idhed, wld curees ghd chedd
spreads. These setwities aie catmgoeized o Lewel 2 of the lair value hipandsy

Lewel 3 trading nssets and wrading liahilities, of fair valee Wher o fan
waluation method i spplied by the Mansger that uses signilicani
unobseryabin mputy, Fvestmonts. will S priced by o method tht

the Marsger o perscem adting at their direcion befiees reflects {ak value and
e categociped o Livel 3 of the far value hietaichy. The wiksation
echnigques and signdicant irpuss used in delermineng The Lair vinkoss ol
portfolio ausets and labdities cateqorined 24 Level 3 of the Tali value hismichy
afe o follow:

Prooy pricing peocedunes wt the hase price of a bxed mcome secanty and
subsequently adjust the price praportionally (o markes value changes of a pre-
derevmined secuiity deemed bo be compaiable & duiabon, genetally a Ll 5
Treasery or sovereign note bated on country of msuance The base prce may
e a beoker-dealer quote, Transachon price, oe an intemal value as deived by
anakia ol matket data The base price of the secuilty may be redet on a
peviodic bass based on the availabilty of mariot data and procederss
appioved by the Vatston Commines Significant changes m the
unobsrvabiy inputs of t promy gricing piooess (the base price) would e
n deect and proportional .'hangu..'.ht fairvakie of the secunty, Thee
secufities are canegorized as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy

i third party evaluated vendor pring 15 ned available or not deemed 1o be
mdicatme of Bir walor, the Manager may elect 1o obLain Broker Qucied
drectly from the beoker-dealer or passed thiough from a Sind-party vendor
b he event that far vakue o baded upon & Snigie sourced Broker Quale,
thise securities arg categorioed a5 Level 3 of the fair valus hisanchy, Broker
Duotes are typicatly teceied from estabished market partiopants Althouigh
ndependently received, the Manage: does nod hage the Liansparency 1o veew
the underhying inputs which wepport the market quotation. Sagrficant
changes in the Broter Quote would have direct ard propartional changes in
the fiair vahoe of the security

Shert-tem debt imtrureents {suck &4 commertial paper} kaving & remisining
mmadurity of B0 days or bess ma,ll;\-g vakmd at amorfized oo, o long a5 the
aroatized o4l value of sk shorr-teem deln mstruments (s appr oumately e
sarme g bhe Tkt value of the imtnesent o diteimined withaut the uwe of
amortized oost vluation. These secarities are categodized i Level 2 or Level
3 of the (ni value hetrechy depending on the source of the bage price

4. SECURITIES AND OTHER INVESTMENTS

i{n) Delayed-Dedivery Transactsons Certan Funds may purchase or sell
secatities on a deiayed-defvery basis. These transadtion irvole a
commitment by a Fund b purchae o sell tecortied lor & pretetermined grice
o yiedd, with payment and delivery taking place beyond the custamary
seftiemend peiod. When delayed-deirvery iransactiond sre outifandng,

& Fund wil designate or receive a5 ooflateral Bguid assets in an amouet
sulhicient ba mest the pundhade pie of respecine ebligations, When
parthasing a security on a celayed-delvery bashs, a Fund assumes the rights
aredl ik ol ownership of the secunty, intloding 1he ik of pnce 55d peld
fluctwasons, and takes such fluctuations inks account when detemining it
M A Fund may dispose of or renegotiate @ delayed-deliery Dansacion
aftet it s enbered imto, which may resslt in & 1ealzed gain o less. Whan

& Fund has sold & security on & delayed-delveny bass, the Fund does mot
paticipate in hatue gains and losses with respect 1o the seourity,

ib} Inflation-Indexed Bonds. Cerman Funds may imest n eflation:incexed
Bandy. inflation-indexed Basds are ised meome sacunte whose pnee -1
walue s perodically adjuited by the rate of irflation. The mtevest rate an
these bonds is ge~erally Tued at issuance af a rate kover than rypica] bonds
Dt the e of an odlvtion< ndexsd bond, Fowever, mbedes! vaill b paid
based on @ principal value, which is adfusted orinflation. Amy crease ot
darease in the principal @raum of as inflason.indesad bond will ba incduded
& imiet sl income on the Staeménts of Operatons, even though imasions do
mot receive their principal until maturcy. Repayment of the origingl bond
principal upon maturty (as sdjusted fot inflation) = quaianteed in the case of
U5 TIFS, For boodh that do rol provide a simlar guarantes, the ad;usbed
wingipa! walue ol the bond repaid at maturicy may be less than the oigingd
oringipel

io) Loan Participat: s i and Orgi Certain Funds may
rvest in diredt deba instruments which are interests in amaunts owed 1o
enders of lending spndhoates by cotporae, govemmentad, of othed bormvers
A Fund's investment in laans may be in the hatm of participations in leans or
assaprements of all o a portion of koans from thicd paries oe imvestments i o
eeiginations of lvans by the Fand A loan & alien adminsiened by a bank or
ather fimangal institution (the “lender™ | that acts a5 agent far 2l holders. Tha
apent admisiers the terms of the bnan as specified in the loan agreement

& Fund may invest in multiple $eres of manches of 2 loan, which may have
warying terms and camy different associated rivis. Svheen @ Fund purchases
asigaements from lenders it aoquives direct rights against the borowers of the
cany Thess loany may include péirbopated n bridge loan, whch ane ioans
Jaken ol I.r, Borroyems o o shaort |:¢'|u:|:'l'|3.'|:-i|:.|llp levs than cne :,:lal]
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pending avangement of more permanent financng throegh, for examgle, the
rsuance ol bonds, frequently high yeeld bonds issuad for the purporse of
anquisitions

T types of loans and related irvestments in which the Funds may imest
nichud s, dmoeg slhers, sesior e, suboidnated loans [moudng second
e Inans, B:Motes and mezeaning boara), whole Inans, commennial real
estate ani cther commercal loans and siructeed e, A Fed may
angeale laans of soquee deed inereits in loans thiough prmany loan
distributiorys andlos in puivate tramsactons. 15 the case of suboedinated loans,
thers may be significant indebiadness rankirg ateac of the bomowe:'s
ablsgstion to the holder of wuch & loan, nduding in the event of the
pomoser's insolvency, Mezzaning loans are typitally secured by @ pledie of
&N ety midredl n the momgage boimiwer that owns the feal es1ate 1ather
than an intevesd in a mofgage

irreestrents i doans may nduce efunded loan commitments, which are
centrariaal ebligations fa funding. Urdunded loan commiiments may indede
iwctving ciedit faclites, whath may chligate & Fund 10 swpply sdditianel cib
1o the bomower on demand. Uinfunded losn commitmants regresent 8 futum
obibgation i full, even though & percentage of the comminted amount may
nal e ufiied by the bormower When inveiting o a ioan partiopation,

a Fund hun the right to receive payments of primopal, inserest and any fees to
wieth i eatithed only fram the lender seling the hoan agresment ane only
upnn receipt of payments by the lender from the bpmower. & Fund may
teceie 3 commiment fee based oa the undiawn portian of the arderhng
bre of credit portion of & laen I ceetain orcumstanded, & Fund may recense &
penaity few upon the prepayment ol akoan by a bormower. Fest samed or
piead are reconded 35 & componest of interest INCOMe or iInterest Sipense,
rspeg tvely, on Lhe Statementy ol Opevations. Usfunded loan cammidmenis
are reflected a6 a Rabiity on the Statemenis of Assets and Liabifities

|} Marigegn-Ralstad and Othor Asset-Backed Seceriting Certen Funds
My imvest in morgage-redaied and other asset-backed securines that direcly
o indirectly represent a participation in, of are sacurec by and payatde fom,
boans on real property. Morigage-related securities ane created from pools of
esideial of commercisl morigage loand, including martgase loany made by
wanvings and loan institations, morigage bonkers, commarcal banks and
oithatrs Thase secuntes peonide & monthly payemert whach conalsts of both
snterest and pnncipal Intefest mary be debermined by fed or adprtable rates
The rate of prepayments on underling morigages wil affect the peice and
welatility of & moigege-telaied sacusity, and may have the e of
shortering of extending the efloctve duzation of the securnty relstre to what
was #iipated at the fime of purchase. The timely payment of prindpal and
mntmiest of ceitan morigage-telsted secuiilien & guaranteed with the full fagh
and cedit of the U 5, Governmest Pogls omated and quaranteed By mcn
gversenenial ssuers, including govemment-sponsaned coiparations, may be
supponed by vacious Toren of insuranoe oo guarantess, bun thene can be no
gsurance Ehal privatn msurers of quaraston can meet thes obligations under
the nsursnce pelicies or gaaranies anangements. Wany of the rigks of
eraesling in morigage-relabed securilies securad by commencial mortgags
s reflect the eflects of local and other ecomomic conditions on rea estate
markets, the abality of tenants 1o make bease payments, and the abality of a
property B0 afteact and setain tenanty Thede secuntiey may be less liquad and
may exhibét greater price volatiicy than ether types of mongage-related o
athér ridel-Backed secunites. Other addet-backed secunted are dreated nom
mary types of assets, induding, bt nat imited o, auto loans, acoounts
recenabde. such as cedi cand recermbles and hospRal aocount reoenabiles,
hame squly loans, student lasnt, boat [oans, mokile hame laand,
recreatioral vehicle loars, manufactured housing loans, aiceaft leases,
computer leases and syrdicated hank inans. The Fund may imvest in any level

al the capitsld struciure of & Baodr of morigage-backed o suset-backed
secarilies, including the equity of “firet lodd” tranche

{o) Collsteralized Morsgage Obligations ["CRADR) are deb obl gationd of &
legal entity that are collateralzed by whole morigage kases of privede
rroitgage bonds and deeded inta classes. CMO4 ane stractured nbo multiphe
classes, often referred 1045 "trandws”, with each dass bearing a different
stated maes ity and enttled 1o a different schaile foi payments ol phrcns
& mietesl, mcluding prepayments. CAWIOS may be less hqued and may exnhibit
greater price wolalil gy than ather fypes of morigage-celated or asset-hacked
Seuined

i} Siripped Mortgege-Backed Securities (“SME5") are dernative mult-
clrit morhgace securities. SWBS ae wually structured wath bwo cdlasses that
recerse different proportions of the inlesest and principad distributions ona
sl ol morgage saets. An SMES will fuver ohe dass That will moeeee ol of
tho imderest (the interess-ondy oo IO class], whele the other dass will reocive
the estite pincipal [the a'iminal-r.r'},- o PO daws) Pa',men:i. eecpree Tor
B0 aip anclugded i mees indome on he Satements of Opetalions Bedlrse
i principal will be recetved o the maturity of an 10, sdfuatments ane made
10 e coil of thie secunly on & monttey bass until matunty. Thewe
afpraments ane included in inleest income oo the Matements of Dperations
Paryenerts recefved fou PO5 are teated as reductions bo the cost and par valce
ol thee securities

igh Colk lired Dbt Oblsg |"C00%" )} include Collateralited Rond
Cirbgatiom " CB0s"], Collateralined Loan Obigations { "CLOs™) and othe:
sirvilarly senactured secunties. CE08 and CLOS a8 Types of ased-hacked
secutied. A CBO 14 & bust which i bacited by & dversibed poal of high imk,
balow irvestrent g’i{h’ fioed income securities. A CLD = 3 trest Fpecally
oollaterabzed by & pool al leams, whith may include, amang ather, dometic
ad {oreign consoe socured igans, senior wastuind ko, and subordinate
coiparaie bnans, ind |'I|'p:1-1:|r-. that may e rated halow invesiment qrack or
equivalent urraled lpans. The risks of an investménd in & COO depend langely
o the type of the milateral securties and the class of the (DO in which

& Fund inveszs. In-addition b the normal riges assocated with fined income
securilies discussed chewheng in the neport and the Fundy” Offening
Memorandum (e.q., prepayment nak, credi riak, liquickty rise, market risk,
sinuctural risk, lagal 1k and interest rate rik (which may b exscerbated
the imtetest rate payahle on a stnuctured tmanding changes hased an
matiples of changes in intecest rates or inversely to changes in interest
salesd), CBO0s, CLOs, and ather CO0x carty additonal g mdloding bt ot
Emitad to, (i) the sowsdhdity that datibutiens Yom coflateral secuties will nat
b2 adequate to make interest or other payrents, (il the quality of the
oolater sl may decline in value or defalt, {in) the sk that a Fund may imest
m R0y, Cl0s, or other LDy that e subondinabe bo other classes, axd {nl
the compies struchwe of the ssouity may not be § iy urdersinod at the fime
of imvisrment aod my prociuoe degutes vith The Msuer or unixpeciid
reesiment redts

i) Parymasd In-Kind Securitien Certain Fuscs may imest in payment in-kind
Lecutines  TFIKS b PRCS may give e isasr the opton i @ach nem@st
paymierd date of making interest payments in either cass andlor additonal
debt secwities. These additional debt serurities uwually Bave the same teims,
wchadniag matuity &8t and meiedl iabed, and sidbtuted kS o the
ariginal borghs, The daily market guotations of the eriginal bonds may include
the aocrued interest (relemed toas @ "dity pce ™) and 18quire @ pro rata
afanment lrom the unnedlied sppletiabon of dipieaation on ivestent
10 interesd recetvable on the Statements of Assets and Lakilties

(i) Rostricted Securities Ceran Funds may Bold invesiments Bhat are
Subpet 10 hegal of coniradiual iesirichions on tetake Thete sedutitmes miy be
004 peivately, kel may ke required %o be mgistered or exenated from such
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regisiration before being sold to the public. Prevate placement securities ane
gererally contidered 10 be rettricted. Diaposal of restrected imees imen s may
mha tima-consuming negotiations and expenses, and prompt sale at an
secepiable price may be diffcuy to scheeve. Restricted mvesiments keld by
the Funds ot May 31, 2020, at appficable, ane disclosed in the Nobes to
Suhvedule of Investments

() Stuctured Noted Certiain Funds may invest i stiociured notes and ather
related Fsiraments, which arne prw MEH' 'lEg‘DIIdI.Ed debi bﬂqtlll}"n n whith
the princigal and or interedt i determined by referénce 1o the parfarmance ol
a benchmark asset, market of intarest rate (an "embeddad indea™), such a5
selected sevaiities, an inden of securiiies o specBed inieieat 1ales, of the
difterential perfosmance af tave asiets or markots, such as indemes refiecting
honds. Struchured ivinements may be ssued by conpaations, n:i-..rlnr;
hanks, 2 well as by governmenial agensdes. The terea of such stnecthued
nsmuments nommally provide that their pringipal andfor mterest payments ang
10 b adjusted upwarcs of dowTrwasds (Bt ondnardy nog belcrm pera) o
illect changes o the embeddad ndex while the Strotluned ndtiuments e
;Julv.a':dr-g Aa anesult, the mdeiest andlor princpal payments that mey be
mate on & siructured product may vaey wadely, depending on a vasiety of
lactors, including the valatiiey of the smbedded index and the affect of
changes in the embedded index an prindpal andior imerest payments

{lh U5, G nt Agencies or G wl-Ep | Enterprises
Ceriain Funds may imeest in securities of U5, Gevernment agencies or
govemement-iponsoted emepiees. U5 Gowemment Secutilies ans
oblgaticrrs of and, in certain cases, guaranteed by, the U5 Gowernmend, ity
BoenCe of instrumernabties Some LS. Gevernment securites, such as
Trearsury alls, nabes and biandh, and securties guaravieed by the Gosrnment
Hational Mortgage Associaton ("GNMA™ or "Ginnie Mae™ ], are supporied
try thee fusll Fich and credit of the LS. Gevermment; ethers, such o thede of
the Federal Home Loan Banks, ae supporied by the right of the issue to
ooz from the U 5. Department of the Tieasury {the U5, Treasury™}; and
athers, such a3 those of the Federsl Natonal Merigege Associstion [*FRMAL"
ar “Fannie Mag ™}, are tupported by the discretionary authonty af e U 5
Govarnmend to purchase the aJenty’s abbgatons. U % Govermement secuities
my include feid coupan secuiited, which do ol dislebele miEel o6 &
gumrent basis and tend 1o be subject to a greater visk than interest-paying
secutities. of similas matwities

Governmen-rifated gaaranions |Le . not batked by the tull faih and c2edn of
the U5, Goyveenment) include PNME and the Tedesal Home Loan r.'crh_;.:n;.:-
Coaporation {*FHLMC " or “Freddie Mac™). FNAMA = 2 government-sponaceed
conponation. FNRMA porchases comveybonal §i.¢, nol inguntd of Guaranieed by
any governmend agency) rescential movigages lnom a ksl of approsed
sefler/vervicers which include state and {ederally chartered seangs and loan
agociations, mctual siwings banks, commercial banks and credit wnicns and
martgagpe baniers. Pavs:thigugh secusties issued by A are guararteed as
1 Ly plyrsnt af priopal and interedt by FNMA, bt are il backed by
thw fudl Faith sl eredit of the LS, Government. FINLMC lswes Participatian
Certificates (" PCs" ), which are pass-through secuntes, each representing an
undhbded imeest in a pool of resideniial morigeges FHLMC puaranees the
1imely payment of mierest and uitmate collectns of princpal, but PCs e not
Biacked by tha foll faith and credit of the LS. Government

b b 2019, under the Single Security Initizthve, FRMA and FRLMC stared
msuing Uindorm Martgage Bacoed Securities ("LUIMBS" | in place of their
current ofedings of TRA-slgible securities. The Single Sequrty intiative seeks
1o suppet the overall boudty of the 184 markes and alagrs the
characteristics of A& and FILMC certidicates, The eflects that the Smghe
Security Initiatve may have an tee market for TRA and athor mortgage
Badhed Lefuri ied Ale uNDETAR

Roll-Brring strategies can be used wheve a Fund seeks o extend the
expitalion of matunty of a potihon, such 25 a TRA wecwity on a0 wndering
e, lry closing out the position before expiration and opening a new
persitian with respect 1o substantially the same underlpng asset with a latet
wrpration cate THA securitiel purchaied o sold ame eflected oo the
Seataments of Assets and Liabilities as an assat o liallity, respectnehy

{1 When-lseed Trardactions Ceilas Tunds dy piichdse of Sel seiuitie
o a when-ssued basis These transactons ane made conditionally because a
security, although authorized, has not yeq been avoed in the merker
Trardactions 30 puicksss of sell seoxties an & when-roued Badii imgohe
acommitment by a Fund to purchase or sl these securities for a
predetermined price o yield, with payment and delvery taking place beyond
The cushomary witkement perod A Fond may el when-fsued wountes
befiore they are delivered, which may resuit in a realized gain or losy

im| Bank Obligations Bank obiigations in which a Fund may invest inchude
cedtilfates of depasit, bankei” scceplancey, and [ timee cheping
Certificates of deposit are negatiable certificates issued against funds
depadited i & commencial bask Bor & definile periad of time and eairing &
specied retum Bankers accepances ane negotisbie dratts oo bills of
enghange, nommally drawn by an importer oo exporter te pay feo specific
srerchandise, whith ae “aucepted” by a bank, meaning, in eflfecy, that the
bark unconditionally agrees 1o pary the tace walue of tw insttument on
maturity. Fived time deposits are bank oblgatons payable at 2 stated
maturity date and bearing interest 21 & linsd rale, Fsd time depodied may be
withckmwn on demand by the invesior, but may be subject fo rarly
withckawal penalties which vary depanding upon market conditions and the
Termamang maatutity of Ui ohligation

5. BORROWINGS AND OTHER FINANCING TRAMNSACTIONS

The fellowing decioseres contain information om the Funds” ability 1o lend or
Brainoes Cash of SeCurilies 10 the ecien] peimined under the Dfeing
Memarandum, which may be viwed g1 bomowing or financing bansactions
By thee Funds. The lecation of these instiuments is desoribed befow. Fora
chetaslid diriciption al credit and counterpaty ks (Fal can be rssociabd
with Bornowings and other financing transactions, phease sop Nole 7,

e incipal Risks

in) Repurchase Agroaments Certas Funds mey ergage 0 reporchase
appements. Undes the tevms of & typical repurchase agresmant,

& Fund parchases an undeslying debrt ctfigation (coRaedal] subject v an
abimated ol the deder 10 fipatthass, and & Fubd 1o redel, the sthiation it
& acyeed-upan praoe and fime bn an open matunty TepuThase agreemernt,
Thede 15 no pre-denesmined 1epunchese cas and the agresment (an be
ferminated by the Fund o counfesparty at amy bme. The market value of the
colateval ment be equal to or sxcesd the total amoend of the iepuichass
oigatons, ndudng irterest. Repurchase agieements, intluding aoorsed
irtermt, are included on the Statoments of Maaety and Liabilsies. interest
earmed is recorded as a component of interest income on the Statersents of
Opecations | paieck ol increased demand for colaserel, & Fund may pay a
tee bor receipt of collateal, winich may resdt i imees! popense 1o the Fasd

{b} Reverse Repurchase Agresmnonty Cerinm Funds may enter into revesse
fepuithada aqreements. b b seveisa repuichate ajtesment, a Fured difivers 3
secutily i exchange faf cadh 1o & nancial inshitution, 15 csurerpaity, with
& BTetar agreemant 10 repurchase the same or webwiantially the same
securtily o an agresd upan proe dnd dabe 15 sh open MAtunty everte
reputchase agreement, thete & no pre-determingd repurchane date and the
ayreement can be terminated by the Fund oo cosnserparty at any time

o Fund i entithed ta recen incpal and inlsnest paymenty, i any, made on
tha security dednsirgd bo the coorrteiparty dering the térm of Ehe sgreemant
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Cash tecened in ewchange for securities deliered plus aconeed interes
payments bo be made by a Fund (o coenterpartes are reflaciod ot a labslity
an tre Statemants of Assets and Liabilities. Inberest payments mads by a Fund
1o cournilEiparties &fe reoonded & & Componert of irteeesl sxpange on the
HMatomerts of Opecitions. i pedcds of ncreased demand Tor the secunty,

a tund may 1ecere a fee for e of the secunty by the countarparty, which
sy resull i nderesl income 19 & Fund. A Fund will seqiecane assels
drirrmined to be Bguid by PINCO o will gthermse cove its cbiigations
undes revesse repurchace HFeaments

{e) Sele-Bwybacks Cortain Fonds may enter into financing ransactions
refered 1o a3 "sale-buybady’, A sale-buyback finandng bransacton consists
ot a sale of a secunity by @ Fund to a finencial institution, the counberparty,
with 8 smulaneods agteeErent 1o repuichase the wame or sulstantally the
same wowrity 81 an apeed-upon pre and date, A Fard rnol entsled to
receie prndpal and inenest payments, if any, made on the secaunty sold te
the cousetpaity durmg thi e of the agnsement. Thie sdhoed-upon
prodeeds for sacurities to be mepurdhised by a Fund ane reflected as a Lability
on the Statements of Assets and Liabsdities. & Fund will recogrize net inozeme
sepresenied by the prce differentisl Between the price receved far the
tramsfesred security and the agreed-upan rpurchase pace. This is commanly
seleined o as the ‘piice |]I-q.' A price dios vomssis ol (i) the ||.ueq-.u-e Hilsiesl
and inflationany income adjustments, il any, a Fund would hawe otheraise
recpreedd had the saoumity nof beem wold and (] the negotiated fmancing terms
between a Fund and oourte:parny. Faregone interest and infatonasy Income
aduntments, i sy, ane recorded & components of intenest ncome on the
Statements. of Operations. Inferest payments based wpon negatiated financing
1B made by & Fund oo Counierparised ans rectrded s a comparant af
wrimest experne on the Statemebs of Opmations I peeod of nceased
desnaned for the secutity, & Furd may receie a fee for wse of the secunty by
the coumsteepaity, which may resdt m mdemest income 8o a Fund. & Fund will
segregate assets determined fo bie Bquid by FMCD or waill othenwise cover it
obligations under sale-buybach ransaction

{dh Shoet Sales Coitan Funds may entes inlo o wies bamacton., Shert
sadey ane transactions in which the Fund selli a secumty St il may nol own

A Funed muay make shor sales ol securiies 1o (1) offset podential dedines in
kang pasibons in Umils secutites, (=) %0 ntrease the fembilty of the Fund,
{ii) Tor Ewsstmeat retum, (ref as part of & risk arhitrage wrategy, and {v] as
ozt al s eveall portlobo ranagement sirategies irvahing the we of

detmra tve indtiuments When a fund engages in & shart sale, it my botrow
the security soid short and delwer it B0 the counterparty, The Fand will
ordinarily hawe 10 pay 8 fee or premium 1o boerow A seounity and be obigaced
16 regiay the lender ol the security sy drmdend ai infeesd thad accues on the
secunity duting the percd of the loan Securities scld in sherl sale raradiions
afed the dridend af irceest payable on sickh wcanties, i any, are tellecied o
péyabile for whan daled on the Ststements of Assets and Lishdses. Shor sales
expose the Fund te the risk that it wall be required to cover its short pesition
al i tres wihesh 1he secunty of other assel hed appeediatisd @ willue, thus
sesudting in losses bo the Fund A short sale is "against the bax”

the Fueid hodds in s porifolo or has the TG D s ihe setiiily solid
shoit, or securites idestcal to the secutity sold hatt, o1 no addronal cost

& Fund will he subject to additional mks to the eent that it engages in shatt
ialed that are nat ~agaimt the ba ™ A Fune's loss on a shon sale could
theoretically be unlimited in cases where the Furd i unabie, for whatever
reason, to chyse out its shom pasition

6. FINAMNCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

The holigwing disclosures convtain mformaton on how and why the Fards use
financial destrative instruments and fesw Bnancial denvatese minements
affact the Funds” finandial position, results of operations asd cash flows. The

lecation and fair value amounts of these instruments om the Statements of
Avieti and Liabilises ard the net realized gam (iod] and nel dhusge in
unipalized appredabion (depeediation) on the Siatements of Operations, each
eategorized by type of francial derdvatiee coniract ard related risk exposure,
oo rckaded in o table in the Notes 1o Schedule ol Imvestments. The financial
dernaative instruments cutstanding as of period end and the amounts of nat
tealred gan [los) snd ned change nuniealised sppdeCstion |deplecanon)
o financial dervative instruments durrg the peviod, a3 dsclosed in the
Mates o Scedide of irvestments, serve a5 indicatons of the volere of
Trnanoiad derivaine activity hod the Funds

i{n} Forward Foreign Conency Contracts Cortam Tunds may engage in
forward loreign curendy contracts in connection with seftiing planned
pahases of safes of secLribes, Do Pigfige the CLITEnCy BEposLse adsoliaed
with some of all ol a Funed's sequittes or o pait of an invesimend stralegy, &
forward forsge cumenty covract i an agaement between two parmes to bay
ad el @ eurtency 818 581 price on & fulure date The market value ol 2
Sorware fansgn curency contract fluctuates with changes in Toreign cuttenty
echange rates. Forward foreign currency comtracts are marked to matket
cadly, and the change & walué & reconded by & Fund a5 an weelized gain of
foss. Reabzed gains o losses ave equal 1o the differenice batwesn the value of
ithe coniract #1 the tse L was opeted and e value al the tine il wes dised
awd are ieconded cpon defiveny ar receipt al the cumendy, Thewe contracts
mary irvenbye manked ik in excess of the unealized gaim or loss reflected on
th Statements of Azsets and Liakilities. In addition, a Fund could be exposed
1o risk if the counterparties ae unable 1o meet the fems of the contracts orif
the value of the camency changes unfavorably to the funciional cutrency, Ta
i ane such ek, cadk an wecunties may be exchanged &6 colladeal pursiant
1o e tevms of the undeelying contracts

Corain Funds, havisg a hedged Class, may akio enter into forward foreign
cuimeay confiacts dedsred i offuet the effect of hedging at the Fund level in
i to leave The hediped Clns with an exposuse 1o cornenciet ather than the
functiceal curmency, Trene can be no goarantes thas these Class specic
forwatd lareign currency costracts will be suctesatul

b} Futures Comtracts Cortam Funds may enber o Bolunes condracts. A
futures contract is an agreament %0 buy or sell o seourity or other avset fora
et price on & future dase asd i wraded on an enchange A Fund may e
hrtures goniracts to manage its expotee 10 the woarities matkets o in
maemerds in interest rabes and oeency values. The ceimary rsks associated
with the use of ftues pomracts are B impaddect cofalation betwesn the
change in market walue of e securttios hald by & Fund and the prices of
Hutures contrects and the possibfity of an ilbguid market. Futures contracts
are walped haed wpon then quoted dasly settlement prices, Lipon entering
ko a futuics contrach, a Fund & rogqursd 1o deposit with @5 fefures broloer an
amenr of cavh, 1§ Governamend and AfEnly I"|I:I||:|..'||u'.n':I oo selert snvereign
debt, in accordance with the initial mangin sequiremests of the bicker o
xchange. Futumes comracty. ame marked to marke! dady and baed oo such
FrowETiEnLs 10 The prade of e DMMracts, an approphate payable of eciwabie
far the change i value may be posted or collected by the Fund ™ Fulunes
Waniation Margin“). Futw es Vasiation Margirs, # any, are dscdesed within
cerirally deared fnancial deshratove instruments on the Statemants of Assets
drd Liahiitios. Gaing of kot e iecognined hit not comadensd rralied unhil
1he contracs exphe of tose. FULPEs CONTACLS ivDhe, b0 vaning ljB;i-E‘S.
tisk ol lzss in encesd of the Futured Vanation Matgin included within
wxchange traded or contrally deaned Snancial denvative ivitruments on the
Yatements of Assets and Liabilties.

Ac) Dptions Costracts Ceitain Funds may vnbe of punchase ogtans to
enhance retuma of o hedos an axisting poridtion ar future irvestmen!. Cortain
Funds may write call and pat nphions on sequities and financial derivatve
rgtnaments they own or = which they may invest Wnling put oplions erds
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o inceease 3 Fund's exposee to the undedpng instrament. Wiitng
apliors tency o decresde a Fund's cxposare 1o the eoderlying irtnument
When a Fund iwrites a call or put, am amoundt equal to the premaum recesved is
recorded and sulsequertly matked to market 1o reflect the urent vakee of
the option written. These amounts ank included on the Sestements of fidets
and Liabibties. Premiums received from witing aptions which expire are

treaned as realiped gains. Fremioms recetved hom witng options which an

racitised of closed are added to the proceecs or offeet against amounits paid
on £ underying fuunes, swap, seowrily of CUrrency transacicn o detesming
the realized gum or loss. Ceitain optons may be writen with premasms 1o be
determined on a future date The premiums for these opticns ane based upon
mpled velatibty parametes at specified berme. A Fund a5 8 wiiter of an
aphiok ki o conttal ver whelher the underhpng iritrumes? may be soid
\"call™ ) o purchased (" put”) and as a reselt bears the market rivk of an
unfivarabie change in the price of the snamant undeslying the wiitten
aptior. Thong & the rak 4 Fund may ot be 2his to o3tor into a doting
transaction because of an |liguid market

Certain Funds may abo purchase put and call eqtions. Perchasing call options
tenids ta mcrease & Fund's expasun ta the undeilying mstrumisnt. Purchasing
put options tends b0 decrease a Fund’s expasure to the undetlying instrument
A Fursd pays & plemum whech = mckeded as s 2t on the Stateseiis ol
Moets and Liabilises 2rd tubsequently marked to macoet 1o reflect the
current value of the option. Premiars paid for purchasing options which
Eapbe are reed & reakired beises Comam ophons may be purchased with
premiums to be determined on 2 future date. The premigmrs dor these options
are based upon impbed volasilty parameters a1 specified tems. The sk
assocued with purchisesg g and call opbord & limied o the prRmium
ped Premiunm peid for pachasing optiorn which are evecined or doned are
added 1o the amcunts paid or offset against the proceeds on the underging
ramiimant randaction to determise the raaked gain or kot when the
underlying transaction is execoted

Condit Dofanlt Swaptons Certain Funds may write or purchase oedit defauli
vwaotiond bo kedge copodans 1o the credi rik of &n vestment withow
making @ oommitment to the undsiying mstrument. A cedi default swapbon
o5 an option bo sell of buy credit protedtion bo & specii eference by antering
nioa pre-defined swap agreement by some specred date in the Tutuee

Inflation-Capped Dptices: C#etam Funch may write or peckase inllation
capped options to enhance etums or for hedging opportunites. The purpcse
af purchasing infletion-capped ertions is bs aratset o Fusd frem nflation
winsion above a certain rabe on a gean national exposure. A Bsor can be
wsed 1o give downside progection to investmerts in inFation Jinked products

Interest Rnie-Capped Options Ceitan Funds may widte o puchase sterest
rate-capped options to enhance miwens o dor hedging cpportunities. The
puiporie of puichasing interest rabe-capped opfoms & 10 profect a Fund fom
Noating rate 15k abowe & certam tale on a given notional exposare. A lloor
can be wied to give downgide prodection Bo imasstmants in imtenest rate linked
s

Intereat Ruts Swaptions Cenaky Funds may wete of porchase Interest rate
ywantans which aie opbons fo enlet nta & pre-defned swap agreemenl or
1o shorten, eicend, cancel or cthensse mod fy an asting swap agreemint,
try some spacitied date in e Rture The weited of 1he Swannon bitomes the
counterpety 1o the vwap if the buyet exsrcin. The infere rate yaaption
AQTTLTEN q'.ll:p(-l;f' whather the buyer of the swaption will be o fiwed rote
re{prel of A Tad-rate PRl LDON e Crse

Dptions om Exchange-Traded Futsres Contracts Ceitan funds may wite o
purchaze eptions on eachange-traded Ftures comtracts (*Tutures Optiea™) to
hedge am exsting position or funse imvestment, for speodatee putposes o 1o
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Mgt expaiur 10 market movEments. A Futures Qiptson 15 an cpon
contract in which the underiying mnesenl & & rgle futunes contrac

Options on Securithes Cedtain Funds may write o punchase options on
secgities 1o enhance retuins o bo hedge an mdisting pasition or future
iresiment. An cptioh on a secunity uses a specthed secarty & the undedlying
rstnamant for the cplion tootrac

{d} Swap Agreaments Certain Funds may imest n ywap agreements Swap
iy meimils 2 blaberally piqotisted agleements between 4 Fund and a
doimisparty 10 exchange or vivag imetment cash flows, sveets, foomgn
cumences o marke-Enked returns at speciSed, fuure intenals. Swap
syeemenls may be pivately segotisted i the OTC matket of may be deaned
threargt: a third party, known ai a central counterparty or derivatives clearng
organization ("centrally deared swaps™h A Fund may enber into asset, oredit
deflslt, ool ouriency, emenesl rate, bolal return, varisnoe and other fom of
Faap agreemenis io MaNME 55 ipoiune o crecE, CLNTENCY, NN 1350,
mm:m:ln'rl equity and arflaion sk, In commection aeth these afIeemEnts,
Secustilied of Cath may be sdengified & callusersl of mangin in acoatdance wath
thia terma of the respecive swap agresments 1o provide assets of valae and
tecoutye in the send al delaut of bankipeoyfinsohency

Centraly cleared swaps ane marced ta matkel daily based uson valualions &5
determirwd from the underlying contract o in accordance with the
sisquilemiers of the central countpany o detnabives deanng siganization
Change m maik vahue, if any, &0 rellected a4 & composent ol net change
r pneealized apprediation (depeedation| on the Satements of Ciperations
Daily changes in valuaton of cenraly ceared swaps (“Swap Yaniation
Margen”™), f any, are deicioded within contrally deared fnintul demitne
instuments on the Statements of Assets and Lizbdies, O1C SAEE [YTTEN
recered af paid al the begrining of the meatatemen penod are ncluded on
tho Statoments of Avoets and Lishilfties and roprosont peomivms paid o0
FRCevee upon Enlening into the swagp aqrepmant 10 compensats i
dferences berwesn the sated weems of the smap agreement and presakng
ket conditions. (credit spreads, curesty exchangs rates, intenest rabes, and
ather relevand Tactors). Uplost premiums received (paid) are natally recosded
i Babiities Cadveta) and wubiequeently marked 1o markef 1o reflect the curest
vtk of the swap. These upfont premiums are recorded a0 realred gains or
Iosseq on the Satements of Operatians upen Teimina tion of maturity of the
swap A bnuidation payment seoeveed o made at the tefmination of the fwap
i regonded as realized gain o1 loss on the $alements of Operations. ket
prerandt payrmenis racened of paid by & Fund aoe included & part ol rnkred
gans o |osses on the Statoments of Operations

For puipoies of applying certain cf a Fund's invesiment policies and
FESiECUans, Swap agieemerts, e other dedhalneg rolnas=ents, may be

writhped By 2 Furd ol matk ol value, motioral valos or full enposune vaiue. In tha
carse of a credit defaait swag, i apphying certain of the Fund's mvestment
palaies and resichaons, 1he Fusd will walug the credn defaul swag Al il
notianal wmlue or ity full exposee valye {ie ., B sem of the nofional amoont
for the confract plus the market valuel, but may value the ceda defauh swap
& markel value for puipodes of applying ceitain of the Fund S ot
irvestment peficies and restrictions. For examgle, the Fund may valee oegit
default swaps 21 Full enposure walue for perposes of the Fund's oedi qualbity
ducelifsil (il any) becauis wsth walue o ginarsl el reliacts the Fund'a
aitual economic paposere dering the term of she credit default swap
apeement As & result, Fund may, a1 fimes, hive notonal eapodurs 1o an
arised cliss {belore matling) that is greater or hesser Bhan the stated kil od
restrition noted in the Fund’s Cdfering Memorandum, In Bhis content, both
the natonal smount ard the miste) value may be positve of negatne
depanding on whether the Fund & selirg of buyirg peatectisn through the
ondit defaclt swap. The manner in which certan securities ar other
rstnaments ae valved by the Fund for purposes: of apphying investment
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pobes and restrictions may dffer from the manser in which those
sraitmants a0 walved by other tyoes of Byvestors. Enteing into vaap
apreemanis invches, to vanging degiees, elements of iverest, oedit, market
and documentation risk mn escess of the smeunts recogrized on the
Statameris of Adsets and Liabsdities, Soch sk imeolve the possibality that
tharz will b no liquid market foe thess agreements, that the counlerparty 5
the agreemisils. may delfaull on ns oblgation 1o perlorm o Gisagres as 1o the
meanang of contragtagl seems n the agreements and that there may be
unfaverable changes in inseredt rafes o the values of the assal upon whah
1he pwap & hased

A, Tored's memimum risk of loss from coumterparty creddl ik & the discounted
net vadua of the cash flows fo be receved from the counterparty over te
coniiad’s Iecm-'mgi-fe_ 0 the exteni 1hal amount & posiove . [he rek may
b rretgated by hiaving & masted nethng emangement botwesn & Fund and
the teanteeparty and by the posting of eollrieal 10 a Fund to oover a Fund's
e 10 B coufliparty

Tio the extant a Fund has a poficy 10 fimit te ret amount owed 1o o 1o be
tetEned Inom & Wngle (uNETy ufder Sxiling Sivep Speeseils, sudh
lmitation anly appbes 1o countecparbes to OTC swaps and doss not apply ta
cenirally deared swaps whese the ounterparty is @ ceniral counterparty o
devivalnad cieanng aiganization

Crodit Dofaslt Swap Agrooments Certain Funcs may enter into

credit defaudt twaps on corpoeate, Inan, sovereign, LS. mwnicipal or LS
Treasury ksess 10 provice a measure of protection agasral defaults of the
ey (1o, bo reduce 1k wheee 2 Fund owns o has exposcoe 1o the
telenenced abbgation) of to take an i long or thait position wath respect
ta the bceihood of & paitcular ivsuer's delault. Credit defaul swap
apeemensy invchve one party making a siream of payments [relprmed ta o
the biryer of preniaction) to: another party {dhe selles of peatectien] in exthange
lor tha right 1o receive & specified retuin in the event that the efeenced
entity, obbgation o index, as specified In e swap agieemsa, undeigoes 3
et criedi! mvent A seller of otection on credt delm swan
agreements, 8 Fund will genezaly recoew hrom the buyer of protection a food
rabe of income throughot the term of the swep proviced Shat there 5 o
credit svend. Al the eller, 8 Fond would effectively sdd leseiage 10 i
porkiofio because, in addition 1o its tntal net: assets, the Fund would De
subject b Ewestmant exposure on the notional ameunt of the vwap

it & Fund is & seller of prasion and @ oed event coouts, as Sefined undey
the tevers of that particulsr g agieTEnt, A Fund will eithes {i} pay o the
buyer of protection an amaount equal 1o the nobenal amaunt of the swap and
lake dedvery ol the ieleienced oblgation, ofter delmedsble obigation of
uridehying securites comgaining the referengrd nces oo () pay @ nel
setthement amount in the foem of cash e securites equal to the sotional
amount of the swap leid the fecovery value of the relesonced obligation ai
undertying securities comprising the referenced index. H a Fund s 2 buyer of
protection and & qedh event ocours, a5 defimed under the terma of that
patcular swias sirodmant, & Fund wnll either (i) iecine from tha selled &l
profection an amount equal to the notional amount of the swap and delver
the jeferenced otdigavon, olhe delive:able olfigatiors of urdeilying
secunities comorsang the mferenced indies ar (&) receive a net settlement
ampunt in the loum of cash ar securities equal to the rosonal amount of the
W fess the recovery value of the referenced obligatian or undering
sequrities comarting the referenced index. Recovery valuey e estimated by
mmarcet makess considering either induatry siandand secowerny rates or extity
speciic fackoid nd coriadarations untl & credd evenl ooduts B & credit et
hin pcoaned, the recowvery value i determined by a Tacilitated auction
wheneby a musimurn pramber of allewable broke: bids, together with a
specied valuation method, ane wmad 10 calculate the satshomant value, The
abwity tm deliver oiher obligetions may resslt in 2 cheapest-io-deliver option

{the buyer of pratecton's right to choase the delivemble obbgation with the
fowost valos folownng a credit event]

Credit delauh swap agieemants on credit indioes involve one party making a
siream of paymerts to anather parfy in echange for the right 8o receive a
spedifed return in the evend of a vrite-down, pancipal shartfall, inorest
shorttall o defult of a8 or gart of the raferenced entities compnsing the
aadil inden A credd indei i & basket of oedl Fstraments of expasunes
designed to be reaipsprtative of same pan of the ciedl maiket as a whale
These indcet ap made un of reference cradits Bt ae |||r|r3m: by a poll af
dzalevs 0o be the most Sguid entises in fe oedd defaull Deap market Baded
an the secter of the index, Components of the indioes may insdude, but are
mat limied o, inestment qrade securities, high yield securities, asset-backed
SECuies, Bmenging markets, andhor vanou credit tatings within each seCtor
Credf incioes are traded wung credd delaull swaps vadh standardeed terms
irchading a Fooed spread and standard maturity dabes. An index credn default
swap rederensey o3 the name in the index, and f there s defaub, the credit
evend it sittlied based on that nama’s sweight in the index, The compaosition of
the indices changes peradicaly, wsualy every s manths, and foe most
s, each name had an equal weight i the esdex. A Fund may use oedit
defauit swaps on credit indices to hedge a partfalo of credit default swaps o
o, which o bess engesnive than il would be i buy marny oedt deladh
swaps 40 achiewe a similar efledt. Credit defaclt swaps on endices are
rainaments for prntecting investons awming Escends e oelault, and
Traded ube them 1o iperulate o0 dhafged & ot quality

inghied credil spreads, epresented n abislote teims, ubied in determuning
the marked value of cedit defaclt swap AQreeTIENES 0N COTPOnaTe, ban
sowmign. U5, municipal or U5 Treasury ssues &5 af penod end, if any, are
diadionad in Uhie Moles to Schedele of Fmvetmenls. They seree moan indicaton
of the awrent status of paymentiperiormance rivk and represert the likdihoad
o sk of defaal for the referenced entity, The empled oedic spread of a
particular refetenced entity sellects the oost of buyingfellisg otection and
may inghudde wprdond papments required 0 be made io enber into e
sypeement Wider codil ipresdy iepresent & detercestion of the rofensnced
entity's o] soundress and a greater Balihood ar risk of default or other
wradit event occumming as defined under the tesms of the agreement. For cnecit
dhefanit Swap sqreemenls on aiuet-Backed secundies and cedi ndices, the
quied market prices and ersulting values serve as the indicator of the cument
stans of the Dﬂj‘-"‘l’ﬂﬁ'[ﬁ"fﬂl manie risk. Increaseng market vakses, in abaoiume
1esma whisn compared 80 the notworal amount of the swap, represent a
deterpration of the refergnced entity's credit sgyrdnass and a greater
Bkelihood or risk of defaut or other cedit event ocoueing as defined under
the e o the digreeimenl

The masimum potestial smoond of future payments (undiscoundes] that

@ Fund as a saller of protecton onuld be rmaquied 1o make under a edin
et it weap ageeement equals the notional amndant of the ageement
Mational amounts. of each indaidusd credit defaull weap agresment
outstanding a5 of petiod end loc which & Fund is the seller of peotection e
deciciaed i the hales to Schedae of imreiiments Thess polentad amounts
wwould be partislly ciiset by aey tecovery values of the respective rederenced
bl el [H, ..Iilllf.l'il paymanly FelivvEd apon BnTeing inhd the BYTeOTERL o
rirl amounis eedeid fom the wettlement of boy prosection credit delsalt
Swap agreements entzrad nto by @ Fund for the same neferenced entizy oo
enlbilid

Int Rate Swap Agr Certann Fundi &ie Subijeet bo iflonest iate
rivk exposure in the normal gourse of purisng Ewir mestmen! chiectves
The value of the fued rase Bosds that a Fund holes may decrease i menest
rales e, To help hedge againat this rk and to mamdan iy ability to
generate inoome a1 prevailing marked rates, a Fund may enter into interest
FALR SWAD AQIEETEnS Inlengst ale swap agieements invede the exchange
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by 0 Fard with anather party for thesr respective commitment to pay or
tecoh imlniest on the notiossl amount af princisal. Certain forms of interesl
rabe swap agreements may include: [{) interest rate caps, under which, in
return for & premium, one patty agrees to make payments to the othes to the
extend that nderest rates exieed & specibed rate, of ‘eap”, (i) inderest rate
Toars. under which, in et for & premium, one-party agrees to maice
pEymints bo ke othed 10 the exlent that mberesl rates (el melowie & spocifisd
rabe, or “Boor”, (W) interest sate collars, wnder which & party 5ol 2 cop and
purchases a Flode of wige veria ir an atiempt bo protect itself against interest
fale roveTenDs exceeding chven risimum of masmum lessls (i) callable
mienest rate swagh, under which the buyjer pays an upfront fee in
consideration for the fight & aa'lp terminate the saap ransaction in whole,
&l Feio coal and &1 & piedetermmied dite and hime phdd b The maluly dite,
W) spreadiocks, which aliow the interest rate swap wens (o lodk in the
Torward differential {or spread] between the interest sate swap rate and a
I.pt\:l‘liid banchmark, or (i) basis veape, undot which b partiot can
exchange variable interest rates based on. differert segments of maoney
markets

7. PRINCIPAL RISKS

in the normal course of bumicess, the Funds jor Acguired Fundis), if
apphbeable) vade financial rstruments and emer inte Fnancial ransactond
where itk ol potential loss exsts due Yo soch things as changes in the mariet
\markit risk] or failure or inalelity of the other pariy to a fransaction to

pesfoem {redt &nd counterparty 1isk). See below for a detafied desorigtion af
select principal risks

Fund of Funds To the sutent that rectam Funds mvest substantialy all of thes
respective assets in Acquised Fumdis), the sisks associated with IFRStng in
these Funds will be closely relased 10 the rilks associsted with the secuntes
and other ivestmants kald by the Acquised Furdi{sh. The abiity of the Funds
(o acheave EhET RSpeCive investmest objacines may depend upon the abeity
al the Acgured Fundis) to acheeve ther nespective investment objectves
There can be no asurance that the investmgnt |:l;||n-qlne of @ny Acquired
Frsds) will be achicwed The NAY of 0 Acquiring Fand sell lluctusie B
sesporse 10 changes i the espectee AV of the Acquimed Fand|sh in which it
frees

in the narmad courss of buisess, Acquired Fundis] tade finencisl instruments
and esder into finarial transactioon whaere rvk of potentsal loss eosts doe 10
changes in the market (market nsk), o¢ failuse or inabikty of the other party 1o
& 1 anaTon ko perlam chedit ard counlenpaty nuk)

Market Risks A Fund 4 ewedimenis n bassosl denvetne imdinaments and
ather finaniad instiumenty exgose the Fand 1o varous risks such as, bul net
imited 10, inperest sane, Soim gh {nam LS} curiency, sguily and commedity
ik

imterest rate ik i5 the risk that fmed ihcome secufities and ctiher imiroments
hihd by & Funed Py decling in value because ol an increase in inierest sates. I
naminal inkerest rates rise, e vador of certain fooed income securitien “pldl by
& Fand would liely decrease, A nominal intenest rale can be described as the
summ of @ peal inberesd 1ade and & expecied iflation rate Iaieiest cale
changes can be sndden and unpredictabie, and a Fund may o money if
thasa changes are not antitipated by Fund management A Fund may not be
abde to hedge sgainst changes in merest rales or may choose not 1o do so for
03 o other masons. In additon, sy hedges may nat work as intendied

Duraton & 3 measure used o detemine the sensitivity of a securiry’s price 1o
changes in imerest ates thal NOHpSrAtEs 3 Seourty's 5'!!|{|. ceupon, fiaal
maturdy amnd call features, among othet characterntics. Conven®y & an
additipnal measre vsed 1o underitand a secunty's or Fund’s imforest rate
serristmity That measunes the rate of change of duratan m esponse o

chonges in insesest raters. Feved incomne senurities with longer durations tend
10 ba mone sensitive ta changes in imtarest tates, iaally making them mons
wolatile than securites with shorter derstions. A wide vaniety of facion can
e intevest rales of pelds of U5 Treasury securities for yelds of cther
types of bondi} to s {e.q., cantial bank moretany policied, inflation ranet,
gereral atonomic conditions, atc 1. This & execally tue under curant
conhdilions. because nleiest rales and bond pelds ane near hstancally low
levels. Thus, the Funds curmently face a hegatened lovel of risk associsted
with rising ilerest tates andios bond yislds. This could be driven by a vatiety
ol facoors, induding but nat mited ta ceniral bank monetary polices,
changrg inflation or real growth rates, gerenal econcmic condifions,
increasing bond suances or reduced maet demand Tor ow yialding
wiepiiments. Fiithir, whie U S boad macdoety i dheaddy Grown o the
P treee cecadies, dealer “market making™ ability has remained relatively
sagnant Given the importance of intemediary “market making™ n ceating
& robast and sdtive market, fived incoma secuntind are cumantly
facing inoeased volatility and Bquidity risks. A8 of these factors, collectively
o individisally, could caune & Fund bo keve value If the Fund lest enough
wialue, the Fund could face increased Uinitholder redemplicert, which could
further impar its perfomance. Also, e Fund may be adversely atiected
when a lasge Unitholder puschases or redesms lange amounts af wnds, which
an o0tue ol any time and may impact twe Fund in B sme manner a5 a i1i|]h
wolume of redemption reguests. Large Unitholder ransactons may impaat
The Fred's bouedity shel net asdet valoe Such anssctan may alsd incease
the Fend's trerrsaction cots or othenwise couse the Fend 1o periem
dHerently than imended Moreewss, the Fund i wubeet 10 te rick tha
ather Unatholders may make myeitment decioans based on the choxei ol &
Earge Unitholder

& Furd may e 19'1‘:.1-'1'. exposung 1 (550ers in fhe Unteg .r:-ru]d:;.m The
Uriteed Kinpdom's decision 1o heave thee Euncpian Liseon may impact Fund
retums. This decnion may case substantial volablity in foreign exchangs
rraiets, bead tn weakness in the entchanges rate of the British peand, 1eswdt in
& sutained period of market uncertainty, snd destabikze some of all of the
ather Eurapedn Urion mambar couninies and'or the Eurazone

Foreign (mon-US.) seowities in this repert ane dassified by the country of
wosdparatioh al 8 haiding. Incefain Filances, a securty 3 Gounlry al
rcoeporation may be ditterent from ity country of economis eepasune

i a Furd invvests directly in Torsign (oo LS. ) currencees o i seqwines that
Arade in, and réeve isistd in, l'u'ﬂg'l (non-L1S feuriancisy, o s fmarcal
dernative instruments that provide saposuie o lomesgn o U5 ) curmences,
i wall be subject bo the risk that thase camencies will dedline in value relatve
10 the taine cormency of the Fund, or, in the case ol hedging positiors, that
tho Fereds base curnesey will declne in valos refative S the oarmoncy beng
heriped Cimeney rates "uinlgur_;u cownries may fituate significanty cres
short petiods of tme fod & number of reasans, incuding changes i mignest
rales, intereention (o the failure b indervena) by 15 ar foreign govermmanss,
wertral banks o supranational entities such a4 the Intemational Monsary
Fund, or bry the impositos of curmendy cantroh or other polftical developmants
r the Unied States or sbroad As o reselt, a Fund’s isvestirents i foreign
cutrency-denaminated secures muay seduce the Fund's refurms.

Thié markst valed of anetied, duth a8 (ommen D100ks and prebermed sbcifities
@ equity related invesiments sich &5 fubwres and pptagrs, hae Bitonically
risen ard fatlen in perodic oycles and may decline due to genersl market
condmion whth aia not ipeahsly relited 1o 8 paititulli company, such as
real o perceived adverse economic conditions, changes in the gereral

eutlook for ot perate eamings, changes in mleres of cufrency fabes, public
health smpigencies, swch 1 the soad of miectious ilingts o daeate, o
adverse imvestor seetiment generalty, They mey aba dedine due to tactors
which afleq a particular industry of industress, ssch as |abor shormages or
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nerersed prodisction (osts and compebive conditions within an industry,
Diflerent types of aquity securitios. may react dilferentdy 1o thess
dewelopments. Equity securities and eguity related invessments generally have
greater marked price volatdity than feed incooms securnies

The Funds may invest in ceasn indtruments that rely = some lashios upon
LIEOR, LIBOR & an average misest rate, determined by the ICE Benchmark
Adereristration, that barks dsange one afothied o the e ol shonaem
money, The Unied Kingdem s Finanasl Conduet Authoetty, which regulabes
LIBDR, has anncuncec plans 1o phase out the use of LIBOR by the #nd of
2021 The pantitan may setull in 2 seduction @ he value of eran
sstromends held by the Funds or & reduction in the efectiveness of related
Fursd tramsactions such as hedges. Thete remaing uncenainty regarding futee
utilization of UHOR and the natee af any realacement fate (e, the Secmed
Overmigh Financing Rate, whath n mtended to replade UL S, dolle LBOR and
measires the cost of evernight besrewings t'rough repurchase agressrent
Irarreisctsons coltoradined wath U5, Trestury seculities), and any patintial
flects o the transition awary nom LIBGR on the Funds or on cortain
mstruments in which the Fusds imeest ane not known erd could result in
horsset 10 thie Funds

Hegmning i January 2020, global francal markets have sgeeranced and!
may conticese b esperience signdficant volatBity iesutting from the spresd of a
nivel corenaius knawn a4 COVD-19. The outkrest of COVID-19 has
rosidted in traved nd bonder resinctions, quarantines, sapply chain
disrupdices, kower consumer demand and general matket unCertaimTy, The
glohad eonoey, the etonomies of cerlain nations and indmdual isueds have
been and may continue to be advevsely aftfected by COVID- 19, particulary in
hil of the niermonnectivily bBefween economies and financial markets, all of
whith may negatively impacl the Funds” performasnce. In sddSion, COVID-19
and govemeental responses 1o COVID- 10 may regatively impadt the
capatiities. of the Furds’ senvice prowvidens and derapt the Funds” aperations

Credit and Counterparty Risks & Fund will be exposes 10 coes 15k 1
perties with whom it trades and wall also bear the risk of setthemant default
A, Funed menimizes concentrations of credit risk by undertating transacton
with & large numbed of cudlomers &ad counteiparlies an lecognihed and
reputabie exchanges, when applcable. OTC dervative tracsactions ane
subject bo the risk that a courseparty to the transaction wil ot fulfill 1s
contrachal elligations &a the other party, a% many of the pratechons alonied
1 cendrally cleared devivative ransactians might nod be avaiiable for OTC
dedrva e Transacterd. Fod dematine (raded on o enthange of thiough &
contral counterparty, oredi ik retades with the cheditworthises of

the Fund's tearing broker, of the Clearinghoune itself, rather than to a
counterparty in &n OTC derreative ransaction, Changes in tegulation nefating
toa Fund's wa of dervatoess and redated natiuments could :nl‘e;nb:ll, T
o impact the Fund's ahility to irwest in derivatives, limit the Fund's ahiity 1o
gy CETTAIN Seranegics thad s derivatives andior adversdy atiect the value
ar periormancs of dervstives and the Fund. A Fund. ool fose moniy if the
wsues or guasanton of 8 Reed incose secusity, o the countemarty %o a
linancial destrative instuments conlrsdl, reparchase agreemient o a loan of
portfolio sequities, is wable o wewiling jo makbe timely priscipsd andion
sitsiast paymees, of 1o otherweis honoe iis obhgations. Securtses and
linancial dernaative instriments ane wbpct 1o wicying degrees. of credir rk,
wiich may be reflected in oedit ratings.

Jamila b0 crechl risk, & Fund may b sapirsed 10 (DQRTEPaTy rok, of the rmk
that &5 slilidtson ai other antity vnth which & Fund hai untsttled of open
{rarmactions vl default. PIMCO, as the Manager, minimizes counterparty
risks 1o the Furwds thrcusgh & number of wieys Priof ko entening ints
trarsctions wath a new countermarty, the PIMCO Counterparty Rigk
Comeritier conducts an extensive oredit review ol B QOUntenparty and must
appiove the use of such counterparty. Furthermere, pursuant 1o the tems of

thie underlying tondract, to the eatent that wrpad amounts owed 104 Fund
encred @ pestetermined Threshold, sush counserparty shall advance ool lsteral
o a Fund iin the form of cash or securities equal in value o the unpaid
arcund oweeed 0 8 Fusd. A Fund may irvest such collmenl in securities os
ather ingtruments and will ypically pay intenest 1o the counterparty an the
ooBateral recenasd f the unpaid amount owed %0 a Fund sulseguently
detrisss & Fund would be ieguiied bo deluim 13 the ooun eipary &l of &
pation of the collateral previcnly edmnced, MMIO S attempts to minimize
counterparty tisk may, howaver, ba unsucnessful

Al transactions. in listed seounities ae settledipaid for upon delivery using
aoproved courterparties. The rak of delauh i considered minmal, a3 delivery
of securites soid 5 only made onoe 3 Fund has received paymant Payment is
M on @ purchase once e secur died hiwe been deinered by the
counteiparty, The bade will lail d ether paity fails to meet i obligation

Marked Disrwplion Risk The Funds are subject fo imvestrment and operational
risks associated with financial, sconamic and ater ﬂ“:li mrarkel
devefopmenty &nd deruptiond, indoding those sfising (ram war, Drofm
market mangubition, govememant mterventoes. delsults and shutdoers,
pofitecal chamges of diplomatic developmints, public kealth emergencied
xuch as the speead of infectous dieeses, pandemics. and epidemics) and
maturaliemdrgnmental caasters, which tan all negatively inpact the secutities
ket and cause the Funds 1o bede vilue. These eveyls (an also impair e
fechnolpgy and other pperational systems upon which the Fands' senece
roviders, inciuding FIMCD a the Funds' investmant advise:, ey, and could
alherwrie darupl the Tundh” sennce piowiders’ abdty ba fulldl ther obhgatbans
1o B Funds. For eaegle, the spread of an infectionns respiratory iliness
cased by @ novel strain of cononaings fknown as COVID-19] has caused
solatiity, sevene muar ot diniocations and ligaidity consfiaints in many
mmarkats, inchuding matkets for the serurities with the Funds hold, and may
adversely affect the Fandt’ swestments and aperations

8 MASTER NETTING ARRANGEMENTS

The Furds may ba 5|J:|i|:ft R0 various neTting amangemseats ("M astor
-"H;'NI'"I.‘"[S-‘I wilh select couniprpanes. Master Agréements govem the

v e of oedtain bansachons, sad am int ended 1o redote the: counter paity ik
ansoniated with elevant Sransactions by specifying oedit protecticn
rrechariam and Sfoviding stend edization thit [ intended 1o mprove legal
onitainty. Each type of Master Agreement govers certam Sypes of
transactions. Diffirent types of transactions may be traded out of diflerent
legal entities. of a¥Tkates of & partiodar ciganization, sewufting in the need for
muBiphe agreemeats with @ single countenparty A the Masie Agreements
ane specific 1o unigie operatons of differens essel types, they allow a Fund o
clorve oot and net its lofal exposure 1o & counlerparty in the event of & defacly
with respedt o all the transactions governed under a single Magtar
Agpeement with & counterpary. For financial peport ] PUEposEs the
Seatements of Adsets 55 Lisbibtees genenally pretent dermative: adie s and
Habikties om 3 gross basis. which reflects the ful isks and exposues prier o
nenting

Master Ageesments Can st help imil counterpaity ik by speclyng
collateral posting amangements at pre-amranged epotu ek, Under most
Master Agreemants, collateral is mutinely transiemed if the total net spowsre
o certain Tandactions (net of exising coliyteral already in place) govesnod
ungiee tha refevant Wasser Agreernint with a counterpaty in & gaven account
wurpeds 3 specfed thechold, which typscally ranges from zero o §.250,000
depending on e counlgrparty &nd the type o Master Agreement. Uniled
Seartey Treasury Bills and U 5. dollar canh a9v generally the prefired foms of
oollatessl, athaugh othér secuitnes may be idid dependig on the tesmi
autlined in the applcable Master Agreement, Securitses and cash pledged as
collaceral are reflected a5 assets on the Statements of Assets and Liabeities as

el Pt | Wy 31, 190

278/405



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

: to Financial Stz

gther i cormpanent of Imeestment s

il i e
counterparty, Cash colladecal rocerend & ng
count and a5 5
=4 44 Depi
mconed as cola
averall Exposun
petiod, as s afenied by sat
Agrepment

ies] of Deposts o
ally held n & wegrecated
tements of Assets and
kel value of any seoutites
ars a component of NAY The Fund's

can chenge sutstantially within a shon
Ao subec] 1o The ielevan!

L

Master Repurchase Agreements and Global Master Bepurchase Agreements
ally and coleaively “Macied Fapd AGPesments” ] qovern [epunthae
ra tions between the Tunds and

VeI PEpe
et IO

patas Mag X
mants, events of dedaull

ligso] ||'||'|_|:|l,I inbato

Riepo Agreament, o | pledged e
£ &5 ol penod end are dechoied i

§ poven certam lonward wefilng irarme:
yord bentaack transaction
5 and select counterparties. T

AR b L g :-4'.' ST erthes
payment and transher, geents of defaul
ce of collateral, The market walue of forward settling tansactions,

pedged of tecenved, and the et expasure by counle i ard o]
period end e disclosed = the Motes 1o Scheduls of Imvestmants
Cusiomer Acourm -'-IJ'EE'TID'II:- and reabh m Cearpd

s of Bartures, and deaned OTC
s redpane porting of initial margin as dotermined
aney wherhs £ WSorenals S F
5 COMMESSaN Mmedch “FCM™) regitered with the Commodiny
Fufunes ll]:.r-u] Commigsizn {"CFICT) I the United Stabes, countens
may be reduced a4 ceediton of an FOM cannot have a claim bo Fund
ke segregaled acioun], Portabiity of expotune in the evert ol an FCM
detault scenano further reduces mk to the Fands. Yarigton mamin, o
changes in madkal vadiin, an fang schanged daily, but may mol be
netted between futures and cleared DTC derivatrees unlevs the parties have
ageed 10 @ separate arrangement in respect of fund masgining. The market
witlue ar aecamulated anieshred aspreciatos |deprediaton), mital mangn
poited, and any urseithed varaton margin as of period end are deicksd m
the Mates 1o Xhedule of Invesbme

ditioa vt Vandactiam such & fulues, op
dermra it Sich trane
iy Barch [EE Cearereg &

A

Fisk

LELS if

il Dierrvirivees Addoe e
D Master Agioe
B inin By the Fu
152005 fioe
wentatiors, agreements, colatenal postirg 2
temmiration. Events of termination indude conditions that may &
¥l earky and cause wElthe
he applcabie 1504 Ma

Masier Agresments
1) govern bilateral OTC
wath sefact ¢ g

i

ool Support Annexe
derrw

%

Agreement. Aoy
tatements. In
Pl iy £ofibie dddiban
1y prodection beyond coverage of existing d
erparty hars & dechre in medi quakty below a o s3ef mad
ein ambufls, if sy, My be tegiegated wath a thed-party Setlsdian
The market walue of OTC finang
af pledged, and net eiposae by Coue
n the Motes to Schedule of Investments

el apari | May 21, 90

279/405



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

9. FEES AND EXPENSES

Each Fund by subject to the foliowing fees payable at the foliowing annual rates (stated as 3 percertage of the average dally net assess of each Fund, or Class, if
spphcatle, taken sepmately)

Foag

Famd Managamant Agvisory Admun istrative Agmacy Distribution
PIMICO B la Foredgm Lovw Duratian Famd 026w
ML Bermuda ULS. Law Dutaban Fund 0ZER
PIMICO Ewern Tatal Regom Fund [PLL RISR" ilery 8 [k il
PIMICD Reend Returm Fund nASR" [Fe [y Ly
PIMICO Shest-Term Strasegy

= AuD 035%" ik kL iy

= Clush

= JuF

= JOSED|

= JPY kT 0 %" oo™

= LE L L™ [k L
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o P et LI S et o e Pl st mointy” o 0 5% o oy 300 o v ' o ity o e ¢ (U | Bl
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a0 S sy’ (LET i of e i ot e ! 0 VW e e apniiew an N of B el e samey o pvoes of IR TR il
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The management, advisery and administrative fees, | applicable, are paed manathly in arears to PMCO for providing o amanging for the provision of adetsory,
admanmttatee and thind-party servioes inclading audid, custodsal, trustes, portfodio acccusting, mouting logal, transher agont aad printing senices. The agency and
distrbagtion fees. if applicabla, ane paid monthly m amears 10 reimburse finandial intermediaies that prewvide services and distrbution relating to the units of the
appbeable Fund {or Class shereol, as auphw'.h'-r;l I the case of the PIMCO Bermuda Foresgn Low Duration Fund and PIMCD Bermuda U5, Low Duratan Fund, PIVCO,
aut of its managemerd hee, will bear the Couts associated with adviony and adwunistatve serdces, 0 1% of whath o desgrated 1o coved admmmtrathe expicies. in
exchange for this fee, PIMCO will bear thie costs of cartain third: party services requied by the Funds, incluging audt, custodial, trustes, portfioli accounting, legal,
tramsle agenl and printing sensces. PIMCD, and ned Unstholders, would beneld [rom ety prce decresde in tee vosl of such thind-parly seraces, mduding deceases
esulting fom an incgasg in nel assets. bn addition, with respect to Funds that ang subject bo an adminisgratiee foe, PIMCD generaly malcs a profit on sech a foe

A5 nated n the table abowe, cestam Funds and Classes of Funds aoe not wb@ct 1o management, advscry, adminisirative, agency of distnbaton lees. PMCD lapan
Led, PINGCO's affikabe i Japan, i pand a fes fiom e Japaness bvesiment Tiusns o olhes imvesimeni velicles. that Ewest in such Furds o Classes and a postion of
such fee 15 then allocated to PIMCD to compensate it o its sennces

Thw Funds [or Classes theepol, an applicable) may bear other sxperses relaied to ther opea bon that are nod covered by the management, advisory, admmiviratem,
agendy of datnibution fees, inchading but not Bmited bo; i) taees and govermmensal Tees; (7) iokerage lees and commissions and otker portolio transecion expenses;
Wi odts of barrowang mancy, including imodest experse; (W) extraoidnary capesses, nchuding oosts af g ation and indemnification expenied: and v ANy Expended
alincaied or alncahls foa spacific Clasy of inits, a5 applrable. PIMECD kas paid, oo wall pay, the amanizational expenses associated with PIMED Short-Term Strategy’s
naial set-up

PIMCO anddor its affliates will inibially advance o PIMCO Shart-Teim Seateqy all costs and expesses, indading legal expenses, inturred i connection with the iritial
pubbc offering of the IFY and USD Chasses of Units of the Fund i lapan [ (rffering Expenses”). At or near the commancemant of 1he Fand's operations, the Fusd will
reimbeirse PINAC ancion its affilases for the Offering Expenses advanced and wil amonize such Offering Expanses aver the first fiscal vear of i operations. Howener,
MM has. agreed o waive rembursesnent af the Offenng Expenses to the extent that such expenses enceed 0,05% per annum of the sum of the IFF and USD
Classas' Mot Avsel Yalus (the "Oifering Expema Limitation™). &y Offering Experses waived due to the Offenng Expense Limilation may Se regouped By PIMCOD anddar
its affiliates for a pesiod not esceeding frve years from the commencement of the Fand's operations; provided, the amown recooped by PIMCO andior s affiliates shall
nat exoeed 005% per annum of the som of the IPY and USD Clavies” AN, f either of the IPY and USD Claases of Units of the Fund i terminated pror o the hull
meimbursement of al Offening Expenses, PIMCD ardipr its affiliates shall not seek reimbursement of any remaining unreimbursed amounts from that Class
Ferthermore, if both of the 1PY and USD Classes of Unets of the Fusd e terminated prioe ta the full reimbursemant of all Offenng Expensas, FIMCO andior its affiliates
shall rot sl rembursernert of any remaning unnéambursed smounts from the Fund. PIMCO has paad, or vell pay. ofl conts and expenies, including legal evpenies,
ncumed i connedtion with the initial publbic offering of the AUD Clavs of Units of e Fund in lapan As ol May 31, 2040, there weee na recoverable Offenng Expenses
1o PIMCD andfor g5 alfilistes

PIMCO has appombed SMBC Nikko Securities ing to ot e Agent Company and Drstiboion o the detibuticn and serncng of oty of the PIMCD Euro Total Retuin
Fursd, PIMCO Regal Rabam Fund, and the IPY, USD, and AUD Clases of PIMCD Short-Term Strategy 10 retail immsiors in lapan. Mo agent comparies hawe bomn
appointed for ary of the ather Funds

PIMCO has paid the ooganizatonal expenies socisied with te creation of the Trast. I fuither Furds are Lssnched, such wosts cinectly it butable to the ielesan
Fursd may be bama by the rebaeant Fund

10. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Impestment Adviser 5 & selsted party 1o the Tunds and is & majority-owned subsidiary of Alianz Asset Managesem AG. Fees paid to the elated party, if any, se
discloped im Bote 9, and accruad related party fee amounty, 4 any, ane dsdioied on the Satements of Assets and Liabilies

Certain Fundh ae premifted 8o purchase o sell seourities from or bo covtain reladed affiated Bunds under specified conditom outlined n pocedures adopted by the
Irvesbment Adviser. The procedures have been designed 1o enure that any puichade or sale of securities by a fand Trom or to snather fusd that i or could be
condiceind an alfifiste by virtus of having & common adwiser (o atifsated inveitment adwiens), i etlected at the curent market price. During the percd ended May
31, 2020, she Fundis] below engaged in purchases and sa'es of securities among #ffiliated funds (amognts in eusandsk

Fend Purehase S
FINCD Berrvadas Foregr Law Denaoan Furd ] 1% 5
FIMCD Bermada 15 Low Duratian Fud ] LR
FINCD Emerpnp Mirkits Bard Fund 1 15,53 SRR
FNCO B Tatsl Retwrn fusd 1103 0
FIMCD Bl Pt Fand 41 i
FIMC Shor. Tarm Srwiagy =1 i

e P | My 31, 30 L)
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Notes to Financial Statements i
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Notes to Financial Statements o
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13, REGULATORY AND LITIGATION MATTERS
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The foregoing speats only o of the date of this report

T, INCOME TAX
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(2021 )
) ( )
30,766 3,990
5,897 765
24,869 3,225
2,220,430
11.20 1,453
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(€)) (2021 )
1,053,391,472.93 1,157 6,772
850,000 150,000
74,190.47
850,000 150,000
250,000 1,250,000
2017 308,558,334
2018 302,158,349
2019 388,027,447
2020 941,473,871.63
2021 1,053,391,472.93
@
(Managing Member)
( ) (limited liability company agreement)
©))

2021

Daniel J. lvascyn

Kimberley Stafford

Sudi N. Mariappa

Marcellus Fisher

Craig A. Dawson

Ryan P. Blute

Chris Dialynas
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Scott A. Mather

Mark R. Kiesel

Alfred T. Murata

Stephen A. Rodosky

Peter G. Strelow

Joshua Anderson

Sachin Gupta

Robert Mead

Julie Meggers

J
Nicholas J. Johnson

David C. Flattum

Ryan Korinke

Alejandro Kersman

Lorenzo Pagani

Philippe Bodereau

Richard R. LeBrun

Rene Martel

Andrew Balls

Libby Cantrill

Mangala V. Ananthanarayanan

J
John J. Kirkowski

Whitten, Candice Stack

Jonathan L. Horne

Jamil Baz

Alessandro Gandolfi

Robin C. Shanahan

Cathleen M. Stahl
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Joshua Davis

Mohit Mittal

David Fisher

Daniel H. Hyman

Jerome M. Schneider

Robert 0. Young

Christian Stracke

Eve Tournier

Stuart T. Graham

Anna Dragesic

John W. Murray

Eric M. Sutherland

Marc P. Seidner

Jason R. Steiner

Russell Gannaway

Andrew R. Jessop

David L. Braun

Harin de Silva

Jason Mandinach

L
Adam Gubner

Andrew Bosomworth

Frank Witt

Qi Wang

Patrick Feigley

Ravi K. Mattu

Caleb Pitters

Greg E. Sharenow

Michael A. Cudzil

David Hammer
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Sonali Pier

Pramol Dhawan

Rick Chan

Mohsen Fahmi

Joachim Fels

Geraldine Sundstrom

Emmanuel Roman

Gregory W. Hall

Dirk Manelski

Sung Hee Suh

Stephen Chang

John J. Studzinski

Erin Browne

Adam Shukovsky

Jamie Weinstein

Nicolas Granger

Mathieu Clavel

289/405



1971

BMA

BMA

EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1940

BMA

BMA

BMA

60

BMA
BMA

290/405



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

291/405



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 329
843,590,546,837

113 489,491,030,920
22 16,020,341,254
12 26,029,811,779
69 226,409,151,066
9 10,952,145,385
30 8,781,238,191
36 22,010,152,587
15 25,945,297,919
3 902,235,321
5 2,565,713,255
15 14,483,429,159
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2019 12 31 2020 12 31

131

23 103

UFJ 2021 31
109.90
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2020 2019 12 31
2020 2019
2(d) 670,905,056 73,732,466 422,556,446 46,438,953
2e).3 30,870,470 3,392,665 30,623,395 3,365,511
2(F) 798,701,996 87,777,349 698,851,736 76,803,806
2(6) 314,822,326 34,508,974 282,546,439 31,051,854
45,702,592 5,022,715 36,373,824 3,997,483
2(F) 23,912,871 2,628,025 25,219,844 2,771,661
2(k),8(e) 19,755,282 2,171,105 19,239,181 2,114,386
7 17,306,918 1,902,030 13,010,339 1,429,836
64,128,683 7,047,742 60,915,714 6,604,637
1,986,106, 194 218,273,071 1,589,336,918 174,668,127
2020 12 31 213,677,355
2019 12 31 183,689,431 2(9).5 121,111,682 13,310,174 139,127,937 15,290, 160
2(j),10 195,322,419 21,465,934 209,441,754 23,017,649
2(k),8(e) 855,055,452 93,970,594 669,472,591 73,575,038
2(i) 30,865,176 3,392,083 30,865,176 3,392,083
2(h).6 35,265,467 3,875,675 30,124,648 3,310,699
2(b) 14,710,139 1,616,644 16,086,963 1,767,957
9 51,541,356 5,664,395 33,253,757 3,654,588
1,303,871,601 143,295,499  1,128,372,826 124,008, 174
3,289,977, 885 361,568,570  2,717,709,744 298,676,301
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2020 2019

398,802,753 43,828,423 409,454,573 44,999,058

7 228,000,000 25,057,200

8 216,289,372 23,770,202 208,752,447 22,941,894

4 122,043,872 13,412,622 124,895,219 13,725,985

2(j),10 33,157,779 3,644,040 30,057,351 3,303,303

7 37,379,146 4,107,968 21,460,619 2,358,522

2(s),8(e) 19,755,282 2,171,105 19,239,181 2,114,386

4,928,294 541,620 11,190,145 1,229,797

832,356,498 91,475,979  1,053,049,535 115,730,144

2(s),8(e) 855,055,452 93,970,594 669,472,591 73,575,038

2(§),10 204,137,201 22,434,678 220,717,637 24,256,868

8 152,799,181 16,792,630 164,382,884 18,065,679

4,306,979 473,337 3,022,510 332,174

1,216,298,813 133,671,240  1,057,595,622 116,229,759

2,048,655,311 225,147,219 2,110,645,157 231,959,903

850,000 (103,214,782) (11,343,305)  (683,902,349) (75,160, 868)

150,000 1,308,035,518 143,753,103  1,288,040,853 141,555,690
2020 12 31 58,608

2019 12 31 48,876 43,399,986 4,769,658 28,952,832 3,181,916
2020 12 31 148,726

2019 12 31 153,400 8(a) 37,843,422 4,158,992 32,591,945 3,581,855

2(p) (44,741,570) (4,917,099) (58,618,694) (6,442,194)

1,241,322,574 136,421,351 607,064,587 66,716,398

3,289,977,885 361,568,570  2,717,709,744 298,676,301
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2020 2019 12 31

2020 2019
2(F)  4,012,403,139 440,963,105  3,801,610,877 417,797,035
2(F)  1,095,151,513 120,357,151 1,011,008,189 111,109,800
20 1,155,727,878 127,014,494  1,152,533,169 126,663,395
2(F) 360,487,808 39,617,610 380,555,089 41,823,004
2(F) 46,057,465 5,061,715 23,903,886 2,627,087
6,669,827,803 733,014,076 6,369,611,210 700,020,272
8 2,283,500,614 250,956,717  2,125,025,461 233,540,298
4 777,771,809 85,477,122 857,070,964 94,192,099
2(t) 605,822,180 66,579,858 637,010,892 70,007,497
235,901,474 25,925,572 214,712,229 23,596,874
5,10 168,804,503 18,551,615 159,176,036 17,493,446
2(0) 108,835,693 11,961,043 120,596,262 13,253,529
43,316,136 4,760,443 50,264,299 5,524,046
44,512,301 4,891,902 27,702,379 3,044,491
4,268,464,710 469,104,272 4,191,558,522 460,652,282
2,401,363,093 263,909,804  2,178,052,688 239,367,990
52,168,123 5,733,277 57,347,069 6,302,443
233), 10 (6,676,919) (733,793) (10,703,929) (1,176,362)
2(b) (1,321,069) (145,185) (1,278,635) (140,522)
2,445,533,228 268,764,102  2,223,417,193 244,353,550
9 103,991,820 11,428,701 98,821,295 10,860,460
2,341,541,408 257,335,401  2,124,595,898 233,493,089
2(p) 13,877,124 1,525,096 6,577,523 722,870
2,355,418,532 258,860,497  2,131,173,421 234,215,959
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2020 2019 12 31
2018 12
31 850,000 (792,957,184)  (87,145,995) 150,000  1,267,204,122 139,265,733 45,705 23,722,086 2,607,057
1,556,133,972 171,019,124 472,136,883 51,887,843 96,325,043 10,586,122
(1,459,197,453)  (160,365,800) (451,300,152)  (49,597,887) (91,397,156)  (10,044,547)
1,444,428 158,743
PIMCO
10,673,888 1,173,060 302,859 33,284
2019 12
31 850,000 (683,902,349)  (75,160,868) 150,000  1,288,040,853 141,555,690 48,876 28,952,832 3,181,916
1,694,470,162 186,222,271 520,315,348 57,182,657 126,755,898 13,930,473
(1,133,305,426)  (124,550,266) (500,320,683)  (54,985,243) (116,146,639)  (12,764,516)
12,785,179 1,405,091
PINMCO
6,737,652 740,468 3,837,895 421,785
2020 12
31 850,000 (103,214,782)  (11,343,305) 150,000  1,308,035,518 143,753,103 58,608 43,399,986 4,769,658
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2020 2019 12 31

143,858 28,576,118 3,140,515 (65,196,217) (7.165,064) 461,348,925 50,702,247
2,124,595,898 233,493,089
(2,001,894,761)  (220,008,234)
1,444,428 158,743
14,992,574 1,647,684 14,992,574 1,647,684

(10,976,747) (1,206,344)
6,577,523 722,870 6,577,523 722,870
153,400 32,591,945 3,581,855 (58,618,694) (6,442,194) 607,064,587 66,716,398
2,341,541,408 257,335,401
(1,749,772,748)  (192,300,025)
12,785,179 1,405,091
15,827,024 1,739,390 15,827,024 1,739,390

(10,575,547) (1,162,253)
13,877,124 1,525,096 13,877,124 1,525,096
148,726 37,843,422 4,158,992 (44,741,570) (4,917,009)  1,241,322,574 136,421,351
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2020 2019 12 31
2020 2019

2,341,541,408 257,335,401 2,124,595,898 233,493,089
15,508,853 1,704,423 14,579,559 1,602,294
65,464,604 7,194,560 65,882,645 7,240,503
6,676,919 733,793 10,703,929 1,176,362
1,321,069 145,185 1,278,635 140,522
12,114 1,331 59,310 6,518
(44,308) (4,869) (99,913) (10,980)
14,256,907 1,566,834 28,852,954 3,170,940
15,010,423 1,649,645 14,132,707 1,553,184
(11,695,316) (1,285,315) (11,771,410) (1,293,678)
(146,673,050) (16,119,368) (133,320,387) (14,651,911)
(6,762,761) (743,227) (10,822,134) (1,189,353)
(130,819,174) (14,377,027) (168,718,254) (18,542,136)
(25,708,793) (2,825,396) (28,864,869) (3.172,249)
103,679,079 11,394,331 175,692,797 19,308,638
10,538,563 1,158,188 3,895,278 428,091
2,252,306,537 247,528,488 2,086,076, 745 229,259,834
(51,884,452) (5,702,101)

6,500,203 714,372
(7.,078,726) (777,952) (29,716,676) (3,265,863)
(13,730,247) (1,508,954) (640, 695) (70,412)
(18,000) (1,978) (4,017,970) (441,575)
(14,326,770) (1,574,512) (86,259,793) (9,479,951)
416,000,000 45,718,400 2,239,000,000 246,066,100
(644,000,000) (70,775,600)  (2,223,000,000) (244,307, 700)
(1,749,772,748) (192,300,025)  (2,001,894,761) (220,008,234)
4,984,931 547,844 1,444,428 158,743
(30,720,464) (3,376,179) (28,608,691) (3,144,095)
(2,003,508, 281) (220,185,560) __ (2,013,059,024) (221,235,187)
13,877,124 1,525,096 6,577,523 722,870
248,348,610 27,293,512 (6,664,549) (732,434)
422,556,446 46,438,953 429,220,995 47,171,387
670,905,056 73,732,466 422,556,446 46,438,953

1,300,045 142,875
233,931,730 25,709,097
(274,626,538) (30,181,457)
40,694,808 4,472,359
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2020 2019 12 31
AAM LP
PIMCO
AAM LP 850,000 150,000
AAM LLC
AAM Holding
250,000
PIMCO 2020 12 31
58,608
AAM LP  AAM LLC AAM Holding
PIMCO PIMCO Pl LLC
Pl LLC PIMCO
PIMCO PIMCO
Pl LLC

FINRA
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0.00206 0.00190

2020 12
2020 12
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AREOA

1ASB IFRS
IFRS

PIMCO
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2019 IFRS 16 IFRS 16
IFRS 16
2019
2.59
274.6
IFRS 16
IAS 17 IFRIC IFRS 16

2018 12 31 206,586,026
2019 12 31 (96,826)
106,291,903
90,806
2019 (38,245,371)
2019 274,626,538
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AAM LP
2020 2019
12 31 347.1 179.1
2020
2019 12 31 2.3 27

FDIC
FDIC
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PIMCO
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2020 2019 12 31

IFRS
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IAS 19

IFRS
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2020 2019 12 31 30.9 30.6
2020 2019
2020 2019 12 31
NAV
2020 2019 12 31
PIMCO 0.10 1.00
Pl LLC
Pl LLC 2020 12 31 2019 12

31 39.8 51.4
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PINCO
PI LLC 2020 12 31
2019 12 31 5.2 2.0
2018 12 31 50,681,246 83,658,168 1,021,436 135,360,850
18,961,101 12,515,207 31,476,308
(353,453) (353,453)
(19,443,474) (7,912,294) (27,355,768)
2019 12 31 49,845,420 88,261,081 1,021,436 139,127,937
8,445,092 1,289,112 50,174 9,784,378
(12,114) (12,114)
(16,946,736) (10,841,783) (27,788,519)
2020 12 31 41,331,662 78,708,410 1,071,610 121,111,682
2020 2019 27.8 27.4

311/405



EDINETOOOO

OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2018 12 31 11,501,756 11,501,756
640,695 25,600,000 1,500,000 300,000 28,040,695
(5,180) (5,180)
(6,425,726) (2,080,000) (706,897) (200,000)  (9,412,623)
2019 12 31 5,711,545 23,520,000 793,103 100,000 30,124,648
13,838,448 - 13,838,448
(5,879,698) (2,080,000) (637,931) (100,000)  (8,697,629)
2020 12 31 13,670,295 21,440,000 155,172 35,265,467
2020 2019 8.7 9.4
PINMCO
AAM LP AAM LLC
2020
2019 36.1
AAM LP AAM LLC PIMCO
PIMCO
2020 2019 12 31 8.6
11.1
LIBOR 0.2 90
AAM LP PINCO 2019 PINCO
AAM LP
PIMCO 2020 12 31 2019 12 31
228.0
PIMCO 2020 373 3.7
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7.8 8.6
PEG
PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO
PEG PEG

PEG 2020 PEG

2020 12 31 13.5 2019

28.8 2019 10. PEG
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2020 12 31
822.6 2019 724.1
52.4 45.8
PEG
2019 40.3
2019 33.3
PEG
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AAM LP 2023 11 600.0
LIBOR LIBOR 20
2020 12 31 0.278 LIBOR
LIBOR
AAM LP PIMCO 2020
2019 12 31
PIMCO PIMCO PIMCO
AAM LP
EDCP PIMCO

PIMCO

314/405



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

250,000 2020
2020
2019 12 31 148,726 153,400
58,608
OPAD
2020 2019
2020 2019
17,806 14,519
3.84 3.84
25.1 17.9
11.1 13.2
0.6 2.4
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2018

2019

2020
2020

2020
2.52

2019

2019

12

12

12
12

12 31

31

31

31
31
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2020
143,858 143,858 13,606
39,751 39,751 14,519
23,492 (23,492)
(23,492) (23,492) 16,178
(6,717) (6,717) 12,618
153,400 153,400 13,492
29,802 29,802 17,806
27,775 (27,775)
(27,775) (27,775) 11,567
(6,701) (6,701) 14,416
148,726 148,726 14,674
11,319 17,806
17,806 2020 14,622
2020 27,775 2020 30
9,732
2020 12 31 58,177 431
AAM LLC
23,492 2019 29
3,171
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13

LTIP

LTIP

AAM LP

15.5

2020

2020
14.6

2020 12 31

116.3

2019

54.8

401
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2019
2025 12 31
24.5
2020 2019 14
LTIP
2020 2019
50.5 LTIP
2020 2019 12 31
111.1
100

55.1 48.4
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201 301 401
2020 2019 12 31
874.8
2.0 2020 167
12 31
2020 2019
29,332 11,770
3,432,731 2,022,507
121,394,722 100,158,160
124,856,785 102,192,437
(20,864,965) (3.371,142)
(20,864,965) (3.371,142)
103,991,820 98,821,295
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2020 2019 12 31 23.2 36.7
2020 2019 12 31
44.8 21.4 2020 2019 12 31
247 61

2020 12 31
29,593,350
6,304,014
240,983
376,312
2,179,123
2020 12 31 39.8
12 31
2021 38,461,023
2022 34,822,467
2023 36,457,152
2024 22,087,757
2025 32,862,009
96,750,859
261,441,267

(24,146, 287)
237,294,980
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2020 12 31

AAM LP

2020 12 31 2020 12 31
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Pl LLC 13
12
2020
PIMCO
CovID 19
13
Pl LLC
2020 12 31
250
P1 LLC 57.5
57.2
14

2020
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PIMCO
15
66.8
2019 12 31
250
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12 31
2020 2019
582,606,016 493,340,219
222,021 170,996

15
2020 10 AREOA AAM LLC AAM LP
AREOA 7.8
16
2021 23
2021 15 40,974 PIMCO
2021 31

15,582
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition
December 31, 2020 and 2019

Assets
Note 2020 2019
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 2(d) $ 670,905,056 422,556,446
Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss 2(e), 3 30,870,470 30,623,395
Investment advisory and administrative fees receivable:
Pooled funds 2(f) 798,701,996 698,851,736
Private accounts 2(f) 314,822,326 282,546,439
Prepaid expenses 45,702,592 36,373,824
Distribution and servicing fees receivable 2(f) 23,912,871 25,219,844
Interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust 2(k), 8(e) 19,755,282 19,239,181
Receivables from affiliates 7 17,306,918 13,010,339
Other current assets 64,128,683 60,915,714
Total current assets 1,986,106,194 1,589,336,918
Noncurrent assets:
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $213,677,355
and $183,689,431 at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively 2(9). 5 121,111,682 139,127,937
Right-of-use assets 2(j), 10 195,322,419 209,441,754
Interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust 2(k), 8(e) 855,055,452 669,472,591
Goodwill 2(i) 30,865,176 30,865,176
Intangible assets 2(h), 6 35,265,467 30,124,648
Investments in associates 2(b) 14,710,139 16,086,963
Other noncurrent assets 9 51,541,356 33,253,757
Total noncurrent assets 1,303,871,691 1,128,372,826
Total assets $  3,289,977,885 2,717,709,744
Liabilities and Capital
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 398,802,753 409,454,573
Short-term borrowings from affiliates 7 — 228,000,000
Accrued compensation 8 216,289,372 208,752,447
Commissions payable 4 122,043,872 124,895,219
Lease liabilities 2(j), 10 33,157,779 30,057,351
Payables to &ffiliates 7 37,379,146 21,460,619
Deferred compensation 2(s), 8(e) 19,755,282 19,239,181
Other current ligbilities 4,928,294 11,190,145
Total current liabilities 832,356,498 1,053,049,535
Noncurrent liabilities:
Deferred compensation 2(s), 8(e) 855,055,452 669,472,591
Lease liabilities 2(j), 10 204,137,201 220,717,637
Other accrued compensation 8 152,799,181 164,382,884
Other noncurrent liabilities 4,306,979 3,022,510
Total noncurrent liabilities 1,216,298,813 1,057,595,622
Total liabilities 2,048,655,311 2,110,645,157
Capitd:
Class A members (issued and outstanding 850,000 units) (103,214,782) (683,902,349)
Class B members (issued and outstanding 150,000 units) 1,308,035,518 1,288,040,853
Class M members (58,608 units issued and outstanding at December 31, 2020
and 48,876 units issued and outstanding at December 31, 2019) 43,399,986 28,952,832
Class M unit option holders (148,726 options issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2020 and 153,400 options issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2019) 8(a) 37,843,422 32,591,945
Cumulative translation adjustment 2(p) (44,741,570) (58,618,694)
Total capital 1,241,322,574 607,064,587
Total liabilities and capital $  3289977,885 2,717,709,744

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive |ncome
Y ears ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

Revenues: Note 2020 2019
Investment advisory fees:
Pooled funds 2(f) $  4,012,403,139 3,801,610,877
Private accounts 2(f) 1,095,151,513 1,011,008,189
Administrative fees - pooled funds 2(f) 1,155,727,878 1,152,533,169
Distribution and servicing fees 2(f) 360,487,808 380,555,089
Other 2(f) 46,057,465 23,903,886
Total revenues 6,669,827,803 6,369,611,210
Expenses:
Compensation and benefits 8 2,283,500,614 2,125,025,461
Commissions 4 777,771,809 857,070,964
Genera and administrative 2(t) 605,822,180 637,010,892
Professional fees 235,901,474 214,712,229
Occupancy and equipment 5,10 168,804,503 159,176,036
Marketing and promotional 2(0) 108,835,693 120,596,262
Subadvisory and subadministrative services 43,316,136 50,264,299
Other 44,512,301 27,702,379
Total expenses 4,268,464,710 4,191,558,522
Operating income 2,401,363,093 2,178,052,688
Other income, net 52,168,123 57,347,069
Finance costs 2(j), 10 (6,676,919) (10,703,929)
Equity in loss of associates 2(b) (1,321,069) (1,278,635)
Net income before income taxes 2,445,533,228 2,223,417,193
Income tax expense 9 103,991,820 98,821,295
Net income 2,341,541,408 2,124,595,898

Other comprehensive income:
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Foreign currency translation adjustment 2(p) 13,877,124 6,577,523
Comprehensive income $ 2,355,418,532 2,131,173,421

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Capital
Y ears ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

Cumulative
Class M unit option
Class A members Class B members ClassM members holders trandation Total
Units Amounts Units Amounts Units Amounts Options Amounts adjustment capita

Balances at December 31,
2018 850,000 $ (792,957,184) 150,000 $ 1,267,204,122 45705 $ 23,722,086 143,858 $ 28,576,118 $ (65,196,217)$ 461,348,925
Net income 1,556,133,972 472,136,883 96,325,043 — —  2,124,595,898
Distributions (1,459,197,453) (451,300,152) (91,397,156) — —  (2,001,894,761)
Contribution 1,444,428 — — — — 1,444,428
PIMCO Class M unit
equity plan:

Compensation expense — — — 14,992,574 — 14,992,574

Reallocation of basison

vested options 10,673,888 — 302,859 (10,976,747) — —
Other comprehensive
income — — — — 6,577,523 6,577,523
Balances at December 31,
2019 850,000 (683,902,349) 150,000  1,288,040,853 48,876 28,952,832 153400 32,591,945 (58,618,694) 607,064,587
Net income 1,694,470,162 520,315,348 126,755,898 — —  2,341,541,408
Distributions (1,133,305,426) (500,320,683) (116,146,639) — —  (1,749,772,748)
Contributions 12,785,179 — — — — 12,785,179
PIMCO Class M unit
equity plan:

Compensation expense — — — 15,827,024 — 15,827,024

Reallocation of basis on

vested options 6,737,652 — 3,837,895 (10,575,547) — —
Other comprehensive
income — — — —_ 13,877,124 13,877,124
Balances at December 30,
2020 850,000 $ (103,214,782) 150,000 ¢ 1,308,035,518 58,608 $ 43,399,986 148,726 ¢ 37,843,422 ¢ (44,741570)¢ 1,241,322,574

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

326/405



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Y ears ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 2,341,541,408 2,124,595,898
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Equity compensation 15,508,853 14,579,559
Depreciation and amortization 65,464,604 65,882,645
Finance costs 6,676,919 10,703,929
Equity inloss of associates 1,321,069 1,278,635
Net loss on disposal of property and equipment 12,114 59,310
Unrealized and realized net gain on investments carried at fair value through
profit and loss (44,308) (99,913)
Contingent consideration fair value adjustments 14,256,907 28,852,954
Proceeds from sale of investments carried at fair value through profit and loss 15,010,423 14,132,707
Purchases of investments carried at fair value through profit and loss (11,695,316) (11,771,410)
Income taxes paid (146,673,050) (133,320,387)
Interest paid (6,762,761) (10,822,134)
Change in operating assets, liabilities, and income tax expense:
Fees receivable (130,819,174) (168,718,254)
Receivables from affiliates, prepaid expenses, and other assets (25,708,793) (28,864,869)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses, commissions payable, accrued
compensation, and income tax expense 103,679,079 175,692,797
Other liabilities and payables to &ffiliates 10,538,563 3,895,278
Net cash provided by operating activities 2.252.306,537 2,086,076,745
Cash flows from investing activities:
Payment for acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired — (51,884,452)
Cash acquired through acquisition 6,500,203 —
Purchases of property and equipment (7,078,726) (29,716,676)
Purchases of intangible assets (13,730,247) (640,695)
Purchases of investments in associates (18,000) (4,017,970)
Net cash used in investing activities (14,326,770) (86,259,793)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from short-term borrowings from affiliates 416,000,000 2,239,000,000
Repayment of short-term borrowings from affiliates (644,000,000) (2,223,000,000)
Distributions paid (1,749,772,748) (2,001,894,761)
Contributions received 4,984,931 1,444,428
Principal elements of lease payments (30,720,464) (28,608,691)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,003,508,281) (2,013,059,024)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 13,877,124 6,577,523
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 248,348,610 (6,664,549)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 422,556,446 429,220,995
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 670,905,056 422,556,446
Supplemental disclosure of noncash activities:
Assets acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition, net $ 1,300,045 —
Initia recognition of right-of-use assets — 233,931,730
Initial recognition of lease liahilities — (274,626,538)
Derecognition of future lease obligation — 40,694,808

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2020 and 2019

(D) Organization and Business

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC (PIMCO or the Company), a Delaware limited liability company
and subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management of AmericaL P. (AAM LP), the Managing Member, is a registered
investment adviser, headquartered in Newport Beach, California. The Company manages a variety of
predominately fixed-income portfolios for a wide range of investors located throughout the world. Investors
include public and private pensions and retirement plans, educational institutions, foundations, endowments,
corporations, financial advisers, individuals, and others through the use of private accounts and pooled funds.

Capitalization

AAM LP owns al 850,000 Class A units of the Company. There are atotal of 150,000 Class B units, which are
owned by Allianz Asset Management of AmericaLLC (AAM LLC) and Allianz Asset Management U.S. Holding
I LLC (AAM Holding I1). The Company has authorized 250,000 nonvoting Class M units for issuance and
options on Class M units have been granted to certain employees of PIMCO. As of December 31, 2020, 58,608
Class M units have been issued and are outstanding. Class B units have priority over Class A and M units with
respect to income and distributions.

AAM LP, AAM LLC, and AAM Holding Il are indirectly wholly owned by Allianz SE. Allianz SE is a global
financial services provider predominantly in the insurance and asset management business.

Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany items have been eliminated in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

PIMCO, as the primary investment adviser, has several wholly owned subsidiaries including PIMCO Investments
LLC (PI LLC) aswell asinternational subsidiaries that are included in these consolidated financial statements as

follows:

Pl LLC isabroker/dealer that is the primary distributor and provides shareholder services to ingtitutional and
retail mutual funds (PIMCO Mutua Funds) and exchange traded funds that are managed and advised by
PIMCO (collectively, PIMCO Funds). Pl LLC is aregistered broker/dealer with the Securities and Exchange
Commission and is amember of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA).

StocksPLUS Management, Inc. (StocksPLUS) owns approximately 0.00206% interest and 0.00190% interest
in, and isthe general partner of, StocksPLUS L P. as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

PIMCO Europe Ltd (PIMCO Europe) is a registered investment adviser in the United Kingdom, with a
branch in Italy until December 1, 2020, at which time the branch was sold to the Italian branch of PIMCO
Europe GmbH (PEG), formally PIMCO Deutschland GmbH.

PIMCO Japan Ltd (PIMCO Japan) is aregistered investment adviser in Japan.

PIMCO Austraia Pty Limited (PIMCO Australia) is aregistered investment adviser in Australia.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

PIMCO Australia Management Limited is aregistered responsible entity in Australia.
PIMCO AsiaPte Ltd (PIMCO Asia) is aregistered investment adviser in Singapore.
PIMCO Asia Limited (PIMCO Hong Kong) is aregistered investment adviser in Hong Kong.

PIMCO Globa Advisors (Resources) LLC (PIMCO Resources) provides certain globa payroll services to
PIMCO and its subsidiaries.

PIMCO Canada Corp is aregistered investment adviser in Canada.
PIMCO Globa Holdings LLC isthe holding company for PIMCO Canada Corp.

PGA Global Services LLC is a holding company, with branches in the United Kingdom, Hong Kong, and
Ireland.

PIMCO Globa Advisors LLC is aholding company, with abranch in Argentina.

PIMCO (Schweiz) GmbH provides certain services to PIMCO Europe in Switzerland and is a registered
distributor with Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority (FINMA).

PIMCO Latin America Administradora de Carteiras Ltda. is aregistered investment adviser in Brazil.
PIMCO Global Advisors (Ireland) Limited provides management services to certain international funds.

PIMCO Global Advisors (Luxembourg) S.A. administers and manages an investment fund under the laws of
Luxembourg.

PIMCO Taiwan Limited is aregistered investment advisor in Taiwan.
PIMCO Investment Management (Shanghai) Limited is an investment advisor in China.
Gurtin Municipal Bond Management LLC is aregistered investment advisor inthe U.S.

Allianz Real Estate of AmericaLLC (AREOA) isa captive real estate investment and asset manager.

Third-party assets managed in an agency or fiduciary capacity are not assets of the Company and are not
presented in these consolidated financia statements.

(2 Significant Accounting Policies
(@) Basisof Preparation

These consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), which are in compliance with standards and interpretations approved by either the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) or the IFRS Interpretations Committee or their predecessors. The accounting
policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the consolidated financial statements. These
consolidated financial statements are presented in U.S. dollars.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2020 and 2019

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis as well as a going-concern basis
using the historical cost convention modified for certain financial assets that have been measured at fair value.
After reviewing the Company’s current plans and forecasts, the Managing Member considers that the Company
has adequate resources to continue operating for the foreseeable future.

These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Managing Member on April 23, 2021.
(b) Basisof Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of the other entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Management
must make judgments when it assesses these various elements and al related facts and circumstances to determine
whether control exists.

Investments are classified as associates when it is determined that PIMCO does not control these entities,
however, the Company has significant influence. The Company accounts for investments in associates under the
equity method of accounting. An investment in an associate is recorded at its initial cost and adjusted thereafter
for the post acquisition change in PIMCO'’s share of net assets of the investee. The equity income or loss
primarily represents the Company’s proportionate share of the unrealized and realized gains and losses from
changes in fair value of the investments held by these associates.

In evaluating its involvement with, and exposure to, interests in structured entities, as well as the requirement as
to whether or not any identified interest in a structured entity should be consolidated, the Company considers
factors including the nature of the Company’s investment (if any), the nature of the fees earned by the Company
from the structured entities, powers held by other entities associated with the structured entities, including the
power to direct or control operations, and the rights and restrictions of the investors in the structured entities.

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting and similar rights are not the dominant factor
in deciding who controls the entity, for example, when any voting rights relate to administrative tasks only, and
key activities are directed by contractual agreement. Structured entities often have restricted activities and a
narrow and well defined objective.

() Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

The Company adopted IFRS 16 Leases (IFRS 16), on January 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective approach.

Under IFRS 16, the Company, as a lessee, recognizes a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the
underlying asset and a corresponding financial liability representing its obligation to make lease payments.

The Company used the following practical expedients for al leases:

The need not to reassess whether expired or existing contracts are or contain leases; or reassess any initial
direct costs for existing leases.

Use hindsight in determining the leaseterm and in ng impairment of the right-of-use assets.

(Continued)
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PACIHC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

At transition, lease liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted at
the Company’s estimated incremental borrowing rate as at January 1, 2019. The weighted average incremental
borrowing rate applied at the date of initial application was 2.59%. A liability of $274.6 million was initialy
recognized for operating leases. The right-of-use asset was measured at an amount equal to the lease liability and
adjusted by the remaining balance of the future lease obligation. The adoption of IFRS 16 did not have a
significant impact to the results of operations.

The operating lease commitments reported under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 can be reconciled to the lease liabilities
reported under IFRS 16 as follows:

Operating lease commitment as of December 31, 2018 $ 206,586,026
Recognition exemption for leases expiring
before December 31, 2019 (96,826)
Extension options reasonably certain to be exercised 106,291,903
Other 90,806
Discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at
January 1, 2019 (38,245,371)
L ease liabilities recognized at January 1, 2019 $ 274,626,538

(d) Cashand Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all liquid financia instruments with an original maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents may include cash on deposit with financial institutions, nonaffiliated
money market accounts, and cash deposited into a cash pool, through AAM LP, administered by Allianz SE.
There was $347.1 million and $179.1 million invested in nonaffiliated money market accounts at December 31,
2020 and 2019, respectively. Cash equivalents deposited in the cash pool with Allianz SE totaled $2.3 million and
$27 thousand at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Management considers investments in money market
accounts to be cash equivalents for purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows. These investments are
carried at amortized cost, which approximates fair value. The Company maintains its remaining cash and cash
equivalents in various federally insured banking institutions. The account balances at each institution generally
exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation’s (FDIC) insurance coverage (or similar federa foreign
programs), and as a result, there is a concentration of credit risk related to amounts in excess of FDIC insurance
coverage.

(© Investments Carried at Fair Value through Profit and Loss

Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss represent financial assets in the held for trading business
model. Investments held for trading consist primarily of investments in PIMCO pooled funds with a short-to-
moderate term duration objective. Investments held for trading are measured at fair value. Changes in fair value

are recognized directly in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. Transactions in these
investments are recorded on a trade-date basis.

(Continued)
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December 31, 2020 and 2019

() Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue as it transfers services to customers at an amount that the Company expects to
be entitled to in exchange for those services.

Investment Advisory and Administrative Fees

Investment advisory and administrative fees are recognized as the services are performed. These fees are earned in
exchange for investment advisory services and, in many cases, providing or procuring administrative services for
the customer including audit, custodial, portfolio accounting, legal, transfer agency, and printing costs. The
performance obligation is considered a series of distinct services performed each day that are substantially the
same. Such fees are primarily based on percentages of the fair value of the assets under management and
recognized for services provided during the period, which are distinct from services provided in other periods. As
the investment advisory and administrative fees are primarily based on a percentage of assets under management,
the consideration for this revenue is variable and deemed constrained due to the dependence on unpredictable
asset values. Revenue is recognized once the constraint is removed which is generally once these values can be
determined.

Private accounts and pooled funds may also generate a fee based on investment performance. The Company may
also receive carried interest from certain alternative investment products that exceed performance hurdles. Such
fees are recognized when it is no longer probable that there will be a significant reversal, which is usually at the
end of the respective measurement period if the prescribed performance hurdles have been achieved and the fees
are no longer subject to claw back.

Distribution and Servicing Fees

Distribution and servicing fees are an ongoing fee that the Company receives for completing the performance
obligation of distribution and servicing activities on behaf of PPIMCO Mutual Funds. For distribution and
servicing fee revenue, the performance obligation is considered a series of distinct services performed each day
that are substantially the same. This revenue is earned ratably over time to match the delivery of the performance
obligation each day over the life of the contract. As the distribution and servicing revenue amounts are based on
percentages of the average daily net assets of the PIMCO Mutual Funds, the consideration for this revenue is
variable and deemed constrained due to dependence of unpredictable asset values. The constraint is removed
once these va ues can be determined.

Contract assets and liabilities

Recelvables related to investment advisory and administration revenue are included in investment advisory and
administrative fees receivable in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. Receivables
related to distribution and servicing fees revenue are included in distribution and servicing fees receivable in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. There was no impairment of any receivables
recognized during the year related to revenue from contracts with customers. There are no contract liabilities
related to these contracts.

(Continued)
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December 31, 2020 and 2019

(g) Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Office equipment,
furniture, and fixtures are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, generaly three to
five years. Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the remaining terms of the related
leases or the useful lives of such improvements, whichever is shorter.

The assets useful economic lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial period-end and adjusted if
appropriate. An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal of the asset, calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item, is included in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income in the year theitem is sold or retired.

(h) Intangible assets

Intangible assets consist of computer software and assets acquired in a business combination which include
customer relationships, developed technology and trade name. Computer software is amortized on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives, generaly three to five years. The fair values of the acquired assets were
determined using the multi-period excess earnings method for the customer relationships; the replacement cost
method for the developed technology; and the relief-from-royalty approach for the trade name. The intangible
assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives, which range from 18 months to three years, using the
straight-line method. Certain contracts to manage funds without a specified termination date are classified as
indefinite-lived intangible assets.

(i) Goodwill

On an annual basis, management assesses certain qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than
not that the fair value of the Company’s reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. This assessment is
performed as of September 30th or sooner if events or circumstances exist that indicate that it is more likely than
not that a goodwill impairment exists.

() Leases

The Company’s leases consist of leases for rea estate for corporate offices and other facilities. The Company has
measured the lease liability using its estimated incremental borrowing rate and the index or market rate of variable
lease payments at commencement date. Any subsequent changes to the index or market rate result in a
remeasurement of the lease liability and adjusted against the right-of-use asset. The portion of lease liabilities that
is expected to be extinguished over the next 12 months has been classified as a current liability in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.

Certain leases contain an option for the Company to extend the term of the lease. We have included options to
extend the lease term to the extent we are reasonably certain to exercise the options after considering all factors
that create an economic incentive for the Company, including significant leasehold improvements.

(Continued)
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December 31, 2020 and 2019

We recognize the finance cost of lease payments in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income on a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability each period.
The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease
term and is included in occupancy and equipment in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income.

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low values assets
and short-term leases that have alease term of 12 months or less. Lease payments associated with these leases are
recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(K Interest in Non-consolidated Deferred Compensation Trust

The Company elected the fair value option under IFRS 9 Financial Instruments for the interest in the non-
consolidated deferred compensation trust.

() Income Taxes

The Company is not subject to U.S. federal income tax as it is organized as a limited liability company and is
taxed as a partnership. Ultimately, the members of PIMCO are responsible for taxes on their proportionate share
of the Company’s taxable income. The Company is subject to state taxes in certain jurisdictions in the United
States.

Certain consolidated entities are subject to federal, foreign, state, and local income tax, and file separate tax
returns and account for income taxes under the asset and liability method. This method gives recognition to
deferred tax assets and liabilities based on the expected future tax consequences of events that have been
recognized in the consolidated financial statements or tax returns. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized
for al taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are measured on an undiscounted basis.

(m) Distributions

Although thereis no contractual requirement, PIMCO generally distributes its operating income (as defined within
the PIMCO Limited Liability Company Agreement) for each calendar quarter no later than 30 days after the end
of such quarter. At the Company’s discretion, distributions can be reduced in an amount reasonably necessary or
appropriate for the Company to conduct its business in the normal course.

(n) Share-Based Compensation Plans

The Company accounts for share-based payment arrangements by determining the value of employee services
received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the grant date fair value of the share-based
award. The cost of employee services is recognized as an expense, with a corresponding increase to capital, over
the period during which an employee provides service in exchange for the share-based payment award. As the
Company’s equity instruments have no publicly traded market price, fair value is determined by the Company’s
management based in part on a comprehensive analysis of trading values of comparable public entities, discounted
cash flows, market transactions of comparable entities, and consideration as to the Company’s historical and
forecasted financial performance.
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December 31, 2020 and 2019

(0) Marketing and Promotional

The Company incurs marketing expenses to promote its products to retail and institutional investors by creating
marketing materials and supporting third party intermediaries. The Company expenses marketing and
promotional fees asincurred.

(p) Foreign Currency Trandation

The assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries have been translated into U.S. dollars at the current rate of
exchange existing at year-end. Revenues and expenses are trandated primarily at the exchange rate on the date on
which the transactions are recognized. The effects of trandating the results of operations of subsidiaries with a
functional currency other than the U.S. dollar are included in other comprehensive income. The cumulative
trandation adjustment of translating the balance sheet of subsidiaries with a functional currency other than the
U.S. dollar is included as a component of capital in the consolidated statements of financial condition as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019.

(@ Useof Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
estimates and assumptions about future events. These estimates and the underlying assumptions affect the
amounts of assets and liabilities reported, disclosures about contingent assets and liahilities, reported amounts of
revenues and expenses, and the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. These estimates and
assumptions are based on management’s best judgment. Management evaluates its estimates and assumptions on
an ongoing basis using historical experience and other known factors, including the current economic
environment, which management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management adjusts such
estimates and assumptions when facts and circumstances dictate. As future events and their effects cannot be
determined with precision, actual results could differ significantly from these estimates. Changes in those
estimates resulting from continuing changes in the economic environment will be reflected in the financia
statements in future periods as they occur. Management believes that the significant areas where judgment is
necessarily applied are those which relate to the:

Measurement of share-based payment arrangements, which includes estimates of fair value of the Company’
s membership units. These estimates can be particularly sensitive to assumptions in regards to the Company’
sfuture earnings; and

Assessment of provisions.

Critical judgments have been made by management in applying accounting policies. Those that have the most
significant effect on amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements include the following:

Evauation of the measurement criteria associated with the recognition of revenues associated with
performance fees (as discussed in note 2(f)).

Evaluation of control associated over entities (as discussed in note 2(b)), and the impact to consolidation of
such entities.
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December 31, 2020 and 2019

(r) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. The amount
recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the obligation at the reporting date. If the effect is material,
provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risk specific to the liability. Future events that
may affect the amount required to settle an obligation are reflected in the amount of a provision where there is
sufficient objective evidence that they will occur. Where some or all of the expenditure is expected to be
reimbursed by insurance or some other party, and it is virtually certain, the reimbursement is recognized as a
separate asset on the consolidated statements of financial condition, and the amount is recorded in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

(s Deferred Compensation

The Company accounts for its deferred compensation liability in accordance with IAS 19 and adjusts the carrying
value of the liability for changes in the fair value of the interest in the non-consolidated deferred compensation
trust in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition and compensation and benefits in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

() General and administrative
General and administrative expenses are mainly comprised of costs related to performance obligations under the
administrative fees contracts that do not meet the criteria as costs to obtain or fulfill a contract. The Company is
considered the principal in these arrangements and recognizes these costs on agross basis.
(u) Reclassification
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to current year presentation.
(3 Fair Vaue of Financia Instruments
IFRS 7 requires that financial instruments carried at fair value in the consolidated statements of financial
condition are classified into a three-level hierarchy depending on the valuation techniques used and whether the
inputs to those valuation techniques are observable in the market.
Level 1 - Financial instruments for which the fair value is determined by using quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities are classified into this category. A financial instrument is
regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily available and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.
Level 2 — Financial instruments for which the fair value is determined by using valuation techniques, with
any significant input being based on observable market data (observable inputs), are classified into this
category.
Level 3 — Financial instruments for which the fair value is determined by using valuation techniques, with at

least one significant input not being based on observable market data (nonobservable inputs), are classified
into this category.
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The Company has evaluated its investments carried at fair value through profit and loss totaling $30.9 million and
$30.6 million as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, and determined that based on the unadjusted
guoted prices in active markets used to determine fair value that the investments are classified as Level 1
instruments for 2020 and 2019.

The underlying investments of the non-consolidated deferred compensation trust consist of mutual funds and
equity securities which are classified as Level 1 instruments, and investment partnerships which are measured at
net asset value (NAV) of the respective investment partnership, at December 31, 2020 and 2019.

There have been no changes to the Company’s valuation policies during the year ended December 31, 2020 or
2019.

The fair value of investment advisory fees and administrative fees receivable, distribution and servicing fees
receivable, receivables from affiliates, and payables to affiliates has been deemed to approximate their carrying
value through reference to their short maturity as well as low credit risk. The fair value of short-term borrowings
from affiliates is based upon the Company’s comparison to current market rates available to the Company for
comparable debt. It isthe Company’s intention to hold such instruments until maturity or collection.

(4) Commissions and Deferred Sales Charges

Trail commissions consist of distribution and servicing payments to participating brokers for the distribution of
shares, providing personal services to shareholders, and maintaining shareholder accounts. Such trail
commissions, in total, can range from 0.10% to 1.00% of the average daily net assets for PIMCO Mutual Funds.

In connection with the distribution of certain Class A and Class C shares, Pl LLC advances commissions to third
party intermediaries, which are expensed as incurred. Initial commissions are generally paid at arate of up to 1%
for Class A shares (primarily on sales of $1 million or more) and for Class C shares. Pl LLC incurred $39.8
million and $51.4 million in commissions to third party intermediaries for the year ended December 31, 2020 and
December 31, 2019, respectively, and isincluded in commissions in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income.

The contingent deferred sales charges are collected on certain early redemptions of the shares, unless an
applicable exemption applies such as if the redemption relates to balances accumulated through reinvested
dividends or capital gain distributions or appreciation on the account over the amount that was invested. The
contingent deferred sales charges on Class C shares is generally 1% if redeemed during the first year following
purchase for applicable PIMCO Mutual Funds. Contingent deferred sales charges may also be received on the
redemption of certain Class A shares at a rate of 1% of the net asset value of the redeemed shares, if the initial
purchase of such Class A shares exceeded certain thresholds. Pl LLC received $5.2 million and $2.0 million in
contingent deferred sales charges for the year ended December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, respectively,
which isincluded in other revenues in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive
income.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC

(5) Property and Equipment

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

The major classifications of property and equipment are as follows:

Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2018

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation and amortization

Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2019

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation and amortization

Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2020

Office
equipment,
furniture, and L easehold
fixtures improvements Art Total
$ 50,681,246 83,658,168 1,021,436 135,360,850
18,961,101 12,515,207 — 31,476,308
(353,453) — — (353,453)
(19,443,474) (7,912,294) — (27,355,768)
49,845,420 88,261,081 1,021,436 139,127,937
8,445,092 1,289,112 50,174 9,784,378
(12,114) — — (12,114)
(16,946,736) (10,841,783) — (27,788,519)
$ 41,331,662 78,708,410 1,071,610 121,111,682

The Company recorded depreciation and amortization expense of $27.8 million and $27.4 million during 2020
and 2019, respectively, which is included in occupancy and equipment in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income.

(6) Intangible Assets

The major classifications of intangible assets are as follows:

Carrying amount as of
December31,2018

Additions

Disposals

Amortization

Carrying amount as of
December31,2019

Additions

Disposals

Amortization

Carrying amount as of
December31,2020

Computer Customer Developed Trade

software relationships  technology name Total
$ 11,501,756 — — 11,501,756
640,695 25,600,000 1,500,000 300,000 28,040,695
(5,180) — — (5,180)
(6,425,726)  (2,080,000) (706,897) (200,000)  (9,412,623)
5,711,545 23,520,000 793,103 100,000 30,124,648
13,838,448 — — 13,838,448
(5,879,698)  (2,080,000) (637,931) (100,000)  (8,697,629)
$ 13,670,295 21,440,000 155,172 — 35,265,467

The Company recorded amortization expense of $8.7 million and $9.4 million during 2020 and 2019,
respectively, which is included in other expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and

comprehensive income.
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(7) Related-Party Transactions

PIMCO and its subsidiaries reimburse AAM LP and AAM LLC for certain overhead, administrative services, and
occupancy costs, including short-term lease costs, that are allocated based on time and usage factors. These
expenses generally consist of rental costs and salaries and related benefits for legal, internal audit, and other
general and administrative services. The amount charged for such services totaled $24.7 million and $36.1 million
during 2020 and 2019, respectively, which is a component of general and administrative and occupancy and
equipment in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. The payable to affiliates includes
aliability to be paid to AAM LP and AAM LLC in connection with these services and payables to other affiliates
in connection with services they have provided to PIMCO and for expenses that have been paid on behalf of
PIMCO over the ordinary course of business, totaling $8.6 million and $11.1 million as of December 31, 2020 and
2019, respectively.

From time to time, short-term interest-bearing advances are granted between AAM LP and PIMCO for generally
less than 90 days, at arate of overnight LIBOR plus 0.2% to cover short-term operating cash needs. During 2020
and 2019, PIMCO borrowed and fully repaid several of these short-term cash loans from AAM LP to cover its
operating cash needs. At December 31, 2020, PIMCO had no outstanding short-term loans, and at December 31,
2019 had outstanding short-term loans of $228.0 million, which is shown as short-term borrowings from &ffiliates
in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. During 2020 and 2019, PIMCO incurred
$373 thousand and $3.7 million, respectively, in interest expense on loans, which isincluded in other expensesin
the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

The Company earns investment advisory fees, administrative fees, and distribution and servicing fees from
affiliated fund complexes, which comprise substantially all of the amounts included in the consolidated statements
of income and comprehensive income as investment advisory fees — pooled funds, administrative fees — pooled
funds, and distribution and servicing fees, respectively. As of December 31, 2020, the Company had $822.6
million (2019: $724.1 million) in related receivables from affiliated fund complexes.

The Company manages private accounts for certain affiliated subsidiaries of Allianz SE. Investment advisory fees
earned on these accounts totaled $52.4 million and $45.8 million during 2020 and 2019, respectively, which are
primarily included in investment advisory fees — private accounts in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income.

Allianz Life Insurance of New York, an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz SE, provides certain
services on behalf of the Company to certain variable annuity and/or variable life insurance contracts invested in
PIMCO Funds. The total fees paid for these services by the Company were $7.8 million and $8.6 million during
2020 and 2019, respectively, and are included in general and administrative expenses and marketing and
promotional expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
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For certain advisory contracts with institutional clients, the Company shares the responsibility of fulfilling such
service contracts with PEG and its branches, a wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management GmbH,
who in turn, is a wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz SE. PEG, together with all of the PIMCO subsidiaries, are
subject to PIMCO'’ s Global Transfer Pricing Policy (Transfer Pricing Policy) for shared management services that
are provided by al PIMCO entities. Shared management services provided include portfolio management, account
management, and business management and administration. Revenues earned from third parties for shared
management services are alocated in accordance with the Transfer Pricing Policy. In 2020, the revenue earned
from third parties for shared management services alocated to PEG was $92.2 million (2019: $40.3 million)
greater than the revenue allocated from PEG and is presented as a reduction of investment advisory fees — pooled
funds in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. In addition, costs for
performing other shared services are allocated to PEG based on headcount and estimated time and usage factors.
During 2020, costs allocated to PEG were $41.3 million (2019: $33.3 million) and are included as a reduction of
compensation and benefits and general and administrative in the accompanying consolidated statements of income
and comprehensive income. As of December 31, 2020, the Company had a $13.5 million (2019: $9.8 million)
receivable from PEG and a $28.8 million (2019: $10.3 million) payable to PEG, which are included within
receivables from affiliates and payables to affiliates, respectively, in the accompanying consolidated statements of
financial condition.

AAM LP has a $600.0 million revolving credit facility with Allianz SE to cover short-term operating cash needs,
which expires in November 2023. The facility permits short-term borrowings at a floating rate of interest of
LIBOR plus 20bps (interest rate of 0.278% as of December 31, 2020) until LIBOR has ceased to be quoted, at
which time the parties of the agreement shall determine in good faith and in line with market practice the
successor rate of LIBOR. To the extent necessary, AAM LP could draw on this revolving credit facility on behalf
of its subsidiaries, including PIMCO. There were no amounts outstanding under this agreement at December 31,
2020 and 2019.

Managing Directors and certain other executive officers are considered to be key members of management.
Management believes that these individuals provide significant contributions to the Company. In return for their
service, they receive remuneration, which management believes to be in line with its select group of peers. In
addition to an annual base salary, key management participates in each of the benefit plans that are discussed in
note 8. Total compensation of key members of management comprises the majority of compensation and benefits
included in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(8) Benefit Plans
(@) ClassM Unit Equity Participation Plan

PIMCO has established a Class M Unit Equity Participation Plan (the M Unit Plan) for certain individuals
providing services to PIMCO and certain of its affiliates. Participants in the M Unit Plan are granted options to
acquire M units, which vest in one third increments on the third, fourth, and fifth anniversary of the option grant
date. M unit options are converted to M units based on the appreciation of fair value of the M unit over the related
vesting period. At the exercise date, vested options will be automatically exercised in a cashless transaction unless
the participant has elected to defer the receipt of M units through the M Unit Deferral Plan. As disclosed in note 8
(e), participants can defer their M units into the AAM LP Executive Deferred Compensation Plan (the EDCP). If,
at the time of vesting, the PIMCO Class M unit estimated fair value is less than the exercise price of the option
award, no Class M units will be issued. Class M units are nonvoting units of PIMCO and entitle the holder to
receive quarterly distributions in accordance with the Company’'s Second Amended and Restated Limited
Liability Company Agreement. Those participants electing to defer the receipt of M units through the M Unit
Deferral Plan continue to receive quarterly distributions.

(Continued)

340/405



EDINETOO OO
DOO000000000000000000000000000000000(E15034)
OOo0Oo0Oo000O0oooooooon
PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2020 and 2019

A maximum of 250,000 M units were originally authorized for issuance under the M Unit Plan. During 2020, the
M Unit Plan was amended to stop the granting of options to acquire M units and no further M units shall be
issued, except pursuant to the exercise of options that were outstanding prior to the plan amendment. As of
December 31, 2020 and 2019, 148,726 and 153,400 M unit options, respectively, were outstanding, and 58,608 M
units have been issued from the exercise of options.

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black Scholes option pricing model.
The model requires management to develop estimates regarding certain input variables. A third-party valuation
was completed to assist management in determining the fair value of a Class M unit. The dividend yield was
estimated based upon the historical Operating Profit Available for Distribution (OPAD) distributed to M unit
holders. Expected volatilities are based on the average historical and implied volatility of a select group of peers
using the Merton Method. The expected life was calculated based upon treating the three vesting tranches (one
third in years 3, 4, and 5) as separate options.

The following table provides the assumptions used in calculating the fair value of the M unit options granted
during 2020 and 2019:

2020 2019
Weighted average grant date fair value $ 17,806 14,519
Assumptions:
Expected term (years) 3.84 3.84
Expected volatility 25.1% 17.9%
Expected dividends 11.1% 13.2%
Risk free rate of return 0.6% 2.4%

A summary of the activity in 2020 and 2019 related to the number and weighted average exercise price of the M
unit options outstanding and exercisable is as follows:

Weighted
average
Number of options grant date
Vested Nonvested Tota fair value
Outstanding at
December 31, 2018 — 143,858 143,858 $ 13,606
Changes during the year:
Granted — 39,751 39,751 14,519
Vested 23,492 (23,492) — —
Exercised (23,492) — (23,492) 16,178
Forfeited — (6,717) (6,717) 12,618
Outstanding at
December 31, 2019 — 153,400 153,400 $ 13,492
Changes during the year:
Granted — 29,802 29,802 17,806
Vested 27,775 (27,775) — —
Exercised (27,775) — (27,775) 11,567
Forfeited — (6,701) (6,701) 14,416
Outstanding at
December 31, 2020 — 148,726 148,726 $ 14,674
Exercisable as of
December 31, 2020 — — — $ —
(Continued)
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The M unit options outstanding as of December 31, 2020 have an exercise price between $11,319 and $17,806
and aweighted average remaining contractual life of 2.52 years.

The weighted average fair value per unit at the date the options were exercised was $17,806 for 2020 and $14,622
for 2019. M unit options totaling 27,775 vested during 2020. On March 30, 2020, these vested awards exercised
under the cashless exercise feature provided in the M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance of approximately 9,732
M units. No other M unit activity occurred during the year. As of December 31, 2020, 58,177 M units are owned
by current and former employees and 431 M units are owned by AAM LLC.

M unit options totaling 23,492 vested during 2019. On March 29, 2019, these vested awards exercised under the
cashless exercise feature provided in the M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance of approximately 3,171 M units.

The fair value of M unit option awards is amortized to compensation expense on a graded vesting attribution
method over the related vesting period of each separate tranche. The total number of M unit option awards
expected to vest is adjusted for estimated forfeitures. Compensation expense recognized under the M Unit Plan
during 2020 and 2019 was $15.5 million and $14.6 million, respectively, and is included in compensation and
benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. As of December 31,
2020, the total estimated compensation cost related to nonvested M unit option awards, net of estimated
forfeitures, expected to be recognized in future periods through December 31, 2025 is $24.5 million.

(b) Profit Sharing and Incentive Plans

PIMCO and its subsidiaries have various profit sharing and incentive plans that compensate participants on the
basis of profitability and discretionary bonuses. Compensation recorded under these programs was $1.4 hillion
and $1.3 billion during 2020 and 2019, respectively, and is included in compensation and benefits in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(c) Long-Term Incentive Plan

The Company has a Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) for certain key employees. Awards are primarily based
upon achieving specified operating earnings targets and vest over three years. This plan is accounted for as a
liahility award and expensed as compensation over the related vesting period. The Company had recognized
compensation expense under the LTIP of $54.8 million and $50.5 million during 2020 and 2019, respectively.
LTIP compensation expense is included in compensation and benefits in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income. The total accrued LTIP liability was $116.3 million and $111.1
million at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, and is included within current accrued compensation and
noncurrent other accrued compensation in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.

(d) Savingsand Investment Plans

AAM LP isthe sponsor of a defined contribution employee savings and retirement plan covering substantially al
employees of the Company and subsidiaries. The plan qualifies under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue
Code and allows eligible employees to contribute up to 100% of their annual compensation, as defined, and is
subject to a maximum dollar amount determined from time to time by the Internal Revenue Code. Employees are
generally eligible to participate on the first day of the month following their start date. After the completion of one
year of credited service, the Company matches an amount of annual compensation, subject to Internal Revenue
Code limits, contributed by the employees. In addition, certain subsidiaries can contribute an additional amount to
the plan of eligible compensation to the retirement plan. The amount expensed by the Company related to this
plan during 2020 and 2019 was $55.1 million and $48.4 million, respectively, and is included in compensation
and benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
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(e) Executive Deferred Compensation Plan

AAM LP has a nonqualified deferred compensation plan pursuant to which a portion of the compensation
otherwise payable to certain eligible employees of the Company and subsidiaries may be deferred at the election
of the employees. The plan is maintained primarily for the purpose of providing deferred compensation for a
select group of management or highly compensated employees, within the meaning of Sections 201(2), 301(a)(3),
and 401(a)(1) of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended. Amounts deferred under the
plan are invested in marketable securities and M units or other investment partnerships as directed by the
employees and are held in a grantor trust. The assets held in grantor trust are not available to fund ongoing
activities of the Company and only would be available to the Company’s creditors in the event of insolvency.
Total investments and restricted cash and cash equivalents held in trust and the related liability at December 31,
2020 and 2019 was $874.8 million and $688.7 million, respectively, and are included in interest in non-
consolidated deferred compensation trust and deferred compensation on the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial condition.

() Employee Sock Purchase Plan

Allianz SE has an Employee Stock Purchase Plan that is designed to provide eligible employees with an
opportunity to purchase American Depository Shares of Allianz SE annually at a discounted price on a
predetermined date. An aggregate of 250,000 American Depository Shares are reserved for this plan. Allianz SE
determines the gross purchase price of the shares, and a committee appointed by the Company determines the
discount price. Employees are not alowed to sell or transfer the shares for an one-year period following the
purchase date. The difference between the market price and the discount price, or the discount, was paid by the
Company and totaled $2.0 million in 2020 and $167 thousand million in 2019, and is included in compensation
and benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(9) IncomeTax
The provisions for income tax expense (benefits) are as follows:

Y ear ended December 31

2020 2019
Current:

Federal $ 29,332 11,770
State 3,432,731 2,022,507
Foreign 121,394,722 100,158,160
Tota current 124,856,785 102,192,437

Deferred:
Foreign (20,864,965) (3,371,142)
Total deferred (20,864,965) (3,371,142)
Total provision $ 103,991,820 98,821,295

The differences between the reported amount of income tax expense and the amount that would result from
applying the federal corporate statutory tax rates to pretax income arise primarily from the Company’s status as a
partnership for U.S. tax purposes as well as the effects of state and international taxes and nondeductible expense.
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At December 31, 2020 and 2019, income taxes payable amounted to $23.2 million and $36.7 million,
respectively, and are included in accounts payable and accrued expenses in the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial condition. Additionally, at December 31, 2020 and 2019, deferred tax assets amounted to
$44.8 million and $21.4 million, respectively. The deferred tax liabilities at December 31, 2020 and 2019,
amounted to $247 thousand and $61 thousand, respectively. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
included in other noncurrent assets and other noncurrent liabilities, respectively, in the accompanying

consolidated statements of financial condition.

(10) Lease Arrangements

The following table represents lease costs during the year ended December 31, 2020 that are included in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income:

Depreciation of ROU asset

Interest expense on lease liabilities
Variable lease cost

Short-term lease cost

Expenses of leases of low value assets

$ 29,593,350
6,304,014

240,983

376,312

2,179,123

For the year ended December 31, 2020, total cash outflow for leases amounted to $39.8 million.

The following table represents a maturity analysis of the Company’s lease liabilities:

Year ending December 31.
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
Thereafter

Total operating lease payments
Lessimputed interest

Present value of lease liabilities

(1) Financia Risk Management

$ 38,461,023
34,822,467
36,457,152
22,087,757
32,862,009
96,750,859

261,441,267
(24,146,287)

$ 237,294,980

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments;

Credit risk
Liquidity risk

Market Risk
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Risk management is integral to the whole business of the Company. Management continually monitors the
Company’s risk management process to ensure that an appropriate balance between risk and control is achieved.
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s
activities. Management reports its significant activity to the Risk and Controls Committee of Allianz Asset
Management GmbH, a subsidiary of Allianz SE.

(@ Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers, bank
deposits, and investment securities.

Investment advisory and other receivables: The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the Company’s client base, including the default
risk of the industry and country in which client operates, has less of an influence on credit risk. However,
geographically there is no concentration of credit risk, and no single customer who is individually material to the
Company’s operations.

The creditworthiness of customers is assessed as part of new client acceptance procedures. The Company does not
require collateral in respect of trade or other receivables, but monitors the assets under management for each
customer in relation to their outstanding receivable balance. The Company has an excellent history of collection
on outstanding receivables and establishes an allowance for impairment only when an individual customer has
been identified as at risk for collection.

Interest Bearing Deposits with Banks: The interest bearing deposits with banks are due from major institutions.
The Company reviews the creditworthiness of such banks and does not deal with such institutions if it is not
satisfied with the institution’s financial strength.

Investments: The Company’s investments are within investment vehicles, which it manages subject to detailed
investment guidelines. Compliance procedures are in place to ensure that the individua vehicles operate within
their applicable credit and liquidity risk limitations.

(b) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financia obligations as they fall due. The
Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. The majority of non-derivative financial
liahilities have a contractual maturity of less than six months at December 31, 2020.

The Company seeks to actively monitor its cash flow requirements. Typically, the Company ensures that it has
sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses, including the servicing of financial obligations;

this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural
disasters. In addition, the Company has accessto AAM LP's line of credit with Allianz SE as discussed in note 7.
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(c) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect
the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financia instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the
return.

Currency risk: The Company is exposed to currency risk on revenues, purchases, and borrowings that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the Company. The magjority of the Company’s
transactions are in U.S. dollars, but transactions also occur on a more limited basis primarily in Euros, British
Pounds Sterling, and Japanese Y en.

The Company considers its exposure to currency risk to be limited, and currently does not actively employ any
hedging or other techniques to limit such risk.

Interest rate risk: The Company is subject to interest rate risk only to the extent of its borrowing arrangements
with affiliates, all of which are short term in nature. As management considersthisrisk to be minimal, no active
hedging or other strategies are employed to limit such risk.

Other market price risk: Market price risk arises from investment securities held within the investment funds the
Company holds and manages, each of which are subject to specific investment guidelines. Material investments in
such funds are managed on an individual basis and all buy and sell decisions are made in accordance with client
guidelines or the funds governing documents.

In monitoring the Company’s exposure to market risks, management evaluates the Company’s sensitivity to
changes in currency rates, interest rates, and other market risk factors. As of December 31, 2020, there were no
changes in such factors that were deemed reasonably possible that would have resulted in any material differences
to members capital as of December 31, 2020 or the reported comprehensive income for the year then ended.

(d) Capital Management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to preserve investor, creditor, and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. There were no changes in the Company’s approach
to capital management during the year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries, with the exception of Pl
LLC (see note 13) and certain foreign subsidiaries, are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

(12) Provisions

The Company is subject to various pending and threatened legal actions as well as regulatory inquiries, which
arise in the normal course of business. In the opinion of management, the disposition of these matters currently
pending and threatened will not have a material adverse effect on PIMCO and its subsidiaries financial position,
results of operations, or cash flows. Management believes that they have made appropriate estimates for
provisions in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition and in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. The Company expenses related legal fees as
incurred.

(Continued)
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December 31, 2020 and 2019

In early 2020, the existence of a new coronavirus (COVID-19) was confirmed which spread across a significant
number of countries leading to disruption to economic activity and global markets. During periods of high
volatility and uncertainty experienced by markets in 2020, PIMCO Funds and private accounts experienced net
asset outflows and negative returns relating to the disruption caused by COVID-19, but it did not result in a
material adverse impact to the Company during the year. Given the inherent uncertainties, it is not practica to
determine what impact COVID-19 will have on the Company in the future.

(13) Net Capital

Pl LLC is subject to the Uniform Net Capital Rule (Rule 15¢3-1) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
which requires the maintenance of minimum net capital. As of December 31, 2020, Pl LLC had net capital of
$66.8 million for regulatory purposes, which was $66.5 million in excess of its required net capital of $250
thousand. As of December 31, 2019, Pl LLC had net capital of $57.5 million for regulatory purposes, which was
$57.2 million in excess of its required net capital of $250 thousand.

(14) Interest in Unconsolidated Structured Entities

The Company manages a number of structured products and other funds for the purpose of investing monies on
behalf of the Company’s clients in a range of investment strategies. In most cases investment vehicles managed
by the Company have substantive remova or liquidation rights. Investment vehicles for which substantive
removal or liquidation rights do not exist have been identified as structured entities. The vehicles are separate
legal entities, and are financed by investments made by the Company’s clients. The Company is paid for the
investment management services it provides to the vehicle directly from the vehicle. The Company earned $731.2
thousand and $535.5 thousand in investment advisory fees from structured entities during 2020 and 2019,
respectively, which is included in investment advisory fees — pooled funds in the accompanying statements of
income and comprehensive income.

The following table summarizes both the size of the unconsolidated investment vehicles where substantive
removal or liquidation rights do not exist and the Company’s interestsin those vehicles:

December 31
2020 2019
Net assets of unconsolidated structured
entities $ 582,606,016 $ 493,340,219
Investment advisory fees
receivable — pooled funds 222,021 170,996

The Company’s maximum exposure to loss from unconsolidated structured entities is limited to the investment
advisory fees receivable.

(Continued)
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(15) Acquisition

On October 1, 2020, AREOA was contributed to the Company from Allianz of America, Inc., an indirectly wholly
owned subsidiary of Allianz SE, through AAM LLC and AAM LP. Asthe contribution qualified as a transaction
between entities under common control, AREOA was contributed at a net book value of $7.8 million, which is
included in contributions in the accompanying consolidated statements of changes in capital.

(16) Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated events occurring after the date of the consolidated statements of financial condition
through April 23, 2021, the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued to determine
whether any subsequent events necessitated adjustment to or disclosure in the consolidated financia statements,
noting the Company has identified the following event to disclose:

PIMCO M unit options totaling 40,974 vested on January 15, 2021. On March 31, 2021, these vested awards

were exercised under the cashless exercise feature provided in the M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance of
approximately 15,582 M units.
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2021 30

1,218,980,021 133,965,904
24,143,992 2,653,425
640,599,756 70,401,913
323,112,265 35,510,038
45,041,939 4,950,109
21,334,131 2,344,621
23,002,042 2,527,924
26,850,035 2,950,819
63,200,555 6,945,741
2,386,264,736 262,250,494
226,717,390 114,004,405 12,529,084
189,975,621 20,878,321
974,184,449 107,062,871
30,865,176 3,392,083
33,187,129 3,647,265
39,183,015 4,306,213
55,254,579 6,072,478
1,436,654,374 157,888,316
3,822,919,110 420,138,810
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395,823,404 43,500,992
602,171,423 66,178,639

97,046,294 10,665,388

31,084,922 3,416,233

63,658,292 6,996,046

23,002,042 2,527,924

5,815,416 639,114

1,218,601,793 133,924,337

974,184,449 107,062,871

200,119,987 21,993,187

155,480,580 17,087,316

4,060,949 446,298

1,333,845,965 146,589,672

2,552,447,758 280,514,009

850,000 (85,381,560) (9,383,433)
150,000 1,313,915,921 144,399,360
74,190 62,594,657 6,879,153
103,555 26,537,533 2,916,475
(47,195,199) (5,186,752)

1,270,471,352 139,624,802

3,822,919,110 420,138,810
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2,077,603,355 228,328,609
605,560,698 66,551,121
611,553,473 67,209,727
174,139,153 19,137,893

18,174,820 1,997,413

3,487,031,499 383,224,762

1,256,149,699 138,050,852
389,891,600 42,849,087
312,358,275 34,328,174
109,509,733 12,035,120

84,905,818 9,331,149
52,028,090 5,717,887
23,765,858 2,611,868
20,100,930 2,209,092
2,248,710,003 247,133,229
1,238,321,496 136,091,532
98,732,681 10,850,722
(2,910,107) (319,821)
995,294 109,383
1,335,139,364 146,731,816
46,340,393 5,092,809
1,288,798,971 141,639,007
(2,453, 629) (269, 654)
1,286,345,342 141,369,353
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2021 30

850,000  (103,214,782) (11,343,305) 150,000 1,308,035,518 143,753,103 58,608 43,399,986 4,769,658
910,405,280 100,053,540 290,446,808 31,920,104 87,946,883 9,665,362
(909,072,477)  (99,907,065) (284,566,405)  (31,273,848) (77,649,354) (8,533,664)

8,451,432 928,812
8,048,987 884,584 8,897,142 977,796
850,000  (85,381,560)  (9,383,433) 150,000 1,313,915,921 144,399,360 74,190 62,594,657 6,879,153
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2021 30

2020 12 31
148,726 37,843,422 4,158,992 (44,741,570)  (4,917,099) 1,241,322,574 136,421,351
1,288,798,971 141,639,007
(1,271,288,236)  (139,714,577)
8,451,432 928,812

PINMCO

5,640,240 619,862 5,640,240 619,862
(16,946,129)  (1,862,380) -
- (2,453,629) (269,654) (2,453,629) (269,654)

2021 30
103,555 26,537,533 2,916,475 (47,195,199)  (5,186,752) 1,270,471,352 139,624,802
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2021 30

1,288,798,971 141,639,007
5,527,181 607,437
32,361,814 3,556,563
2,910,107 319,821
(995,294) (109,383)
(327,452) (35,987)
2,103,482 231,173
15,036,589 1,652,521
(7,960,091) (874,814)
(54,843, 368) (6,027,286)
(2,910,107) (319,821)
152,391,041 16,747,775
(11,554,500) (1,269,840)
413,326,409 45,424,572
26,920,238 2,958,534
1,860,785,020 204,500,274
(6,180,581) (679,246)
(1,488,667) (163,605)
(23,500,150) (2,582,666)
(31,169, 398) (3,425,517)
337,000,000 37,036,300
(337,000,000) (37,036, 300)
(1,271,288,236) (139,714,577)
8,451,432 928,812
(16,250,224) (1,785,900)
(1,279,087,028) (140,571,664)
(2,453,629) (269, 654)
548,074,965 60,233,439
670,905,056 73,732,466
1,218,980,021 133,965,904
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Trustee and Management of PIMCO Bermuda Trust

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of each of the Funds indicated in the table below (collectively referred
to as the “Funds’), which comprise the statements of assets and liabilities, including the schedules of investments, as of May
31, 2020, and the related statements of operations, of changes in net assets, and for PIMCO Rea Return Fund and PIMCO
Short-Term Strategy the statements of cash flows, and the financial highlights for the periods indicated in the table below.
These financia statements and financia highlights are hereafter collectively referred to as “financial statements.”

PIMCO Bermuda Foreign Low Duration Fund (1) PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund Il (1)
PIMCO Bermuda U.S. Low Duration Fund (1) PIMCO Euro Total Return Fund (1)

PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (JTF) (1) PIMCO Real Return Fund (2)

PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M) (1) PIMCO Short-Term Strategy (3)

PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (Y en-Hedged) (1)

(1) Statements of operations and of changes in net assets and the financial highlights for the year ended May 31,
2020

(2) Statements of operations, of changes in net assets and of cash flows and the financial highlights for the year
ended May 31, 2020

(3) Statements of operations, of changes in net assets and of cash flows for the year ended May 31, 2020, and the
financial highlights for each of the periods indicated therein

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial

statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant
to the Funds preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Funds internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financia statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all materia respects, the financial position of each of
the Funds indicated in the table above as of May 31, 2020, and the results of each of their operations, the changes in each of
their net assets, and for PIMCO Real Return Fund and PIMCO Short-Term Strategy the results of each of their cash flows, and
each of their financia highlights for the periods indicated in the table above, in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
August 5, 2020
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Report of Independent Auditors
To the Trustee and Management of PIMCO Bermuda Trust

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of each of the funds indicated in the table below (collectively referred
to as the “Funds’), which comprise the statements of assets and liabilities, including the schedules of investments, as of May
31, 2021, and the related statements of operations, of changes in net assets and of cash flows and the financial highlights for the
periods indicated in the table below. These financial statements and financia highlights are hereafter collectively referred to as
“financial statements.”

PIMCO Bermuda Foreign Low Duration Fund (1) PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund Il (1)
PIMCO Bermuda U.S. Low Duration Fund (1) PIMCO Euro Total Return Fund (2)

PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (JTF) (1) PIMCO Real Return Fund (2)

PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M) (1) PIMCO Short-Term Strategy (1)

PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (Y en-Hedged) (1)

(1) Statements of operations and of changes in net assets and the financial highlights for the year ended May 31,
2021

(2) Statements of operations, of changes in net assets and of cash flows and the financial highlights for the year
ended May 31, 2021

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
mi sstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant
to the Funds preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Funds internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide abasis for our audit opinions.
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all materia respects, the financial position of each of
the Funds indicated in the table above as of May 31, 2021, and the results of each of their operations, the changes in each of
their net assets, and for PIMCO Euro Total Return Fund and PIMCO Rea Return Fund each of their cash flows, and each of
their financial highlights for the periods indicated in the table above, in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
August 12, 2021
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the management of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC and
its subsidiaries the “Company” , which comprise the consolidated statements of financial condition as of December 31,
2020 and 2019, and the related consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income, changes in capital, and cash

flows for the years then ended.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financia Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated

financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we
consider internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statementsin
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit aso includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that the audit

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting

Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.
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Emphasis of Matter
As discussed in Note 2(c) to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed the manner in which it accounts for

leases in 2019. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

April 23, 2021
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